
 

 

 
 
 
 

Cabinet 
 
Wednesday 22 June 2016 at 2.00 pm 
 
To be held at the Town Hall, 
Pinstone Street, Sheffield, S1 2HH 
 
The Press and Public are Welcome to Attend 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Membership 
  

Councillor Julie Dore (Leader of the Council) 
Councillor Leigh Bramall (Deputy Leader/Cabinet Member for Business 

and Economy) 
Councillor Ben Curran (Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources) 
Councillor Jackie Drayton (Cabinet Member for Children, Young People & 

Families) 
Councillor Jayne Dunn (Cabinet Member for Housing) 
Councillor Mazher Iqbal (Cabinet Member for Infrastructure and 

Transport) 
Councillor Bryan Lodge (Cabinet Member for Environment) 
Councillor Mary Lea (Cabinet Member for Culture, Parks and Leisure) 
Councillor Cate McDonald (Cabinet Member for Health and Social Care) 
Councillor Jack Scott (Cabinet Member for Community Services and 

Libraries) 
 

  

 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 

PUBLIC ACCESS TO THE MEETING 

 
The Cabinet discusses and takes decisions on the most significant issues facing the 
City Council.  These include issues about the direction of the Council, its policies and 
strategies, as well as city-wide decisions and those which affect more than one 
Council service.  Meetings are chaired by the Leader of the Council, Councillor Julie 
Dore.   
 
A copy of the agenda and reports is available on the Council’s website at 
www.sheffield.gov.uk.  You can also see the reports to be discussed at the meeting if 
you call at the First Point Reception, Town Hall, Pinstone Street entrance.  The 
Reception is open between 9.00 am and 5.00 pm, Monday to Thursday and between 
9.00 am and 4.45 pm.  You may not be allowed to see some reports because they 
contain confidential information.  These items are usually marked * on the agenda.  
 
Members of the public have the right to ask questions or submit petitions to Cabinet 
meetings and recording is allowed under the direction of the Chair.  Please see the 
website or contact Democratic Services for further information regarding public 
questions and petitions and details of the Council’s protocol on audio/visual 
recording and photography at council meetings. 
 
Cabinet meetings are normally open to the public but sometimes the Cabinet may 
have to discuss an item in private.  If this happens, you will be asked to leave.  Any 
private items are normally left until last.  If you would like to attend the meeting 
please report to the First Point Reception desk where you will be directed to the 
meeting room. 
 
Cabinet decisions are effective six working days after the meeting has taken place, 
unless called-in for scrutiny by the relevant Scrutiny Committee or referred to the 
City Council meeting, in which case the matter is normally resolved within the 
monthly cycle of meetings.   
 
If you require any further information please contact Simon Hughes on 0114 273 
4014 or email simon.hughes@sheffield.gov.uk. 
 
 

FACILITIES 

 
There are public toilets available, with wheelchair access, on the ground floor of the 
Town Hall.  Induction loop facilities are available in meeting rooms. 
 
Access for people with mobility difficulties can be obtained through the ramp on the 
side to the main Town Hall entrance. 
 



 

 

 

CABINET AGENDA 
22 JUNE 2016 

 
Order of Business 

 
1. Welcome and Housekeeping Arrangements  

2. Apologies for Absence  

3. Exclusion of Public and Press  

 To identify items where resolutions may be moved to 
exclude the press and public 
 

 

4. Declarations of Interest (Pages 1 - 4) 
 Members to declare any interests they have in the business 

to be considered at the meeting 
 

 

5. Minutes of Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 20) 
 To approve the minutes of the meetings of the Cabinet held 

on 9 March and 18 May 2016. 
 

 

6. Public Questions and Petitions  

 To receive any questions or petitions from members of the 
public 
 

 

7. Items Called-In For Scrutiny  

 The Director of Legal and Governance will inform the 
Cabinet of any items called in for scrutiny since the last 
meeting of the Cabinet 
 

 

8. Retirement of Staff (Pages 21 - 24) 
 Report of the Director of Legal and Governance 

 
 

9. Commissioning Plan for Adult and Parent Carers (Pages 25 - 42) 
 Report of the Executive Director, Communities 

 
 

10. Agency Staffing Provision (Pages 43 - 50) 
 Report of the Executive Director, Resources 

 
 

11. Revenue Budget and Capital Programme Monitoring 
2015/16 Month 12 (as at 31/3/16) 

(Pages 51 - 132) 

 Report of the Executive Director, Resources 
 

 

 NOTE: The next meeting of Cabinet will be held on 
Wednesday 20 July 2016 at 2.00 pm 
 

 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 1

ADVICE TO MEMBERS ON DECLARING INTERESTS AT MEETINGS 

 
If you are present at a meeting of the Council, of its executive or any committee of 
the executive, or of any committee, sub-committee, joint committee, or joint sub-
committee of the authority, and you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI) 
relating to any business that will be considered at the meeting, you must not:  
 

• participate in any discussion of the business at the meeting, or if you become 
aware of your Disclosable Pecuniary Interest during the meeting, participate 
further in any discussion of the business, or  

• participate in any vote or further vote taken on the matter at the meeting.  

These prohibitions apply to any form of participation, including speaking as a 
member of the public. 

You must: 
 

• leave the room (in accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct) 

• make a verbal declaration of the existence and nature of any DPI at any 
meeting at which you are present at which an item of business which affects or 
relates to the subject matter of that interest is under consideration, at or before 
the consideration of the item of business or as soon as the interest becomes 
apparent. 

• declare it to the meeting and notify the Council’s Monitoring Officer within 28 
days, if the DPI is not already registered. 

 
If you have any of the following pecuniary interests, they are your disclosable 
pecuniary interests under the new national rules. You have a pecuniary interest if 
you, or your spouse or civil partner, have a pecuniary interest.  
 

• Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain, 
which you, or your spouse or civil partner undertakes. 
 

• Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from your 
council or authority) made or provided within the relevant period* in respect of 
any expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards 
your election expenses. This includes any payment or financial benefit from a 
trade union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992.  
 
*The relevant period is the 12 months ending on the day when you tell the 
Monitoring Officer about your disclosable pecuniary interests. 

 

• Any contract which is made between you, or your spouse or your civil partner (or 
a body in which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, has a beneficial 
interest) and your council or authority –  
 
- under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 

executed; and  
- which has not been fully discharged. 

Agenda Item 4

Page 1



 2

 

• Any beneficial interest in land which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, 
have and which is within the area of your council or authority. 

 

• Any licence (alone or jointly with others) which you, or your spouse or your civil 
partner, holds to occupy land in the area of your council or authority for a month 
or longer. 
 

• Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) – 
- the landlord is your council or authority; and  
- the tenant is a body in which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, has a 

beneficial interest. 
 

• Any beneficial interest which you, or your spouse or your civil partner has in 
securities of a body where -  

 

(a) that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area of 
your council or authority; and  
 

(b) either - 
- the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 

hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or  
- if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal 

value of the shares of any one class in which you, or your spouse or your 
civil partner, has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class. 

If you attend a meeting at which any item of business is to be considered and you 
are aware that you have a personal interest in the matter which does not amount to 
a DPI, you must make verbal declaration of the existence and nature of that interest 
at or before the consideration of the item of business or as soon as the interest 
becomes apparent. You should leave the room if your continued presence is 
incompatible with the 7 Principles of Public Life (selflessness; integrity; objectivity; 
accountability; openness; honesty; and leadership).  

You have a personal interest where – 

• a decision in relation to that business might reasonably be regarded as affecting 
the well-being or financial standing (including interests in land and easements 
over land) of you or a member of your family or a person or an organisation with 
whom you have a close association to a greater extent than it would affect the 
majority of the Council Tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the ward or 
electoral area for which you have been elected or otherwise of the Authority’s 
administrative area, or 
 

• it relates to or is likely to affect any of the interests that are defined as DPIs but 
are in respect of a member of your family (other than a partner) or a person with 
whom you have a close association. 

 

Page 2



 3

Guidance on declarations of interest, incorporating regulations published by the 
Government in relation to Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, has been circulated to 
you previously. 
 
You should identify any potential interest you may have relating to business to be 
considered at the meeting. This will help you and anyone that you ask for advice to 
fully consider all the circumstances before deciding what action you should take. 
 
In certain circumstances the Council may grant a dispensation to permit a Member 
to take part in the business of the Authority even if the member has a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest relating to that business.  

To obtain a dispensation, you must write to the Monitoring Officer at least 48 hours 
before the meeting in question, explaining why a dispensation is sought and 
desirable, and specifying the period of time for which it is sought.  The Monitoring 
Officer may consult with the Independent Person or the Council’s Standards 
Committee in relation to a request for dispensation. 

Further advice can be obtained from Gillian Duckworth, Director of Legal and 
Governance on 0114 2734018 or email gillian.duckworth@sheffield.gov.uk. 
 
 

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



S H E F F I E L D    C I T Y     C O U N C I L 
 

Cabinet 
 

Meeting held 9 March 2016 
 
PRESENT: Councillors Julie Dore (Chair), Leigh Bramall (Deputy Chair), 

Ben Curran, Jackie Drayton, Jayne Dunn, Terry Fox, Mazher Iqbal and 
Mary Lea 
 

 
   

 
1.  
 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

1.1 An apology for absence was received from Councillor Sioned-Mair Richards. 
 
2.  
 

EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 
 

2.1 The Chair reported that Appendix B to agenda item 10 (See Minute 12 below) 
‘Sheffield Housing Company Phase 2’, was not available to the public and press 
because it contained exempt information described in Paragraph 3 of Schedule 
12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) and if Members wished to 
discuss the appendix the public and press would need to be excluded from the 
meeting. 

 
3.  
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

3.1 There were no declarations of interest. 
 
4.  
 

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 
 

4.1 The minutes of the previous meeting of the Cabinet, held on 17 February 2016, 
were approved as a correct record. 

 
5.  
 

PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS 
 

5.1 Public Questions in respect of Mental Health 
  
5.1.1 Adam Butcher asked what was the Council doing to make sure we had a joined-

up Commissioning Plan for Mental Health for all ages? Mr Butcher also asked did 
we know what the number of Sheffield people was who were held in a police cell 
when having a mental health crisis? 

  
5.1.2 Councillor Mary Lea, Cabinet Member for Health, Care and Independent Living, 

responded that the Council worked closely with the Clinical Commissioning Group 
(CCG) on mental health issues to ensure good provision of services, which was 
underpinned by a Joint Needs Analysis. 

  
5.1.3 Councillor Lea added that a Joint Commissioning Plan had been created with the 

CCG which involved some pooled budgets particularly in relation to Section 17 
which focused on aftercare. 

  

Agenda Item 5

Page 5



Meeting of the Cabinet 9.03.2016 

Page 2 of 13 
 

5.1.4 A Street Triage Team had been established which involved Mental Health 
Workers assisting the Police which hoped to reduce numbers being detained in a 
Police Cell with a mental health issue, with some success thus far. Mental Health 
workers could also visit a person’s house if this was felt appropriate. There were 
services for inpatient provision at Northern General Hospital if someone did need 
to be detained in an emergency. 

  
5.1.5 Councillor Jackie Drayton, Cabinet Member for Children, Young People and 

Families, further commented that the Council were working on ensuring plans 
were joined-up with the CCG and the Children’s Hospital. The Health and 
Wellbeing Board had recently received a presentation from young people who had 
raised some of their concerns in relation to this issue, such as the gap in provision 
of services in the transition from 16-18. A pilot had been undertaken to provide 
support through to 18 years old, which was very welcomed but the young people 
aspired for the service to go up to 25 years of age. 

  
5.1.6 Councillor Drayton believed it was important to focus on early intervention and 

prevention and offering support and advice in schools was a key part of this. 
Assisting with low level mental health issues in the early stages may help to 
prevent issues arising in the future. If support could be provided to parents as well 
this may make a difference to the overall health and wellbeing of a child. 

  
5.1.7 There were a number of projects and pilots taking place around the City, such as 

the “Future in Mind” Pilot which had received money from the Government. A part 
of this was looking at alternatives to placing a person in a police cell. 

  
5.2 Public Questions in respect of Devolution 
  
5.2.1 Nigel Slack commented that Barnsley had voted in favour of the ‘devolution’ deal. 

Chesterfield was currently debating between full membership of the Sheffield City 
Region or the East Midlands region known as D2N2, with little news of forward 
movement on the Sheffield front. 

  
5.2.2 He therefore asked was there yet a realistic timetable for the decision process in 

Sheffield City Council? Had negotiations on the City Council’s ‘red line’ issues 
been successful? More specifically, had the Mayoral veto clause been removed 
from the proposal or were the Council relying on the ‘constitution’ of the Sheffield 
City Region Combined Authority (SCRCA) to temper this power? Which document 
would have legal precedence, the ‘devolution agreement’ with the Government or 
the SCRCA ‘constitution’? 

  
5.2.3 The Leader of the Council, Councillor Julie Dore, responded that the Council had 

made it clear to the Government about its two ‘red lines’. The first of these was 
related to geography. Any agreement should not be a South Yorkshire devolution 
agreement, as the agreement was an economic agreement to enable Sheffield 
City Region (SCR) as an economic functioning area to grow its economy through 
investment in infrastructure and some control over skills in relation to young 
people and adults. This issue had been somewhat resolved and it required the 
Government to amend the Bill. Many people had said that it would be very difficult 
to get the Conservative Government to amend the Bill but the Council had stood 

Page 6



Meeting of the Cabinet 9.03.2016 

Page 3 of 13 
 

firm on this and achieved its goal. 
  
5.2.4 As a result of the agreement over geography, districts had now been given the 

choice of whether to join the SCR or the D2N2. Chesterfield, at its Full Council 
meeting, had agreed to become a full Constituent Member of the SCR. North East 
Derbyshire and Bolsover had agreed to become Full Constituent Members of 
D2N2. The decision of Bassetlaw was still awaited. Once this was confirmed the 
SCR could establish whether the ‘red line’ policy on geography had been 
achieved. 

  
5.2.5 The second ‘red line’ was in respect of the Mayoral veto. It was clear that the 

constitution of the SCRCA took legal precedence over the devolution agreement. 
The constitution was being developed, but all 9 authorities involved were clear 
that the Mayoral veto would be removed. The constitution will have been agreed 
by the time the Order on devolution passes through parliament and the SCR could 
still withdraw from the agreement at that stage if it believed its ‘red lines’ had not 
been met. 

  
5.3 Public Question in respect of Service Provider Contracts 
  
5.3.1 Nigel Slack commented that he recalled being in attendance at a Community 

Assembly meeting chaired by Councillor Ben Curran, Cabinet Member for Finance 
and Resources. At that meeting, a presentation was given by the City Council and 
Amey about the then proposed contract for ‘Streets Ahead’. Mr Slack had asked 
an awkward question about levels of profit for the contract. The response had 
been that it was a commercially sensitive matter. A female Council Officer from 
the Highways team also commented that they had been negotiating this contract 
for 6 years and they knew what they were doing. In Mr Slack’s opinion, recent 
public concerns over the contract would suggest otherwise. 

  
5.3.2 With this in mind, will the Council commit to use their good offices as the lead 

Authority of the SCRCA to ensure that any good ‘service provider’ contracts 
proposed and agreed by the SCRCA will be handled on the same ‘presumed total 
disclosure approach’ that was supposed to be part of the City’s own contracting 
process? 

  
5.3.3 Councillor Julie Dore stated that as the question mentioned Community 

Assemblies she would like to take the opportunity to clarify that, despite what had 
been said by a number of people, the Council still had meetings in the community, 
through Local Area Partnerships (LAPs) and Cabinet in the Community meetings. 
There were lots of reasons why Community Assemblies needed to change. The 
main reason being cost as they cost £2.5 million a year to run and this couldn’t 
continue. Since the abolition of Community Assemblies, no opposition party had 
put in their budget amendments a pledge for them to be reinstated which 
suggested that they accepted that they were unaffordable.  

  
5.3.4 Councillor Dore then commented that no questions on profit for contractors were 

awkward as people had the right to know. However, the Council was often bound 
by legal confidentiality. Within the Sheffield City Region there was a need to 
negotiate with partners and follow policies and processes. People could be 

Page 7



Meeting of the Cabinet 9.03.2016 

Page 4 of 13 
 

reassured that in such discussions the City Council would be making their position 
clear when it came to contract issues, arguing for fairness and the commitment to 
the Living Wage, amongst others. 

 
6.  
 

ITEMS CALLED-IN/REFERRED FROM SCRUTINY 
 

6.1  Prevent Task Group Report 
  
6.1.1 The Children, Young People and Family Support Scrutiny and Policy 

Development Committee submitted a report outlining the findings of the 
Committee’s Prevent Task Group and making its recommendations to 
Cabinet. 

  
6.1.2 Councillor Cliff Woodcraft, Deputy Chair of the Committee, and Diane 

Owens, Policy and Improvement Officer, attended the meeting to present 
the report. 

  
6.1.3 RESOLVED: That Cabinet:- 
  
 (a) notes the Prevent Task Group Report; and 
   
 (b) requests that the Acting Cabinet Member for Neighbourhoods and 

Cabinet Member for Children, Young People and Families provide a 
joint response to the Children, Young People and Family Support 
Scrutiny and Policy Development Committee in terms of 
recommendations 1-10 in the Prevent Task Group Report, at a date 
to be agreed, but no later than December 2016. 

   
6.1.4 Reasons for Decision 
  
6.3.1 To enable the Scrutiny Committee to monitor the outcome of its 

recommendations, the Committee would welcome a joint response from 
the Acting Cabinet Member for Neighbourhoods and the Cabinet Member 
for Children, Young People and Families with regards to its 
recommendations (1-10) as outlined in its Prevent Task Group Report. 

  
6.1.5 Alternatives Considered and Rejected 
  
 An alternative option in relation to the recommendations would be to do 

nothing with the Committee’s report. However, given the time and effort 
spent by the Task Group, and contributions made to the work from other 
organisations, this is not deemed a viable option. 

  
 An alternative option in relation to the recommendations would be to 

respond to the Committee’s report over a much longer timescale. 
However, this would be at the risk of losing the opportunity for the report’s 
recommendations to influence the Council’s response to the requirements 
of the 2015 Counter-Terrorism and Security Act. 

  
6.2 Home Care Scrutiny Report 

Page 8



Meeting of the Cabinet 9.03.2016 

Page 5 of 13 
 

  
6.2.1 The Healthier Communities and Adult Social Care Scrutiny and Policy 

Development Committee submitted a report outlining the findings of the 
Committee’s Task Group which considered Home Care and making 
recommendations to Cabinet. 

  
6.2.2 Councillor Cate McDonald, Chair of the Committee, and Alice Nicholson, 

Policy and Improvement Officer, attending the meeting to present the 
report. 

  
6.2.3 RESOLVED: That Cabinet:- 
  
 (a) notes the Home Care Scrutiny Report; and 
   
 (b) requests a response to the report from the Cabinet Member for 

Health, Care and Independent Living be submitted to the Scrutiny 
Committee within 3 months, including a timetable for implementing 
the report’s recommendations within the recommissioning process. 

   
6.2.4 Reasons for Decision 
  
 The recommendation to Cabinet is for the Cabinet Member for Health, 

Care and Independent Living to respond to the report within 3 months, as 
this should provide enough time to develop a detailed response. 

  
6.2.5 Alternatives Considered and Rejected 
  
6.8.1 An alternative option in relation to the recommendations would be to do 

nothing with the Committee’s report. However, given the time and effort 
spent by the task group, and contributions made to the work from other 
organisations, this is not deemed a viable option. 

  
 An alternative option in relation to the recommendations would be to 

respond to the Committee’s report over a much longer timescale. 
However, this would be at the risk of losing the opportunity for the report’s 
recommendations to influence the recommissioning process. 

  
6.3 Call-In of Decision by Cabinet on School Places in Sheffield 
  
6.3.1 A report of the Children, Young People and Family Support Scrutiny and 

Policy Development Committee was circulated in relation to the outcome 
of its meeting, held on 9 March 2016, to consider a call-in of the decision 
of Cabinet, taken at its meeting on 17 February 2016, in relation to School 
Places in Sheffield. 

  
6.3.2 The report stated that the Scrutiny and Policy Development Committee 

had ‘agreed to take no action in relation to the called-in decision, but 
consider whether issues arising from the call-in needed to be added to its 
Work Programme 2016/17. 

  

Page 9



Meeting of the Cabinet 9.03.2016 

Page 6 of 13 
 

6.3.3 RESOLVED: That Cabinet notes the decision of the Children, Young 
People and Family Support Scrutiny and Policy Development Committee. 

 
7.  
 

RETIREMENT OF STAFF 
 

7.1 The Interim Executive Director, Resources submitted a report on 
Council staff retirements.  

  
7.2 RESOLVED: That this Cabinet :-  
  
 (a) places on record its appreciation of the valuable services rendered 

to the City Council by the following staff in the Portfolios below:- 
  
 

Name Post 
Years’ 
Service 

    
 Children, Young People and Families  
    
 Margaret Gray Pupil Support Assistant, 

Athelstan Primary School 
20 

    
 Maureen Jenkinson Whole School Assistant and 

Cleaner 
22 

 Resources   
    
 Andrew Bullock Solicitor 27 
  
 (b) extends to them its best wishes for the future and a long and happy 

retirement; and 
  
 (c) directs that an appropriate extract of this resolution under the 

Common Seal of the Council be forwarded to them. 
 
8.  
 

SPECIAL EDUCATIONAL NEEDS / LOOKED AFTER CHILDREN / 
VULNERABLE ADULTS TRANSPORT FRAMEWORK 
 

8.1 The Interim Executive Director, Resources submitted a report in relation to 
the Special Educational Needs/Looked After Children/Vulnerable Adults 
Transport Network. 

  
8.2 RESOLVED: That Cabinet:- 
  
 (a) approves the establishment of a Dynamic Purchasing System (DPS) 

for taxi and minibus provision (with or without escorts) as outlined in 
the report, and that the DPS runs for a 24 month period with an 
option to extend for a further two 12 month periods, subject to 
satisfactory performance; and 

   
 (b) delegates authority to the Director of Commercial Services, or her 

nominated representative, to accept tenders and award Contracts 

Page 10



Meeting of the Cabinet 9.03.2016 

Page 7 of 13 
 

for this project. 
   
8.3 Reasons for Decision 
  
8.3.1 The current contracts were advertised and let as 12 month contracts with 

an optional 12 month extension.  There is no provision within the contracts 
for a further extension. 

  
8.3.2 The Council has a statutory responsibility to provide travel assistance to 

children who have an entitlement because of their special educational 
needs and for adult care clients to meet their respite and other needs.  Part 
of this assistance is met by the Council’s in-house fleet.  However, it is not 
possible for all provision to be met in-house.  In order to complement the 
Council’s in-house fleet and maintain an appropriate level of service 
support for end users, further capacity is generated by utilising additional 
contractors.  Contracts for these services are let through a competitive 
tendering process to ensure best value is achieved and in order to comply 
with legislative requirements. 

  
8.4 Alternatives Considered and Rejected 
  
8.4.1 There are a limited number of alternative options open.  ‘Do nothing’ would 

leave the Council short on capacity to deliver the required services to 
vulnerable clients and risk a breach of statutory duty.   

  
8.4.2 Entering into a collaborative framework with other public bodies has also 

been considered.  However, the Council’s requirements are large and 
complex and therefore its own bespoke framework is considered the most 
suitable option with the framework procured in such a way that other public 
bodies may also use it should it offer a suitable compliant route to market 
for them. 

  
 
9.  
 

SHEFFIELD DIGITAL BUSINESS INCUBATOR 
 

9.1 The Executive Director, Place submitted a report in relation to the 
Sheffield Digital Business Incubator Project. 

  
9.2 RESOLVED: That Cabinet agrees:- 
  
 (a) to accept the grant offer of £3.5 million; 
   
 (b) to accept Sheffield City Council becoming the Accountable Body for 

the grant on behalf of a third party who will deliver the project and 
payment of grant aid to the third party delivering the project; and 

   
 (c) to delegate authority to the Executive Director, Place, in consultation 

with the Cabinet Member for Business, Skills and Development and 
the Director of Finance, to instruct the Director of Legal and 
Governance to finalise terms and complete all the necessary 

Page 11



Meeting of the Cabinet 9.03.2016 

Page 8 of 13 
 

documentation to give effect to the proposals set out in this report. 
   
9.3 Reasons for Decision 
  
9.3.1 The underlying benefit of this proposal is to enable up to £3.5m of funding 

from Central Government to be invested in the City Centre to bring forward 
business incubation space for companies in the digital industries sector. 
Successful delivery of this space will support jobs growth and wealth 
creation in Sheffield and the wider City Region and as well as the ‘Tech 
Nation’ concept being promoted by Government. This is one of three 
Digital Business Incubators being supported by Government in the North, 
the others being in Manchester and Leeds. 

  
9.3.2 It is expected that this funding will be used to secure and refurbish a 

property in the City Centre with the current option having been identified 
as Sheffield ‘Maker Hub’ – the renovation of Castle House (former Co-op) 
in Castlegate. This investment will add to the vibrancy and reinvigoration 
of the Castlegate area and wider City Centre and has economic benefits in 
terms of making the city an exciting place to locate and attract talented 
staff for businesses in the creative and digital industries which is a key 
growth area for the City Region. 

  
9.3.3 The funding Government Department (DCMS) has assessed proposals 

from the promoters of this project in Sheffield and allocated £3.5m but is 
not in a position to invest directly into the project. SCC has been 
requested to act as an intermediary in the form of the Accountable Body 
for the funding and will not only receive the capital funding but will 
undertake appropriate detailed assessment to ensure the project delivers 
the most positive outcomes for the city and the technology sector. With 
Accountable Body status the Council will ensure the delivery body is fit for 
purpose and delivers the project and associated outputs in a legally 
compliant manner via a Funding Agreement. 

  
9.4 Alternatives Considered and Rejected 
  
9.4.1 Without SCC being in a position to act as Accountable Body for the capital 

funding it is understood that DCMS would not make the £3.5m grant 
funding available for investment in Sheffield. This would lead to the project 
not proceeding resulting in a missed opportunity to create the facility and 
stimulate the Sheffield economy. 

  
9.4.2 The Council could look to use the £3.5m grant funding to deliver the facility 

itself through the Capital Programme rather than act as Accountable Body 
and enter into a Funding Agreement with a third party. Whilst this remains 
an option it is not preferred, given it would make SCC wholly responsible 
for the financial delivery of the project and outcomes based on a business 
case that was developed by another party. 

  
 
10.  BETTER HEALTH AND WELLBEING - WORKING BETTER TOGETHER IN 

Page 12



Meeting of the Cabinet 9.03.2016 

Page 9 of 13 
 

 COMMUNITIES 
 

10.1 The Executive Director, Communities submitted a report describing a 
proposed new approach to investing in community health and wellbeing 
services; an approach that encourages people and organisations to work 
together to support people to maintain and improve their health and 
wellbeing. 

  
10.2 RESOLVED: That Cabinet:- 
  
 (a) approves the strategic approach set out in this report – recognising 

the potential for this approach to shape how the Council 
commissions preventative health and wellbeing services in the 
future; 

   
 (b) supports the development of Collaborative Partnerships; and 
   
 (c) delegates authority to the Director of Commissioning and the 

Director of Commercial Services, in consultation with the Cabinet 
Member for Health, Care and Independent Living, the Cabinet 
Member for Public Health and Equality, and the Director of Legal 
and Governance, to appoint Collaborative Partnerships to the 
Pseudo-Framework (hereinafter referred to as the framework) and 
to issue contract awards following the procurement process. 

   
10.3 Reasons for Decision 
  
10.3.1 As resources become more stretched, it is critical that organisations – big 

and small – work better together to support the people of Sheffield to 
improve their health and wellbeing. 

  
10.3.2 As health and care budgets continue to integrate and consolidate, we want 

to make sure that small local organisations are not squeezed out because 
they want to stay small and focus on what they do best. 

  
10.3.3 We also recognise that if we are to succeed in reducing health inequalities 

in Sheffield we need to focus our resources smartly – making sure that 
organisations collectively prioritise people that are most at risk. 

  
10.3.4 We also recognise that the drivers of health inequalities extend beyond the 

scope of any single service or contractual arrangement. By better 
coordinating investment and activity at a neighbourhood level, we believe 
that the city will be better able to tackle the root causes of health 
inequalities. 

  
10.4 Alternatives Considered and Rejected 
  
10.4.1 No Change 

 
We discounted this option because (a) there is convincing evidence that 

Page 13



Meeting of the Cabinet 9.03.2016 

Page 10 of 13 
 

improved health and wellbeing outcomes rely heavily on stronger 
partnership working at the neighbourhood level; and (b) we know that our 
current investment approach does not sufficiently incentivise partnership 
working.  
 
Some links to relevant reports are included at Appendix A to the report. 

  
10.4.2 Set up Council-managed Neighbourhood Partnerships to coordinate 

preventative health and wellbeing services 
 
We have engaged extensively with organisations in Sheffield over the last 
year, particularly the voluntary sector, and there has been a strong view 
that Collaborative Partnerships (CP) need to be self-determined and 
tailored in terms of membership and focus to the needs of the specific 
neighbourhood(s) they cover. This will include engagement with local 
democratically elected members and local people in relation to planning 
and decision making for each area. 
 
We are therefore recommending that we invite partnerships to come 
together and make proposals to us about their membership, scope, and 
operating model, with our evaluation of their readiness being based on 
their capability to achieve better outcomes for the population.  
 
It should be noted that the option of Council-run partnerships will continue 
to be explored as we need to be prepared for (a) some areas not being 
covered by an approved CP; and (b) a CP dissolving in the future. 

  
 
11.  
 

REVENUE BUDGET AND CAPITAL PROGRAMME MONITORING 2015/16 
MONTH 10 (AS AT 31/1/16) 
 

11.1 The Interim Executive Director, Resources submitted a report providing 
the month 10 monitoring statement on the City Council’s Revenue and 
Capital Budget for 2015/16. 

  
11.2 A supplementary report was circulated outlining amendments to the 

recommendations detailed in the original report. 
  
11.3 RESOLVED: That Cabinet:- 
  
 (a) notes the updated information and management actions provided by 

the report on the 2015/16 Revenue Budget position; 
   
 (b) approves the carry forward of £523k; and 
   
  (i) delegates authority to the Director of Creative Sheffield to 

design the new Living Wage and Retail Relief schemes in 
consultation with the Director of Finance, the Director of Legal 
and Governance and the Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Resources; and 

Page 14



Meeting of the Cabinet 9.03.2016 

Page 11 of 13 
 

    
  (ii) delegates authority to the Head of Libraries and Community 

Services to approve the final allocation of community 
investments in consultation with the Director of Finance, the 
Director of Legal and Governance and the Cabinet Member 
for Finance and Resources; and 

    
 (c) in relation to the Capital Programme:- 
   
  (i) approves the proposed additions to the Capital Programme 

listed in Appendix 5.1 of the report, including the procurement 
strategies and delegations of authority to the Director of 
Commercial Services or nominated Officer, as appropriate, to 
award the necessary contracts following stage approval by 
Capital Programme Group; 

   
  (ii) approves the proposed variations, deletions and slippage in 

Appendix 5.1 of the report; 
   
  (iii) approves the acceptance of the grant detailed in Appendix 5.2 

of the report; 
   
  (iv) notes the variations in Appendix 5.1 of the report within the 

delegated authority of the Council’s Executive Management 
Team; 

   
  (v) notes the two variations authorised by Council Directors under 

the delegated authority provisions; and 
   
  (vi) notes the latest positon on the Capital Programme. 
   
11.3 Reasons for Decision 
  
11.3.1 To record formally changes to the Revenue Budget and the Capital 

Programme and gain Member approval for changes in line with Financial 
Regulations and to reset the Capital Programme in line with latest 
information. 

  
11.4 Alternatives Considered and Rejected 
  
11.4.1 A number of alternative courses of action are considered as part of the 

process undertaken by Officers before decisions are recommended to 
Members. The recommendations made to Members represent what 
Officers believe to be the best options available to the Council, in line with 
Council priorities, given the constraints on funding and the use to which 
funding is put within the Revenue Budget and the Capital Programme. 

  
 
12.  
 

SHEFFIELD HOUSING COMPANY PHASE 2 
 

Page 15



Meeting of the Cabinet 9.03.2016 

Page 12 of 13 
 

12.1 The Executive Director, Place submitted a report in relation to the 
Sheffield Housing Company Phase 2. 

  
12.2 An amendment was reported to a figure contained in the confidential 

Appendix B section of the report and this was noted by Cabinet. 
  
12.3 RESOLVED: That Cabinet:- 
  
 (a) notes the progress on housing delivery and neighbourhood 

regeneration through the Sheffield Housing Company (SHC); 
   
 (b) approves the Council granting an Option to Purchase for £1 on up to 

2 identified sites within the future Sheffield Housing Company Land 
Package; the ability to exercise the Option being granted only if the 
lender has unrecoverable debt on its development finance loan to 
SHC for Phase 2; and 

   
 (c) delegates authority on the negotiation on the terms of the Option to 

Purchase to the Director of Capital and Major Projects in 
consultation with the Director of Finance. 

   
12.3 Reasons for Decision 
  
12.3.1 The Council providing security for the loan by way of an Option to the 

Homes and Communities Agency to purchase future SHC land for £1 is 
assessed as low risk and will enable the development of 478 quality new 
homes. 

  
12.4 Alternatives Considered and Rejected 
  
12.4.1 Option 1 – the Council does not provide any form of security for the SHC 

loan. Impact: This would result in the interest rate on the loan increasing 
to over 10%. The increased finance costs will render Phase 2 unviable as 
the Phase surplus would be reduced to an unacceptably low level in which 
to manage any development risk. This is therefore not the preferred 
option. 

  
12.4.2 Option 2 – the Council and Keepmoat provide the development finance 

loan to SHC removing the need for HCA finance. Impact: funding will 
need to be identified from the corporate programme to finance this and the 
loan drawdown and repayment will need to be administered, drawing on 
officer resources. This is not the preferred option. 

  
12.4.3 Option 3 – the Council provides a Parent Company Guarantee by way of 

a commitment to pay half of any outstanding debt to HCA, if SHC defaults 
on its loan. Impact: this would enable SHC to enter into a funding 
agreement with HCA and deliver Phase 2. However, it will require the 
Council to place a contingent liability on its accounts and potentially create 
a precedent for offering security to developers in this way, therefore this is 
not the preferred option. 

Page 16



Meeting of the Cabinet 9.03.2016 

Page 13 of 13 
 

  
12.4.4 Option 4 - Council provides security in the form of an Option for HCA to 

purchase identified Council sites for £1 to recover any debt. This land falls  
within the SHC future land package. Impact: this would enable SHC to 
enter into a funding agreement and deliver Phase 2. An Option to 
purchase land within the Land Package will allow the Council and SHC to 
manage the SHC site development programme to ensure that the sites in 
question are timetabled for delivery after the Option is removed. It would 
not require the Council to account for any contingent liability in its 
accounts. This is the preferred option. 

  
 

Page 17



Page 18

This page is intentionally left blank



S H E F F I E L D    C I T Y     C O U N C I L 
 

Cabinet 
 

Meeting held 18 May 2016 
 
PRESENT: Councillors Julie Dore (Chair), Leigh Bramall (Deputy Chair), 

Ben Curran, Jackie Drayton, Jayne Dunn, Mazher Iqbal, Bryan Lodge, 
Mary Lea, Cate McDonald and Jack Scott 
 

 
   

 
1.  
 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

1.1 There were no apologies for absence. 
 
2.  
 

APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR AND DEPUTY CHAIR 
 

2.1 RESOLVED: That the appointment of Councillor Julie Dore as Chair and 
Councillor Leigh Bramall as Deputy Chair be noted. 

 
3.  
 

TO FIX DAY AND TIME OF MEETINGS 
 

3.1 RESOLVED: That meetings of the Cabinet be held on a monthly cycle on the 
following Wednesdays at 2.00 p.m:- 
 
22 June 2016 
20 July 2016 
17 August 2016 
21 September 2016 
19 October 2016 
23 November 2016 
14 December 2016 
18 January 2017 
15 February 2017 
15 March 2017 
19 April 2017 

 

Page 19



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
Report of:   Interim Executive Director, Resources 
 

 
Date:    22nd June 2016 
 

 
Subject:   Staff Retirements 
 

 
Author of Report:  Simon Hughes, Democratic Services 
 

 
Summary: To report the retirement of staff across the  
 Council’s various Portfolios 
 
 

 
Recommendations: 
 
Cabinet is recommended to:- 
 
(a) place on record its appreciation of the valuable services rendered to the 

City Council by members of staff in the various Council Portfolios and 
referred to in the attached list; 

 
(b) extend to them its best wishes for the future and a long and happy 

retirement; and  
 
(c) direct that an appropriate extract of the resolution now made under the 

Common Seal of the Council be forwarded to those staff above with over 
20 years’ service. 

 
 

 
Background Papers: None 
 

 
Category of Report: OPEN 
 

 

SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL 

Cabinet Report 

Agenda Item 8

Page 21



2 

 

RETIREMENT OF STAFF 
 
1. To report the retirement of the following staff from the Council’s Service and 

to convey the Council’s thanks for their work:- 
 

 Name Post 
Years’ 
Service 

    
 Children, Young People and Families  
    
 Ranjit Chakravorty Study Support and Volunteers  

Co-ordinator 
30 

    
 Josephine Cobley Teacher, Talbot Specialist School 33 
    
 Glyne Cooke Development Manager 36 
    
 Anne Everson Social Worker 26 
    
 Margaret Firth Deputy Headteacher, Oughtibridge 

Primary School 
39 

    
 Margaret Gardener Senior Teaching Assistant Level 3, 

Birley Spa Community Primary School 
26 

    
 Susan Huscroft Headteacher, Birley Spa Community 

Primary School 
38 

    
 Stephanie Lawson Senior Teaching Assistant,  

Stradbroke Primary School 
30 

    
 Maria Lysandro Residential Support Worker 24 
    
 Debbie Marshall Teacher, Ecclesall Infant School 25 
    
 Patricia Munt Headteacher, Oughtibridge Primary 

School 
39 

    
 Pauline Newton Teacher, Birley Spa Community 

Primary School 
36 

    
 Lesley Nicol Team Manager 29 
    
 Trevor Owen Head of Safeguarding and Review 42 
    
 Diane Pratt Teacher, Carfield Primary School 36 
    
 Lynn Stevenson School Business Manager,  

Whiteways Primary School 
30 

    

Page 22



3 

 Name Post 
Years’ 
Service 

    
 Helen Towers Teacher, Waterthorpe Nursery  

Infant School 
36 

    
 Susan Withey Consultant (EMA/EAL) 21 
    
 Communities   
    
 Neil Ashton Senior Housing Officer 34 
    
 Leslie Benn Area Manager 43 
    
 Stephen Bradshaw Housing Co-ordinator 33 
    
 Sharon Cadd Senior Housing Officer 29 
    
 Patricia Clarkson Housing Officer 29 
    
 Susan Cook Warden 31 
    
 Lynn Cutts Assistant Area Manager 31 
    
 Julie Ford Housing Co-ordinator 26 
    
 Lorraine Foulstone Senior Housing Officer 26 
    
 Louisa Lazenby Housing Co-ordinator 29 
    
 Helen Mitchell Housing Co-ordinator 26 
    
 June Richards Warden, Housing and  

Neighbourhood Services 
20 

    
 Anthony Round Warden, Housing and  

Neighbourhood Services 
29 

    
 Dennis Slack Housing Co-ordinator 40 
    
 Janet Siddall Warden, Housing and  

Neighbourhood Services 
25 

    
 Audrey Simpson Senior Housing Officer 32 
    
 Deborah Slack Social Worker 32 
    
 Linda Sunley Senior Housing Officer 32 
    
 Carol Taylor Warden, Housing and  

Neighbourhood Services 
32 

Page 23



4 

 Name Post 
Years’ 
Service 

    
 Sandra Wheldon Housing Co-ordinator 29 
    
 Alison White Senior Housing Officer 30 
    
 Place   
    
 Robert Almond Policy and Project Development 

Manager 
28 

    
 June Burke Community Events Officer 30 
    
 Pauline Davison Information Officer 29 
    
 Tina Moores Community Activity Leader,  

Activity Sheffield 
34 

    
 Nicholas Silvani Principal Transport Planner 41 
    
 Robert Thurlby Environmental Health Technician 34 
    
 Resources   
    
 Stephen Clark HR Service Manager - Transitions 31 
    
 Jane Cobbledick Learning and Development Consultant 38 
    
 Richard Oates Motor Vehicle Fitter 37 
    
 Wendy Parker Learning and Development Officer 28 
    
 Philip Smith Transport Manager 46 
    
 Fraser Walters Learning and Development Officer 39 
 

2. To recommend that Cabinet:- 
  
 (a) place on record its appreciation of the valuable services rendered to the 

City Council by the above-mentioned members of staff in the Portfolios 
stated; 

  
 (b) extend to them its best wishes for the future and a long and happy 

retirement; and 
  
 (c) direct that an appropriate extract of the resolution now made under the 

Common Seal of the Council be forwarded to those staff above with 
over 20 years’ service. 

 

Page 24



Form 2 – Executive Report                                                          January 2014 

 
 
 

 
Report of:   Laraine Manley, Executive Director Communities 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Report to:   Cabinet 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Date:    22nd June 2016 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Subject: Commissioning Plan for Adult and Parent Carers 

2016-2020 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Author of Report:  Joe Fowler, Director of Commissioning 

Emma Dickinson, 0114 273 4746 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Key Decision:  YES  
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Reason Key Decision: Expenditure/savings over £500,000   
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary:  
 
The word carer throughout this report means someone who looks after a person; 
a family member or friend because that person would not be able to be safe and 
well without that help.  It might mean sibling carer, parent carer or adult carer. 
 
This report outlines the Commissioning Plan for Adult and Parent Carers which 
details the commissioning intentions for Sheffield City Council (2016-2020) 
including the services we wish to purchase and other interventions and 
programmes. 
 
The Plan is part of a framework (2016-2020) that will shape how we want to 
improve carers’ lives. 
_______________________________________________________________ 
 
Reasons for Recommendations: 
(Reports should include a statement of the reasons for the decisions proposed) 
 

SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL 
 

Cabinet Report 

FORM 2 
Agenda Item 9

Page 25



Page 2 of 17 

The Commissioning Plan is based within the Framework of Improving Carers 
Lives and directly aligns with the principles as set out in the recently approved 
Young Carers, Parent and Adult Carers Strategy. 
 
The commissioning intentions have been guided by the co production activity we 
have undertaken with carers. 
 
The Strategy will enable the Authority to comply with a new statutory duty as set 
out in section 10 of the Care Act 2014. 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommendations: 
 
That the report is noted and approval is given to the Commissioning Plan for 
Parent and Adult Carers. 
 
That in accordance with the Commissioning Plan and this report Cabinet 
approves the use of the Council’s existing framework of Collaborative 
Partnerships that provide preventative health and wellbeing following the People 
Keeping Well principles for community based outreach carers services. 
 
That in accordance with the Commissioning Plan and this report Cabinet 
approves the procurement via an open tender process for core city wide support 
services for carers, including the delivery of Carers Assessments (as set out in 
section 10 of the Care Act), the management of a small grant pot, developing 
support plans for carers, helping identify services and managing the overall 
budget available to support carers. 
 
 
That in accordance with the Commissioning Plan and this report Cabinet 
approves the move from a contract for sitting services for all carers to an 
approach where the assessment of the need for a sitting service is included in 
social care assessments and where an eligible need is identified this need will be 
met through a direct payment or through a separately procured contract for which 
separate approval will be sought.  
 
That in accordance with the Commissioning Plan and this report, authority is 
delegated to the Director of Commissioning in Consultation with Cabinet Member 
for Health and Social Care and the Director of Commercial Services to: 
 

a. award contracts for core city wide support services for carers following the 
open tender process; 

b. approve the extension of core city wide support contracts after the expiry 
of the initial 3 year term; 

c. develop options, procure and award contracts for short breaks; and 
d. approve one off procurement and contracts for raising awareness of carer 

issues. 
 
That the Director of Commissioning in consultation with the Cabinet Member for 
Health and Social Care, the Director of Legal and Governance and the Director 

Page 26



Page 3 of 17 

of Commercial Services take such other steps as he deems appropriate to 
achieve the outcomes in this report and the Commissioning Plan. 
_____________________________________________________________ 
 
Background Papers:  
 

• Young Carers, Parent and Adult Carers Strategy (2016-2020) 

• Commissioning Plan for Adult and Parent Carers (2016-2020) 

• Better Health and Wellbeing – Working better together in Communities 
(Cabinet report March 2016) 

 

 
Category of Report: OPEN  
 

 
  

Page 27



Page 4 of 17 

Statutory and Council Policy Checklist 
 

Financial Implications 
 

YES Cleared by: Ann Hardy 
 

Legal Implications 
 

YES Cleared by: Nadine Sime 
 

Equality of Opportunity Implications 
 

YES Cleared by: Liz Tooke 
 

Tackling Health Inequalities Implications 
 

N/A 
 

Human Rights Implications 
 

N/A 
 

Environmental and Sustainability implications 
 

N/A 
 

Economic Impact 
 

N/A 
 

Community Safety Implications 
 

N/A 
 

Human Resources Implications 
 

N/A 
 

Property Implications 
 

N/A 
 

Area(s) Affected 
 

City wide 
 

Relevant Cabinet Portfolio Lead 
 

Cate McDonald, Cabinet Member for Health and Social Care 
 

Relevant Scrutiny Committee 
 

Healthier Communities and Adult Social Care 
 

Is the item a matter which is reserved for approval by the City Council?    
 

NO 
 

Press Release 
 

YES 
 

Page 28



Page 5 of 17 

REPORT TO THE Cabinet 
 
Commissioning Plan for Adult and Parent Carers 2016-2020 
 
1.0 SUMMARY 
  
1.1 The word carer throughout this report means someone who looks after a 

person; a family member or friend because that person would not be able 
to be safe and well without that help.  It might mean sibling carer, parent 
carer or adult carer. 

  
1.2 This report outlines the Commissioning Plan for Adult and Parent Carers 

which details the commissioning intentions for Sheffield City Council 
(2016-2020) including the services we wish to purchase and other 
interventions and programmes. 
 
The Plan is part of a framework (2016-2020) that will shape how we want 
to improve carers’ lives. 

  
1.3 This Commissioning Plan is for all adult carers who care for someone 

(whether an adult or child) who is a resident of Sheffield. 
  
2.0 WHAT DOES THIS MEAN FOR SHEFFIELD PEOPLE 
  
2.1 1 in 10 people in Sheffield are carers (60,000); they are a hidden army 

that is a huge strength for the city.  Providing care is an integral part of life 
and many people have told us throughout the consultation they want to 
care but it is not always easy. 

  
2.2 Carers have repeatedly told us throughout consultation: 

 
‘If you got the services and support right for my family member, I wouldn’t 
have any needs’ 
 
Whilst this may be true for some, all carers’ needs won’t entirely 
disappear if support and services are right for the person they care for. So 
it’s important that we build on carers’ strengths (or assets) to reduce and 
address any ongoing needs. 

  
2.3 Supporting carers is everyone’s business.  Improving carers’ lives will not 

happen just through services aimed directly at carers but also by changing 
behaviour of the workforce and the services that support service users 
and interact with carers.  
 
Finding and identifying carers earlier and equipping them with the right 
support for them and their family is seen as the best prevention to carer 
breakdown (NB support - this does not need to be statutory and in many 
cases it is not).  
 
Through this commissioning plan, the council will outline how we will 
contribute to this change.  These changes have been identified through 

Page 29



Page 6 of 17 

extensive co-production activities with carers in 2015. 
  
3.0 OUTCOME AND SUSTAINABILITY 
  
3.1 The vision for all carers as set out in the recently approved Strategy is: 

 
A City where Carers are valued and have the right support to continue 
to care for as long as they want to. 

  
3.2 Through this plan we will purchase services to support carers to continue 

to care but also undertake a range of interventions that will raise the 
awareness with statutory and delivery partners, employers and local 
communities to understand the needs and requirements of carers.  

  
4.0 MAIN BODY OF THE REPORT 
  
4.1 This report should be read with: 

 

• The Young Carers, Parent and Adult Carers Strategy (2016-2020) and 

• The Commissioning Plan for Adult and Parent Carers (2016-2020)  
 
Which accompany this report in the appendices 1 and 2 

  
4.2 Why should we support carers? 

 
1 in 10 people in Sheffield are carers; they are a hidden community that is 
a huge strength for the city.   
 
There are now fewer health and social cares services but a greater 
demand as more people are living longer, although this may not be in well 
health.   Therefore building family and community assets and resources 
will be important because caring will become more vital to us all. 
 
With the reductions in public spending, we need to find innovative and 
different ways to do more with the available funds. 
 
It is difficult to monetise caring, but there are tangible benefits to 
commissioners and funders to providing services to carers, in summary 
they are: 
 

• Reducing the need for emergency health and social services 
interventions because of carer breakdown. 

• With the right support, reducing emergency hospital admissions (for 
carers and the cared for person). 

• Carers (with the correct support or training) could aid the recovery of 
their cared for or slow down the progression of the person’s condition 
(where appropriate). 

• Reduction or delay of statutory services for the cared for person. 
  
4.3 Overwhelmingly carers are resilient people but how services are delivered 

Page 30



Page 7 of 17 

(or not) for the person they care for can be a significant  barrier and make 
life worse 
 
Caring impacts on all parts of life - carers should be able to continue to 
have a life alongside caring i.e. health, social life, able to work 

  
4.4 COMMISSIONING PLAN 
  
4.5 To make a STEP CHANGE to improve carers lives we  will: 

 
1. Make changes to tendered carer support services (to start late 

2016) 
 
We are changing the ethos of carers support services based on the 
extensive consultation undertaken with Carers in 2015. 
 
The new services will be: 
 
a. Community based outreach to find hidden carers 
b. Core city wide support service including the statutory duty carers 

assessments  
c. Menu of options for breaks 

 
2. Raise awareness: changing the behaviour of society and services to 

carers e.g. employers, doctors, family and friends and getting services 
that support cared for people to recognise and support carers 

 
As with the strategy, the following actions will be co-produced with 
carers and carer organisations and will involve a range of activities: 

 
a. General awareness raising campaign  
b. Sheffield Standard – for organisations who will interact with carers 

e.g. social care providers, housing, GPs, hospitals, employers 
c. Sheffield Carer Access Card (carer passport) 
d. Advocate changes in Adult Social Care 

 
  
4.6 One of the most ambitious changes outlined in this Commissioning Plan is 

including carers assessments in the new ‘core city wide support service’. 
 
Currently, carers assessments are delivered by Adult Social Care.   
 
Anecdotally and evidenced by the carer related scores in the Adult Social 
Care Outcomes Framework, it is clear that some carers are not satisfied 
with services provided via the Council.   
 
Therefore this important statutory duty (as set out in section 10 of the 
Care Act 2014) will be tendered to a provider who will undertake this 
service on behalf of the Council.   
 
This new approach will enable: 

Page 31



Page 8 of 17 

• An end to end holistic service for the carer.  

• A dedicated assessment and approach that concentrates on the 
strengths and needs of the carer.  

• Prevention of conflict of interest with the needs of the cared for person 
when a combined assessment isn’t appropriate. 

 
This provider will undertake the following activities: 
 

• Assessment of the carer. 

• Determination of eligibility in line with the eligibility regulations. 

• Allocating a personal budget (if required) in line with criteria set out by 
the Council. 

• Developing a support plan. 

• Helping identify services. 

• Managing the overall budget available to support carers. 
  
4.7 CURRENT: existing tendered services 
  
4.8 The diagram below outlines current and planned future tendered service.  

 
We currently spend approximately £1,000,000 per year via two contracted 
services for carers: 
 

• Support Services for Carers of Adults – information, advice and 
support to prevent carer breakdown (due to expire end of December 
2016). 

• Flexible Community Respite Support Service for Carers of Adults – 
weekly sitting for the cared for person (due to expire end of September 
2016). 

 
Once the Support Services contract ends, carers supported by this 
service will continue to be supported via the new Core City Wide contract. 
 

Page 32



Form 2 – Executive Report                                                          January 2014 

CURRENT 

FUTURE 

P
age 33



Form 2 – Executive Report                                                          January 2014 

 Community Respite Support Service 
  
 Community Respite Support Service will end in the current format.   

 
Current process: This service is delivered to the cared for person but is 
arranged outside the social care and financial assessment process.   
 
Rationale: The rationale for ending the existing service is to ensure equity 
of access and resources, a Council arranged sitting service will only be 
available via social care or carers assessment process.   
 
Future: Ending this service is not a cut to carers services but the monies 
will be utilised to provide a range of break options that will be tailored to 
the carer.  
 
Existing people: For the people who currently receive the Community 
Respite Service, we will do the following: 
 

• If the cared for person has eligible social care needs, they will continue 
to receive sitting via their social care package (and may need to 
contribute to the cost of the service) 

• If the cared for person doesn’t have eligible social care needs or is a 
self-funder, they will be supported by the Core City wide contract with 
information and advice to help arrange alternative solutions 

  
4.9 What Carers have told us and what we know: 
  
 Throughout 2015 we undertook co-production and consultation activities 

with carers via; support groups, 1:1s, questionnaire and workshops.  
Carers told us about their experiences and the types of solutions they 
would prefer: 
 

• Anecdotally, carers have told us that it has taken them a long time to 
find and access services that support them.  They have often been 
referred or found services via an organisation that is supporting the 
person they care for. 

• Although we have 60,000 carers in Sheffield, just over 8,000 are 
known to carers services.  We also know through national research 
(Carers UK) that the caring population in Sheffield continually changes 
by an approx. third every year. 

• Carers want a range of short break options e.g. short stay respite, 
sitting (with and without personal care), activities for the person they 
care for, activities to do together etc. 

  
4.10 FUTURE: services and activities 
  
 Tendered carer support service 
  
4.11 a. Community based outreach to support carers to develop tools to 

develop maintain resilience for long term caring.   

Page 34



Page 11 of 17 

 
It will deliver the following activities: 

 

• Work with local GP practices to identify carers, particularly those 
who could be at risk e.g. number of hours of care, own conditions, 
level of stress etc . 

• Identify carers through the wide range of services the People 
Keeping Well partnership (part of the joint work with Sheffield 
Clinical Commissioning Group) delivers. 

• Provide low level advice and navigation about accessing benefits 
and services. 

• Support carers to build social assets / capital and look after their 
own health.  

• Provide carer support and peer support group.  
  
4.12 b. Carers city wide support services which will provide expert information, 

advice and navigation to reduce carer breakdown and maintain caring.   
 
It will deliver the following activities: 

 

• A strengths based conversation will be the basis of all support to 
seek suitable solutions. 

• Carers assessments; including determination of eligibility and 
allocation of a personal budget. 

• Telephone advice line. 

• Information, advice and navigation. 

• ‘Respite broker’ to support carers to identify ‘getting a break’ 
options. 

• Management of a small grants pot to support carers having a 
break. 

• Carer voice. 

• Support to gain and retain work. 

• Carers health and wellbeing including the importance of self care 
for carers. 

• Contingency and long term planning. 
  
4.13 c. Short breaks options for carers: 

 

• Short stay respite. 

• Sitting service with and without personal care. 

• Activities for the person they care for. 

• Having a break and doing something together. 
  
4.14 PROCUREMENT AND CONTRACT OPTIONS 
  
 The following table outlines the procurement and contractual methods for 

Carers services 
 

Services Procurement Contract Value Comments 

Page 35



Page 12 of 17 

option length 

Community 
based 
outreach 

Utilise the 
Council’s 
existing 
framework of 
Collaborative 
Partnerships 
that provide 
preventative 
health and 
wellbeing 
following the 
 People 
Keeping Well 
principles[1]  
 

3 years £400,000  

Core city wide 
support 
service 

Procurement 
via Open 
Tender process 

3 years 
with 
possible 
extension 
for 
another 2 
years 

£2,100,000 
(to cover the 3 
year contract) 

Please note this 
will include: 
- Carers 

assessment 
requirement 
to allocate 
personal 
budget 

- Management 
of small grant 
pot for carers 
breaks 

Carers breaks 
- 
development 
of a network 
of short stay 
respite beds 
for carers to 
pre-book 

  £400,000 To be developed 
further 

TOTAL   £2,900,000.00  

 
4.20 RAISE AWARENESS 
  
 Carer awareness and recognition was highlighted as key by carers in the 

consultation.  Therefore we will: 
 
a. Have a general awareness raising campaign  
b. Introduce the Sheffield Standard – for organisations who will interact 

with carers e.g. social care providers, housing, GPs, hospitals, 
employers 

                                            
[1]
 A decision to establish frameworks for Better Health and Wellbeing - Working Better 

Together in Communities was made by Cabinet on 9th March 2016. 

https://imgmeetings.sheffield.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=123&MID=5952  

Page 36



Page 13 of 17 

c. Fund the development and implementation Sheffield Carer Access 
Card (carer passport) 

d. Advocate for changes in Adult Social Care 
 
Most of theses activities will involve officer time and possibly purchasing 
one off activities, marketing or publicity which will be procured in line with 
Council procedures. 
 
We have capitalised on an existing project to develop the carers passport 
(the Disability Access card) and this activity is being implemented by a 
local organisation and approved via waiver of standing orders 

  
4.21 TRANSITIONS 
  
 When carers talk about ‘transition’ it often means when a disabled child 

moves from being supported by Childrens to Adult Social Services.  
 
But there are many ‘transitions’ within a carer’s life, these could be for the 
carer and / or for he person they care for.  The list below is a few of the 
transitions that carers experience (it is not exhaustive) 
 

• When you become or recognise you are a carer 

• At diagnosis 

• When a disable child moves or leaves school 

• Move from Childrens to Adult social services 

• From being a young carer to an adult carer 

• When the person you care for either leaves home or starts to live 
with you 

• Giving up work due to caring 

• Life after caring 
  
 The following outlines the work we will be implementing to support the 

many different types of transitions: 
 

• Working with Childrens and Adults services to make sure the transition 
through social services is smoother 

• The new core support service has specific outcomes to: 
o support young carers becoming adult carers 
o life after caring 
o working with health providers to identify carers 

 
  
5.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
  
5.1 The Care Act 2014 provides the legal framework against which care 

services must be provided. The main principles of the legislation are that 
whenever a local authority makes a decision about an adult, they must 
promote that adult’s wellbeing and to ensure the provision of preventative 
services - that is services which help prevent, delay or reduce the 
development of care and support needs (including carers’ support needs). 

Page 37



Page 14 of 17 

Under the Act a local authority must exercise its functions with a view to 
ensuring the integration of care and support provision with health 
provisions and health related provision where it considers that this would: 
 

• Promote the wellbeing of adults in its area, with needs for care and 
support and the wellbeing of carers in its area. 

• Contribute to the prevention or delay of the development by adults in 
its area of needs for care and support or the development by carers in 
its area of needs for support; or 

• Improve the quality of care and support for adults and of support for 
carers, provided in its area (including the outcomes that are achieved 
from such provision). 

 
The Council has a new duty to carers under section 10 of the Care Act 
2014 to carry out carer assessments, for carers who may have needs for 
support. 
 
The Council has the power to enter into contracts to meet its duties.  
 
The proposed procurement options are in keeping with Contract Standing 
Orders and the European Procurement Regulations. 

  
6.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
  
6.1 In making a decision, Members must always be mindful of the duty 

contained in Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010, that is the duty to have 
due regard to the need to: 
 
a) Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other 

conduct that is prohibited or under the Act: 
b) Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a 

relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it; and  
c) Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 

characteristic and persons who do not share it. 
  
6.2 This includes having due regard to the need to: 

 
a) Remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by relevant protected 

characteristic that are connected characteristic that are different from 
the needs of persons who do not share it. 

b) Take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic that are different from the needs of persons 
who do not share it. 

 
Section 158 of the Equality Act 2010, permits the taking of positive action 
where this is a proportionate means of meeting the needs of persons who 
share a protected characteristic which are different from the needs of 
persons who do not share that protected characteristic. 

  
6.3 An Equalities Impact Assessment has been completed in relation to the 

Page 38



Page 15 of 17 

draft strategy which shows the impact on all protected groups to be 
positive and this is attached. 

  
7.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
  
7.1 The council has made a budget available for these activities of  

£3,042,780 between 2016-2020 
 
The table below outlines the funding of the activities outlined in the report 
above 
 
NB these costs include: 

• a 6% efficiency saving from 2017/18 onwards (the value of the 
reduction has been taken from the whole 3 year budget but in reality 
the cash and income element may be subject to different levels of 
reduction and would be applied each year rather than at the beginning 
of a three year plan.  The budget is therefore an estimated value but is 
based on a pragmatic approach) 

• the Carers Support Services budget has taken a reduction of £30,000 
in 2015/16 and £30,000 in 2016/17 due to the cuts in the Public Health 
grant 

 

ACTIVTIES 2016-2020 

Community based outreach £400,000 

Core city wide support service £2,100,000 

Carers breaks - development of 
a network of short stay respite 
beds for carers to pre-book 

£400,000 

Raising Awareness £142,780 

TOTAL £3,042,780.00 

 
8.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
  
8.1 The alternative option would be not to have a strategy for carers.  This is 

not a viable alternative as it would result in a breach of a statutory duty, 
and has been outlined in the strategy and this report; it is legally, morally, 
socially and economically important for Sheffield to continue to support its 
carers. 

  
8.2 Carers are identified in the Council’s Corporate Plan 2015-2018: provide 

direct support to more carers than ever before. 
  
9.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
  
9.1 The Commissioning Plan is based within the Framework of Improving 

Carers Lives and directly aligns with the principles as set out in the 
recently approved Young Carers, Parent and Adult Carers Strategy. 

  
9.2 The commissioning intentions have been guided by the co production 

activity we have undertaken with carers. 

Page 39



Page 16 of 17 

  
9.3 The Strategy will enable the Authority to comply with a new statutory duty 

as set out in section 10 of the Care Act 2014. 
  
10.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 
  
10.1 That the report is noted and approval is given to the Commissioning Plan 

for Parent and Adult Carers. 
  
10.2 That in accordance with the Commissioning Plan and this report Cabinet 

approves the use of the Council’s existing framework of Collaborative 
Partnerships that provide preventative health and wellbeing following the 
People Keeping Well principles for community based outreach carers 
services. 

  
10.3 That in accordance with the Commissioning Plan and this report Cabinet 

approves the procurement via an open tender process for core city wide 
support services for carers, including the delivery of Carers Assessments 
(as set out in section 10 of the Care Act), the management of a small 
grant pot, developing support plans for carers, helping identify services 
and managing the overall budget available to support carers. 

  
 That in accordance with the Commissioning Plan and this report Cabinet 

approves the move from a contract for sitting services for all carers to an 
approach where the assessment of the need for a sitting service is 
included in social care assessments and where an eligible need is 
identified this need will be met through a direct payment or through a 
separately procured contract for which separate approval will be sought.  

  
 That in accordance with the Commissioning Plan and this report, authority 

is delegated to the Director of Commissioning in Consultation with Cabinet 
Member for Health and Social Care and the Director of Commercial 
Services to: 
 

a. award contracts for core city wide support services for carers 
following the open tender process; 

b. approve the extension of core city wide support contracts after the 
expiry of the initial 3 year term; 

c. develop options, procure and award contracts for short breaks; and 
d. approve one off procurement and contracts for raising awareness 

of carer issues. 
  
 That the Director of Commissioning in consultation with the Cabinet 

Member for Health and Social Care, the Director of Legal and 
Governance and the Director of Commercial Services take such other 
steps as he deems appropriate to achieve the outcomes in this report and 
the Commissioning Plan. 

 
Author: Emma Dickinson 
Job Title: Commissioning Manager 
Date: 20 May 2016 

Page 40



Appendix 3 

Form 2 – Executive Report                                                          January 2014 

Appendix 1 
 
 
Young Carers, Parent and Adult Carers Strategy (2016-2020) 
Commissioning Plan for Adult and Parent Carers (2016-2020) 
 

Young Carer, Parent 
and Adult Carer Strategy (2016-2020) - FINAL.docx

  

Commissioning Plan 
for Adult and Parent Carers 2016-2020.docx

 
 
Appendix 2 
 
Better Health and Wellbeing – Working better together in Communities (Cabinet 
report March 2016) 
 

Working Better 
Together - Community Wellbeing.pdf

 
 
 
 

Page 41



Page 42

This page is intentionally left blank



Form 2 – Executive Report                                                          January 2014 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Report of:   Eugene Walker 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Report to:   Cabinet 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Date:    22 June 2016 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Subject:   Agency Staffing Provision 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Author of Report:  Peter White/Chris Goodacre 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Key Decision:  YES  
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Reason Key Decision: Expenditure over £500,000 
 

     
 
     
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary:  
 
To approve the procurement of a new temporary agency supplier 
 
 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Reasons for Recommendations: 

A retender for the Agency staffing contract is required as the existing 
arrangement has been extended once and cannot be extended again. 

The new contract will retain the Council’s core agency requirements across all 
Portfolios whilst maximising social value benefits.  In addition to supporting 
existing Portfolio arrangements the new contract will also address new 

SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL 
 

Cabinet Report 
 

 

FORM 2 
Agenda Item 10

Page 43



Page 2 of 7 

requirements such as insourcing of Social Housing and Corporate Repairs & 
Maintenance contracts (Kier & Kier KAPS). 
 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommendations: 

Approve the strategy for procurement of a temporary agency supplier via a 
competitive dialogue process 

To delegate the contract award to Director of Commercial Services in 
consultation with Director of Human Resources.  

 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Background Papers:  None 
 

 
Category of Report: OPEN  
 
If CLOSED add ‘Not for publication because it contains exempt information 
under Paragraph (insert relevant paragraph number) of Schedule 12A of 
the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended).’ 
 

 
 

Page 44



Page 3 of 7 

Statutory and Council Policy Checklist 
 

Financial Implications 
 

YES Cleared by: Eugene Walker/Marianne Betts 
 

Legal Implications 
 

YES Cleared by: Gillian Duckworth 
 

Equality of Opportunity Implications 
 

YES Cleared by: Michelle Hawley 
 

Tackling Health Inequalities Implications 
 

YES/NO Cleared by: N/A 
 

Human Rights Implications 
 

YES Cleared by: Julie Toner 
 

Environmental and Sustainability implications 
 

YES/NO Cleared by: N/A 
 

Economic Impact 
 

YES Cleared by: Marianne Betts 
 

Community Safety Implications 
 

YES/NO Cleared by: N/A 
 

Human Resources Implications 
 

YES Cleared by: Julie Toner 
 

Property Implications 
 

YES/NO Cleared by: N/A 
 

Area(s) Affected 
 

Sheffield/Sheffield City Region 
 

Relevant Cabinet Portfolio Lead 
 

Cllr Ben Curran 
 

Relevant Scrutiny Committee 
 

Overview & Scrutiny 
 

Is the item a matter which is reserved for approval by the City Council?    
 

NO 
 

Press Release 
 

YES 
 

Page 45



Page 4 of 7 

REPORT TO THE CABINET 
 
AGENCY STAFFING PROVISION 
 
1.0 SUMMARY 
  
1.1 

This project covers the procurement of a new agency staffing contract.  A 
retender for the contract is required as the existing arrangement has been 
extended once and cannot be extended again. 

The new contract will retain the Council’s core agency requirements 
across all Portfolios whilst maximising social value benefits.   

In addition to supporting existing Portfolio arrangements the new contract 
will also address new requirements such as insourcing of Social Housing 
and Corporate Repairs & Maintenance contracts (Kier & Kier KAPS). 

A number of delivery models have been considered as part of the Outline 
Business Case.  As we are unable to provide precise details of our 
requirements regarding Social Value, the most pragmatic approach is an 
open tender process using a Competitive Dialogue procedure (CD).  The 
CD procedure provides us with the flexibility to explore various solutions 
without commitment; and, at the same time, allows us to determine if 
suppliers are capable of meeting our needs.   

This approach provides flexibility in terms of defining the specification of 
requirements.  This flexibility is required as we require the market to help 
us hone and articulate our Social Value requirements so we can maximise 
these benefits to citizens of the Sheffield City Region. 

  
  
2.0 WHAT DOES THIS MEAN FOR SHEFFIELD PEOPLE 
  
2.1 Improved access to temporary employment with clearly defined routes in 

to a variety of job roles including the development of individual career 
pathways. 
 

2.2 Supply of an appropriately skilled, qualified and well trained temporary 
staffing base supporting the Councils core workforce in the delivery of 
Council services. 

2.3 Payment of the Foundation Living Wage for Temporary staff supporting 
the Councils core workforce in delivery of its services. 
 

 
3.0 

 
OUTCOME AND SUSTAINABILITY 

  
3.1 The provision of Agency staff will support the delivery of a wide range of 

services delivered by the City Council. 
  
  
  

Page 46



Page 5 of 7 

4.0 MAIN BODY OF THE REPORT 
 

4.1 
The new contract will maintain the core requirement of the agency 
contract including;  

• Online tools to ensure effective and efficient requisitioning, 
ordering and approval of temporary staff 

• Effective account management  

• Accurate and timely contract management and performance 
management information 

• Generate measurable and realistic savings over and above 
those achieved by the existing contract 

At the same time the new contract will maximise social value outcomes.  
These will include (but not limited to);  

• Improving Council/provider engagement with socially deprived 
groups and their access to routes into employment 

• Improving the Council’s temporary and permanent staffing 
workforce profile 

• Improving links from apprenticeship through to temporary and 
permanent employment  

• Targeting employment hotspots and setting out career pathways 
in markets where SCC has a lack of capacity/talent. 

• Challenging the market to fully articulate innovative and smart 
ideas to improve the social value aspects on the contract. 

In addition to this; 
 

• The new contract will look to create additional draw down options 
including the potential for the successful provider to deliver 
additional services including end to end recruitment processes. 
 

• Through the tender process explore opportunities for SCC to have 
a greater commercial stake in the business of Agency staffing 
provision. 
 

• Require the successful bidder to pay the Foundation Living Wage 
from the first day of employment to its staff and to agency workers. 

  
4.2 

The key benefits of the new contract can be summarised as follows:   

• Continuation of the one-stop-shop approach for managers when 
requesting temporary workers.   

• Leverage greater Social Value for Sheffield out of the contract by 
helping us to promote employment, link to development of 
careers paths in markets where SCC has a lack of capacity / 
talent, support the local economy by greater use of local supply 

Page 47



Page 6 of 7 

chains, and assist us to grow and develop our relationship with 
the diverse range of sectors within the Sheffield City Region.   

• Provide expert advice about the agency staff market including 
appropriate market intelligence, for example relating to pay rates, 
benchmarking and Social Value. 

• Provide the right environment for a positive working partnership 
between Sheffield City Council and Partners, the Contractor, 
supplying Agencies, and temporary workers 

• Contribute to savings targets and help to reduce the amount 
spent on temporary workers and provide accurate and timely 
management information with appropriate analysis and market 
intelligence  

 
  
  
5.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
  
5.1 

A number of delivery models have been considered as part of this 
exercise and include ; 

• Establish an in-house Agency or Traded Company  

• Establish Council’s own framework of providers 

• Procurement of Managed Services or Neutral Vendor, either 
through a consortia, collaboration or directly to the market 

• Establish a non-traded company 

• Set up a Public Sector/Private Sector collaboration (e.g. SCC / 
Reed) 

• Set up a Public Sector collaboration (e.g. SCC / University of 
Sheffield / NHS Sheffield) 

 
  
  
6.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
  
6.1 To ensure access to an Agency with market place presence and expertise 

in providing temporary staffing for a wide range of job roles. 
  
6.2 To use Agency provider expertise in developing our strategy to deliver 

improved social values for the people of Sheffield and the Sheffield City 
region. 

  
6.3 
 
 
 
7.0 

To minimise the risks that were identified during the consideration of 
alternative options. 
 
 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION (if a Closed report) 

Page 48



Page 7 of 7 

  
7.1 
 

N/A 

  
8.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 
  
8.1 
 
 
8.2 

That Cabinet approve the strategy for procurement of a temporary agency 
supplier via a competitive dialogue process 

That Cabinet delegates the power to award the contract for the Agency 
services to Director of Commercial Services, in consultation with the 
Cabinet Member for Finance & Resources, on the basis that: 

• The most suitable provider/partner is chosen via a competitive 
dialogue process as outlined above.   

• That the chosen provider/partner will work with Sheffield City 
Council to develop Social and Economic values that will benefit the 
people of Sheffield and the wider region. 

• That the chosen provider/partner works closely with the Council to 
grow the newly formed business within Sheffield and the wider 
region. 

• That the new contract is actively managed through the existing 
Human Resources Client Management arrangement with support 
from Commercial Services.  

 
  
  

 
 
Author: Peter White/Chris Goodacre 
 
Job Title: Human Resources Service Manager/Commercial Services Category 
Manager 
 
Date: 10/6/16 
 

 

Page 49



Page 50

This page is intentionally left blank



Form 2 – Executive Report                                                           

 
 
 
 
 

 
Report of:   Eugene Walker 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Report to:   Cabinet 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Date:    22 June 2016 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Subject: REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2015/16 – As at 

31st March 2016 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Author of Report:  Dave Phillips 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Key Decision:  YES 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Reason Key Decision: Expenditure/savings over £500,000    
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary: 
This report provides the Outturn monitoring statement on the City Council’s 
Revenue and Capital Budget for 2015/16. 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Reasons for Recommendations: 
To formally record changes to the Revenue Budget and gain Member approval 
for changes in line with Financial Regulations. 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommendations: Please refer to paragraph 38 of the main report for 

the recommendations. 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Background Papers: 
 

 
Category of Report: OPEN 

SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL 
 

Cabinet Report 
 

FORM 2 
Agenda Item 11

Page 51



Page 2 of 2 

Statutory and Council Policy Checklist 
 

Financial Implications 
 

YES Cleared by: Dave Phillips 
 

Legal Implications 
 

NO 
 

Equality of Opportunity Implications 
 

NO 
 

Tackling Health Inequalities Implications 
 

NO 
 

Human Rights Implications 
 

NO 
 

Environmental and Sustainability implications 
 

YES/NO 
 

Economic Impact 
 

NO 
 

Community Safety Implications 
 

NO 
 

Human Resources Implications 
 

NO 
 

Property Implications 
 

NO 
 

Area(s) Affected 
 

 
 

Relevant Cabinet Portfolio Lead 
 

 
 

Relevant Scrutiny Committee 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 
 

Is the item a matter which is reserved for approval by the City Council?    
 

NO 
 

Press Release 
 

NO 
 

 

Page 52



2015/16        Budget Monitoring – Outturn 
 

REVENUE BUDGET & CAPITAL PROGRAMME MONITORING  
AS AT 31st MARCH 2016 

 

Purpose of the Report 
 

1. This report provides the Financial Outturn statement on the City Council’s Revenue 

Budget and Capital Programme.  The first section covers Revenue Budget Monitoring.  

The Capital Programmes are reported from paragraph 32.  

 
REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 
 

Summary 

2. At month 10 the overall Council position was a forecast underspend of £523k.  The 

actual outturn position is a slight improvement of £38k to £561k underspent. 

 

3. It was approved at Cabinet on the 9th March 2016 that the month 10 forecast 

underspend of £523k would be invested in 2016/17. It was agreed that the Council 

Leader or delegated Cabinet Member in consultation with Cabinet colleagues will 

decide how specifically to allocate this funding. 

 
4. The outturn by Portfolio is summarised in the table below: 

 

 
 

5. In terms of the outturn position of £561k underspend, the key reasons are: 

· Children, Young People and Families are reporting an outturn overspend of 

£311k.  This overspend is primarily due to the recruitment of additional social 

workers £1.4m and £1.0m in increased demand pressures within Direct 

Payments and Short Breaks services.  These adverse movements are partly 

offset by a reduction in expenditure of £553k on Contact Contracts, an increase 

in Education Services Grant income of £650k and £1.0m due to a reduction in 

Placement demand. 

Portfolio FY FY Movement

Outturn Budget Variance from Month 

£000s £000s £000s 10

CYPF                          77,754 77,443 311 ñ

COMMUNITIES                   163,646 162,694 952 ò

PLACE 165,868 162,893 2,975 ò

POLICY, PERFORMANCE & COMMUNICATION 3,217 3,042 175 ò

RESOURCES                     58,018 58,948 (930) ò

CORPORATE                     (469,063) (465,020) (4,043) ñ

GRAND TOTAL (561) (0) (561) ó

APPROVED 2016/17 CARRY FORWARD REQUESTS 523

GRAND TOTAL (38)

Page 53



2015/16        Budget Monitoring – Outturn 
 

· Communities are reporting an outturn overspend of £952k, due largely to 

increased expenditure of £964k in Learning Disabilities and Contributions to 

Care and an overspend of £1.9m within Commissioned Mental Health Services. 

These overspends are partly offset by a £675k underspend in Housing General 

Fund and £925k within Housing Related Support contracts.   

· Place are showing an outturn overspend of £3.0m. This is largely due to delays 

in delivering planned cost reductions on the waste contract of £2.6m and the 

Streets Ahead Contract of £2.6m. There are also emerging cost pressures from 

increased household waste volumes, reduced income from the sale of recyclable 

materials of £1.4m and £600k within the Market Services due to income 

pressures from difficult trading conditions.  These overspends are partly offset by 

reductions in spending across a number of areas within the Culture and 

Environment Service of £900k, sustained improvement in the Highways and 

Highway Network management of £800k and £2.3m of discretionary spend 

reductions across the portfolio.  

· Resources are showing a full year outturn reduction in expenditure of £930k. 

This is primarily due to the recovery of high value over payments in Housing 

Benefit of £645k, £377k increase in income for the Moorfoot Learning Centre and 

£268k reduction in expenditure in Legal due to recruitment delays.  This reduction 

in expenditure partly offsets an overspend in Commercial Services (Savings) of 

£242k from a shortfall in cashable procurement savings and £227k overspend in 

Transport and FM. 

· Policy, Performance & Communication are showing an overspend of £175k, 

primarily due to a delay in the advertising contract resulting in an 

underachievement of income. 

· Corporate are reporting an outturn a reduction in expenditure of £4.0m. This is 

mainly due to lower than anticipated redundancies costs of £2.6m and an 

improved position of £3.0m on the Capital Financing budget as a result of 

continuing low interest rates, improved investment income, reduced borrowing 

costs and capitalisation on the Sheffield Retail Quarter expenditure. These 

reductions in spending have been partly offset by a £1.6m transfer to a risk 

reserve to cover any potential delays or non-delivery of savings proposals in 

2016/17. This risk reserve will be vital in providing short term assistance to 

services which are struggling to deliver further savings, as a result of the ongoing 

government austerity cuts. The deployment of this reserve in 2016/17 will be a 

measure to ensure that the 2016/17 budget remains attainable.  

6. Full details of all reductions in spend and overspends within Portfolios are detailed in 

Appendix 1.  

 

Page 54



2015/16        Budget Monitoring – Outturn 
 

7. The main variations since Month 10 are: 

· CYPF: The outturn is broadly in line with the month 10 forecast position.   

· Communities: The outturn shows an improvement of £350k from the month 10 

forecast, due mainly to a £654k improvement in Care and Support as result of an 

asset taken at year end in relation to monies owed by the CCG for Joint 

packages of care and £134k saving in Commissioned Housing due to delay in 

implementation of new contracts. This improvement is partly offset by and 

adverse movement of £522k with Mental Health Commissioning purchasing 

budgets. 

· Place: The outturn shows an improvement of £839k from the month 10 forecast. 

This is mainly due to income received from contracts and income penalties of 

£1.0m.  This is offset by an adverse movement in Capital and Major Projects of 

£200k relating to property income.   

· Resources: The outturn shows an improvement of £194k, mainly due to 

reduction in spending of £313k within Central Costs on Former Employees’ 

Pensions, Court Costs and additional BR Admin Grant income. In addition, the 

Housing Benefits service is reporting additional income of £257k as a result of 

improved recovery of overpayments arising from the 2 government led fraud 

initiatives. These improvements have been partly offset by increased costs on 

the Refine project of £229k and an adverse movement of £298k due to increases 

in premises occupancy at Moorfoot in the last quarter. 

· Policy, Performance & Communication: The outturn shows an improvement of 

£194k mainly due to receipt of £135k additional Public Health reserves to match 

expenditure.  

· Corporate are reporting an adverse movement of £1.4m since month 10. This 

movement is mainly the result of the aforementioned creation of the risk reserve 

required to support potential 2016/17 in-year pressures.    

8. Movements from initial forecasts at month 3 

 

· The forecast outturn shows an improving position from the £13.4m forecast 

potential overspend reported in month 3 to the £561k reduction in spending at 

outturn.  This improvement reflects Portfolios’ attempts to reduce spending, 

lower than anticipated redundancies costs and an improved position on capital 

financing within the Corporate budget area, which have helped offset the 

significant pressures within the Communities and Place portfolios. The position 

month by month is shown in the following chart:  

 

Page 55



2015/16        Budget Monitoring – Outturn 

 

Carry Forward Requests 

9. It is proposed that the slight increase on the underspend position of £38k be added to 

the 2016/17 investment funded as agreed at Cabinet on the 9th March 2016. As with the 

previous approval, the Council Leader or delegated Cabinet Member in consultation with 

Cabinet colleagues will decide how specifically to allocate this funding. 

Public Health  

10. The Public Health ring-fenced grant is showing a £2.1m reduction in expenditure against 

the original approved budget. This is a £478k improvement on the month 10 position. 

Further details of the outturn position on Public Health are reported in Appendix 2.  

Housing Revenue Account 

11. The 2015-16 budget is based on an assumed in year surplus position of £10.9m which 

is to be used to fund the ongoing HRA Capital Investment Programme. In accordance 

with the HRA’s financial strategy any further in- year funds generated by the account will 

be used to provide further funding for the future HRA Capital Investment programme. 

 

12. As at month 12 the full year outturn position is a £6.9m overall improvement from 

budget. Further details of the Housing Revenue Account can be found in Appendix 3.  

 
 
 

 

 

Page 56



2015/16        Budget Monitoring – Outturn 
 

New Homes Bonus Fund  

  

£m 

Income Reserves as at 1/04/15 -6.0 

  

0.0 

 

Declared 15/16 NHB Grant -7.3 

 

Total Income -13.3 

   Expenditure 2015/16 Spend  4.3 

 

Future Years' Commitments 2.8 

 

Total Expenditure 7.1 

   

 

Funds Available  for Investment -6.2 

 
13. During the year New Homes Bonus has been used to regenerate areas and develop 

additional housing within the city including: 

· Support to the Sheffield Housing Company in creating homes in locations which 

struggle to generate adequate returns for private sector developers. 

· Reducing the number of long term empty houses in the city. 

· Redevelopment of the Arbourthorne estate, regenerating local centres and 

clearing derelict sites to encourage local house building. 

· Regeneration of Attercliffe through the development of the Olympic Legacy park 

site creating new schools and ultimately employment. This has involved the 

remediation of the site and subsequent development into building plots for 

commercial development. Expenditure on this activity has increased slightly 

above budget and approval is sought for an additional £50k of expenditure. 

 

Non-earmarked and earmarked Reserves 

 

14. Within the existing statutory and regulatory framework, it is the responsibility of the 

Intermit Executive Director of Resources to ensure that the Council has an adequate 

level of reserves and that there are clear protocols for their establishment and use. 

 

15. Included in the total is a figure of £12.6m or 3% of net revenue expenditure of non-

earmarked reserves. This is considered to be low but not inadequate based on the 

requirements of the Council. 

 

16. Work on the reserves balances as at 31 March 2016 is still being undertaken and is 

dependent on the completion of the statement of accounts.  However, the estimated 

balance of revenue reserves as at 31 March 2015 is shown in Appendix 4.   

Page 57



2015/16        Budget Monitoring – Outturn 
 

17. Earmarked reserves are set aside to meet known or predicted future liabilities, such as 

equal pay claims. These liabilities mean that the earmarked reserves are not normally 

available to fund the budget. 

 

18. Earmarked reserves also exist because of the need to smooth the significant 

payments made on programmes such as the Major Sporting Facilities (MSF) and PFI 

schemes over the 20 year plus terms of the underlying agreements.  In both cases we 

currently have a temporary surplus. However, over time this position will change, and 

future payments will be higher than our resources, so the reserves will be needed to 

support their primary purpose (from around 2017/18 onwards). 

 

19. Over the past few years, the Council has made significant use of the money from 

these reserves to fund expenditure on a temporary basis, and it is part of the financial 

plan to have the reserves refunded by the time the call on them is required.  The main 

temporary use has been to support investment in key change projects through Invest 

to Save which has now been fully repaid during 2015/16.  

 
20. During 2014/15 £22.9m was used to support the Pension Deficit early payment to 

deliver £2.6m of savings. These funds have been fully repaid in 2015/16. It is worth 

noting that the council plans to continue this strategy in 2016/17 by making an early 

payment of 2017/18 to 2019/20 pensions deficit contributions in return for a substantial 

saving. This utilisation of temporary balances can be seen in a number of the 

earmarked reserves movements for 2016/17 in Appendix 4 attached. 

 
21. The other substantial contribution to earmarked reserves in 2015/16 is the transfer of 

£25m to the MSF reserve following an accounting adjustment. These funds will be 

required to meet planned future expenditure. 

 

22. Further details on reserves and their use can be found in Appendix 4. 

 

Insurance Funds 

23. An independent review of the Insurance Account has been undertaken to identify the 

level of fund required. This includes: 

· Known outstanding liabilities. 

· Incurred but not reported liabilities (IBNR) 

· Claims previously paid by Municipal Mutual Insurance (one of the Council’s 

Insurers who went in to a form of receivership in the 1990’s)  

· Emerging claims 

· Uninsured asbestos related claims. 

 

Page 58



2015/16        Budget Monitoring – Outturn 
 

24. The Directors of MMI ‘triggered’ the scheme of arrangement under section 425 of the 

Companies Act 1985 (now section 899 of the Companies Act 2006). The Scheme 

provides that following the occurrence of a Trigger Event, a levy may be imposed on 

all those scheme creditors which, since the record date, have paid an amount or 

amounts in respect of established scheme liabilities which, together with the amount of 

elective defence costs paid by MMI on its behalf, exceeding £50,000 in aggregate. 

Additionally, payments made after the imposition of a Levy in respect of established 

scheme creditors will be made at a reduced rate (the payment percentage). 

 
25. Ernst Young are now responsible for the management of the MMI’s business, affairs 

and assets in accordance with the terms of the Scheme. Ernst Young have carried out 

a review of assets and liabilities of MMI and concluded that the initial rate of the levy 

would be 15%, which has now been paid.  The levy has recently been revised to 25% 

and the additional 10% difference is due to be paid by 12 May 2016. The levy will 

continue to be reviewed at least once every 12 months.  

 
26. The Council currently has a potential claw back of £4.2m with MMI and £582k relating 

to South Yorkshire Residuary Body (SYRB).   

 
27. The Insurance Account as at 31 March 2016 contains £21.9m; whilst assessed 

potential liabilities as at 31 March 2016 are £24.2m.  The Insurance Account is 

therefore 90% funded as at 31 March 2016. The council believes this is an adequate 

level of funding, given that not all potential liabilities will actually occur. 

 

Corporate Risk Register 

28. The Council maintains a Corporate Financial Risk Register which details the key 

financial risks facing the Council at a given point in time.  The most significant risks are 

summarised in Appendix 5 along with any actions being undertaken to manage each 

of the risks. 

 

Annual Treasury Management Review 

 

29. The Council is required by regulations issued under the Local Government Act 2003 to 

produce an annual treasury review of activities and the actual prudential and treasury 

indicators for 2015/16.  This review is needed to meet the requirements of both the 

CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management (the code) and the CIPFA 

Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (the Prudential Code).  During 

2015/16 the Full Council received the Annual Treasury Strategy, whilst Cabinet were 

presented with the Outturn Report. Reports were also taken to the Cabinet Member for 

Finance during the year.  

 

Page 59



2015/16        Budget Monitoring – Outturn 
 

30. The regulatory environment places responsibility on members for the review and 

scrutiny of treasury management policy and activities.  This report is therefore 

important in that respect, as it provides details of the outturn position for treasury 

activities and highlights compliance with the Council’s policies previously approved by 

members.   

 

31. The Annual Treasury Management Review is attached to this report as Appendix 6.  

 

Capital Summary 

 

32. The Outturn for 2015-16 is £40.8m (15%) below the approved Capital Programme. 

Project managers delivered a capital programme of £227.4m against an approved 

budget of £268.2m. This is £4.1m lower than the Outturn forecast last month and 

reflects lower delivery on all programmes except Housing which is £1.7m above the 

last forecast. 

 

33. Further details of the Capital Programme monitoring and projects for approval are 

reported in Appendices 7 to 7.1. 

 

Implications of this Report 

 

Financial implications 

34. The primary purpose of this report is to provide Members with information on the City 

Council’s Budget Monitoring position for 2015/16, and as such it does not make any 

recommendations which have additional financial implications for the City Council. 

 

Equal opportunities implications  

35. There are no specific equal opportunity implications arising from the recommendations 

in this report.   

 

Legal implications  

36. There are no specific legal implications arising from the recommendations in this 

report.   

 

Property implications 

37. Although this report deals, in part, with the Capital Programme, it does not, in itself, 

contain any property implications, nor are there any arising from the recommendations 

in this report. 
 

Page 60



2015/16        Budget Monitoring – Outturn 
 

Recommendations 
 

38. Members are asked to: 
 

(a) Note the updated information and management actions provided by this report 

on the 2015/16 Revenue Budget Outturn. 

 

(b) Approve the carry forward request detailed in paragraph 9. 

 
(c) Approve a further £50k from the New Homes Bonus fund to support the 

development of the regeneration of Attercliffe through the development of the 

Olympic Legacy Park as detailed in paragraph 13. 

 
(d) Approve the use of Public Health reserves to fund a number of projects as 

detailed in paragraph 8 of Appendix 2.  

 
(e) Approve the spend request as shown in paragraph 19 of Appendix 1. 

 

(f) In relation to the Capital Programme: 

i) Approve the proposed additions to the Capital Programme listed in 

Appendix 7.1, including the procurement strategies and delegate to the 

Interim Director of Finance and Commercial Services, or her nominated 

officer, the authority to award the relevant contracts following stage approval 

by the Capital Programme Group; 

ii) Approve the proposed variations, deletions and slippage in Appendix 7.1; 

and note 

iii) The latest position on the Capital Programme. 

Reasons for Recommendations 

39. To record formally changes to the Revenue Budget and the Capital Programme and 

gain Member approval for changes in line with Financial Regulations and to reset the 

capital programme in line with latest information. 
 

  

Page 61



2015/16        Budget Monitoring – Outturn 
 

Alternative options considered 

40. A number of alternative courses of action are considered as part of the process 

undertaken by Officers before decisions are recommended to Members.  The 

recommendations made to Members represent what Officers believe to be the best 

options available to the Council, in line with Council priorities, given the constraints on 

funding and the use to which funding is put within the Revenue Budget and the Capital 

Programme. 
 

 
 

Dave Phillips 
Interim Head of Finance 

Page 62



2015/16  Appendix 1 

Portfolio Revenue Budget Monitoring Reports 2015/16  

– As at 31 March 2016 

Children Young People and Families (CYPF) Portfolio  

Summary 

1. As at month 12 the Portfolio is reporting a full year outturn of an overspend of 

£311k, an adverse movement of £119k from the month 10 position. The key 

reasons for the forecast outturn position are: 

Business Strategy   

· This service is reporting a £697k reduction in spending. This includes 

additional Education Services Grant (ESG) income to that budgeted for of 

£650k. £147k reduction in spend in Information Systems due to staff 

vacancies and slippage in an upgrade project. These are partially offset by 

£118k overspend on Transport, due to increase demand pressures and a 

delay in anticipated savings due in the year. 

Children and Families - £1.2m overspend 

Over spending areas are: 

· Fieldwork Services – A net overspend of £1.6m due to: 

o Management and Business Support service is overspent by £122k 

due to a delay in the services’ MER, Fieldwork Service Areas; 

o Permanence and Throughcare are £1.4m net overspend mainly due 

to planned 2 year programme to recruit additional social workers in 

response to the pressure on and retention of social workers and 

review of Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE).  This has been partially 

mitigated by a managed reduction in the numbers social workers, as 

the continued investment in early intervention and prevention through 

the Building Successful Families programme has reduced the total 

caseloads across the city; 

o Multi-systemic Therapy is £189k overspent due to delays in the 

delivery of anticipated savings during in the early part of the year; 

and 

o Specialist Support Teams are overspent by £306k, reflecting an 

increase in unaccompanied children.  

Offset by: 

Page 63



2015/16  Appendix 1 

o Contact Contracts reduction in spending of £553k resulting from 

ongoing specific action being taken to reduce costs; and  

o £185k reduction in spend on legal fees, as are result of collaborative 

working between the services to deliver more efficient working 

practices.  

· Direct Payments and Short Breaks - £1.0m due to increase demand 

pressures, this also includes £250k as a result of the delay in anticipated 

savings during the year. 

· Provider Services – due to delays in anticipated savings on the integrated 

approach to service delivery between Health and Social Care of £300k. This 

has been partially mitigated by an improved position in Fostering Service of 

£82k and a further £54k savings in the service, leaving a net overspend of 

£164k. 

Areas of reduction in spending are: 

· Placements - £1.0m due to funds set aside to fund a potential increase in 

Special Guardianship Orders (£400k) has not been required In 2015/16 and 

the actual trend in the level of placement numbers and unit costs continued 

until the year end. 

· Early Intervention and Prevention - £781k due to savings on contracts, this 

is being offset by a reduced expected contribution of £250k from CCG 

towards Early Intervention and Prevention, leaving a net underspend of 

£531k. 

Inclusion and Learning Services and Children’s Commissioning  

· The service is reporting an outturn reduction in spending of £281k. This 

includes £171k reduction in spend in Education Psychology due to staff 

vacancies in the service, £52k reduction in spend in Advocacy and 

Challenge and £59k reduction in spend in CWLB following the transfer of 

activity to Learn Sheffield. 

· Lifelong Learning, Skills and Communities - £43k overspend,  

o £365k overspend relating to the Training Units, due to an unexpected 

reduction in government grant funding, which is being partially offset 

by savings from the MER which is in progress; 

o £50k overspend on the BIG Challenge because the expected income 

is not available and the planned expenditure for this project has been 

incurred.  

Offset by: 

Page 64



2015/16  Appendix 1 

 

o Youth Services underspend of £180k, mainly due to a reduction in 

spending within the Internal Community Youth Teams, as a result of 

staff vacancies against the 4 year budget programme; and  

o Strategic Support reduction in spending of £118k, due to staff 

vacancies and activities that have now ceased. 

Financial Results 

 
 

DSG 

2. The following is a summary of the variance position on DSG budgets at month 

12: 

 Month 10 
£000 

Month 11 
£000 

Month 12 
£000 

Business Strategy 43 (45) (1,089) 

Children and Families (71) (77) (106) 

Inclusion and Learning Services (273) (253) (287) 

Lifelong Learning, skills and Communities (10) (9) (111) 

 (311) (384) (1,593) 

 

Commentary 

3. The following commentary concentrates on the changes from the month 10 

position. 

Business Strategy 

4. A £697k reduction in spending (shown in the table above) relating to cash limit 

and £1.1m on DSG. 

5. The cash limit position is consistent with the month 10 position. The DSG 

position is an improvement of over £1.0m from month 10. This is due to £509k 

reduction in spend on Schools PFI Schemes and £315k reduction in spend on 

school contingency budgets because the funding was not required in 2015/16.  

Service Forecast FY FY Movement

Outturn Budget Variance from Month 

£000s £000s £000s 10

BUSINESS STRATEGY             4,588 5,285 (697) ó

CHILDREN & FAMILIES           62,947 61,701 1,246 ñ

INCLUSION & LEARNING SERVICES 344 625 (281) ò

LIFELONG LEARN, SKILL & COMMUN 9,875 9,832 43 ó

GRAND TOTAL 77,754 77,443 311 ñ

Page 65



2015/16  Appendix 1 

Children and Families  

6. A £1,2m overspend on cash limit (shown in the table above) and a £106k 

reduction in spend on DSG.  

7. The DSG position is consistent with the month 10 position. The cash limit is an 

adverse movement of £158k from the month 10 position, this is mainly due to 

the service incurring additional legal fees associated with a litigation case. 

Inclusion and Learning Service and Children’s Commissioning Unit 

8. A £281k reduction in spending on cash limit (shown in the table above) and a 

£287k reduction in spend on DSG.  

9. The DSG position is consistent with the month 10 position. The cash limit is an 

improvement of 111k from month 10. The improvement is due to additional staff 

savings and a reduction in planned commissions in the service. 

Lifelong Learning Skills and Communities 

10. A £43k overspend on cash limit (shown in the table above) and £111k reduction 

in spend on DSG. 

11. The cash limit position is consistent with the month 10 position. The DSG is an 

improvement of £101k from month 10.  This improvement is due to the slippage 

in an upgrade to the IT systems. This funding will be required in 2016/17 to 

upgrade the systems in order to deliver the 2016/17 savings. 

 

Communities Portfolio 

Summary 

12. As at month 12, the Portfolio has returned a full year outturn of an over spend 

of £952k. The key reasons for the outturn position are: 

Business Strategy  

· The minor overspend position for Business Strategy of £18k is mainly due to 

non-achievement of current and prior year savings in the Planning and 

Performance Service of £240k and additional legal fees on DoLs £101k. These 

overspends are partly offset by reduction in spend on Business Support 

salaries and mail/ insurance contracts of £241k and other minor movements. 

 Care & Support (over spend of £627k):  

· Access, Prevention and Reablement is showing a reduction in spend of £113k, 

this is the net position of a £258k underspend on staff, partially offset by a 

£144k overspend on equipment and adaptations.  

Page 66



2015/16  Appendix 1 

· Learning Disabilities returned an outturn of £963k overspent. This is made up of 

an over spend of £692k in purchasing and an additional £272k in LD 

Assessment and Care Management.  The overspend in the purchasing budget 

is made up of £1.6m of 2015/16 savings which have not been delivered, 

particularly around the work being done with the providers of Supported Living 

and Respite Care bringing prices in line with the LD Provider Framework. The 

savings for 2015-16 have been partly offset by funded pressures which have 

not played out in full within the year. Work is continuing in this area and will 

result in savings for future financial years.  There is also £272k overspend in LD 

Assessment & Care Management which is directly attributable to temporary 

staffing resources brought in from the Adults Service to increase review and re-

assessment rates within the service. 

· Long Term Support is showing an overspend of £1.1m.  This comprises the net 

position of an overspend in adults purchasing of £1.6m, with an underspend 

across the remainder of the service of £476k; this underspend is predominantly 

the saving from social work vacancies of £379k in the current establishment 

and £97k against Forge Centre due to reduction in contracts. 

· Provider Services is showing an underspend against budget of £333k.  There is 

a £357k reduction in spend on Carers in the Adult Placement Shared Lives 

Service.  City Wide Care Alarms reports an overspend of £392k as a result of 

lower income than budgeted.  Care4You Business and Performance and Head 

of Service Budgets report a combined £318k reduction in spend on staffing.  

Community Support Services report an underspend of £107k on salary costs. 

Reablement Services report an overspend of £58k which has arisen as a result 

of the service incurring additional staff costs relating to planned efficiencies 

delivered later than expected.  

· Contributions to Care has an over achievement of income £962k against 

budget.  The main overachievements are in Property Income £1.2m and 

Continuing Health Care Income £1.8m. This over performance is offset by a 

shortfall of £1.0m on fairer contributions because the numbers of service users 

is lower than the original budget assumptions due to business demand 

management and the application of eligibility criteria.  There is also a shortfall of 

£309k on ILF contributions, £446k Residential/Nursing income and £320k on 

Public Health Direct Payments.  

· The assets taken against the CCG for JPOC income should be matched 

against related over spends for liabilities taken in purchasing LD and Adults 

Social Care.  The net impact is £255k reduction in expenditure to that forecast. 

 

Page 67



2015/16  Appendix 1 

Commissioning (overspend of £1.0m):  

· A reduction in spend reported by Commissioned Housing of £925k against 

Housing Related Support Contracts due to contract changes and a delay in 

implementation of new contracts. 

· An overspend against Commissioned Mental Health Services £1.9m. This is 

made up of a £1.8m overspend in Mental Health purchasing and £139k 

overspend in the Older People’s Mental Health contract, both directly 

attributable to non-achievement of savings and increased demand. Further 

work is underway to assess increasing levels of demand with the purchasing 

budget for 2016-17. 

· An overspend on Public Health Drug and Alcohol (DACT) of £39k. This is made 

up of overspends within the Drug treatment areas on contract £116k and non-

contract of £132k, which is partly offset by an under spend in the DIP Contract 

payment of £118k. 

· An overspend of £108k on Public Health Community. This is mainly attributable 

to a £61k overspend on the Public Health Mental Health budget together with a 

£21k overspend on the Community Wellbeing Programme and a £13k 

overspend on Health Trainers. 

· Social Care Commissioning Service report a reduction in spend of £107k which 

relates to an under spend on staffing £203k partly offset by over spend with 

equipment provider £66k as a result of increased demand against that contract 

(net of CCG risk share contribution) and other minor overspends. 

Community Services (under spend of £64k):  

· There is an overspend of £213k in Locality Management, primarily relating to 

the anticipated non-achievement of 2015/16 savings targets. This is offset by 

pay savings and reduction of spend on materials in the Libraries Service of 

£277k. 

Housing General Fund (under spend of £675k): 

· The Housing General fund has out turned with an underspend £675k.  This is 

mainly due to lower than expected uptake of grants from the Local Assistance 

Scheme of £235k and a reduction in salary costs of £157k due to a high 

number of vacancies as a result of an MER which is due to be completed in 

July. A reduction in spend in the Homelessness Prevention and Repossession 

Prevention Funds of £40k and an over achievement of income across several 

business units where other councils or grant funders are contributing to costs 

already budgeted £239k.  

 

Page 68



2015/16  Appendix 1 

Financial Results 

 

 

Commentary 

13. The following commentary concentrates on the changes from the previous 

report at month 10. 

Business Strategy  

14. Has an adverse move in position of £29k which is predominantly due to 

increases in legal costs associated with Deprivation of Liberty cases. 

Care and Support   

15. Month 12 has shown movement in income and expenditure around JPOC 

clients of £201k (net) which impacts Contributions to Care £1.4m asset, Long 

Term Support £462k liability and LD £724k liability excluding this the main 

areas of movement are:- 

· Care and Support has seen a positive movement of £654k which is net of: 

o The whole movement in Contributions to Care is attributable to the 

JPOC asset.   

o An underlying improvement in Learning Disabilities position £664k 

(without the inclusion of the JPOC liability) mainly due to a reduction in 

the outturn for TUPE and Void and Vacancies £362k and a recognition 

of £364k Health income from the CCG. 

o A favourable movement in expenditure of £32k in Access, Prevention 

and Reablement due to reduced staffing costs, predominantly agency 

costs. 

o Long Term support reports an adverse move of £438k (without the 

inclusion of the JPOC liability), the majority of which is due to the costs 

of provision of additional Home Care services £315k with the remainder 

being residential placements not previously registered.  

Service Forecast FY FY Movement

Outturn Budget Variance from Month 

£000s £000s £000s 10

BUSINESS STRATEGY             7,776 7,758 18 ó

CARE AND SUPPORT              112,230 111,602 627 ò

COMMISSIONING    31,901 30,855 1,046 ñ

COMMUNITY SERVICES            7,879 7,943 (64) ó

HOUSING GENERAL FUND          3,860 4,535 (675) ó

GRAND TOTAL 163,646 162,694 952 ò

Page 69



2015/16  Appendix 1 

o Provider Services has a favourable move in the financial position of 

£182k mainly as a result of reduction in staffing costs in the Reablement 

Service.  

Commissioning  

16. The outturn for this service is showing an adverse movement of £318k. The 

main reasons are as follows: 

o Mental Health Commissioning is showing an adverse movement of 

£522k caused by an increase in demand in the MH purchasing budget of 

£539k mainly due to additional demand resulting from discharges of 

Section 117 clients from Nursing Care into Community Care.  

o Public Health Drug and Alcohol has a favourable movement of £39k. 

This is as a result of previously forecast expenditure not being realised. 

This movement is being offset by an adverse movement of £32k in 

Public Health Community. 

o Commissioned Housing reports a favourable move of £134k as a result 

of a delay in implementation of new contracts.  

o Social Care commissioning reports a favourable move of £66k mainly 

due to the reduced staffing costs in the Social Care Commissioning 

Team. 

Community Services  

17. The outturn position is showing a favourable movement of £14k as a result of a 

£104k reduction in spend on non-pay in Libraries, particularly on materials, 

equipment and IT.  There is an adverse movement in Locality Services of £91k 

as a result of additional expenditure including a payment to the Citizen’s Advice 

Bureau. 

18. Housing General Fund has a net favourable movement of £19k. This is mainly 

due to lower than expected demand from the Local Assistance Scheme.  

 

Approval request 

19. Adult social care had significant challenges over the last year, in particular 

financial pressure, greater integration with health and legislative change 

through the Care Act 2014. 

20. To manage these changes, the portfolio brought together a single change 

programme to ensure that the complex activity and drivers continue to be 

managed coherently. 

  

Page 70



2015/16  Appendix 1 

21. This report seeks approval for external spend of £180,000.  The funding for this 

spend is met within budgeted resources. 

22. The spend is with an organisation called Impower.  Their work will support us to 

better understand future demand through all our services, enabling us to target 

our increasingly scarce resources.  They will also provide expert advice on 

some specific aspects of managing demand for our services. 

23. There is a robust programme business case behind the spend, supported by 

significant financial benefits of up to £10.9m per year if all elements are 

implemented.  The appropriate procurement processes are in place.  The 

implications of not approving the spend would be missed opportunity to make 

savings while making improvements in the experience of those we support – 

meaning that equivalent cuts would need to be identified and made elsewhere.   

24. There are alternatives to this spend.  The Council could not undertake the work, 

which means the lost opportunity to make significant savings when they are 

most needed.  Alternatively the work could be resourced in a different way – by 

individual consultants on day rate, however the risk of being able to deliver on 

this basis is too great to be acceptable to the Council.  The short term and 

specialist nature of the support required is not suitable for direct recruitment. 

 

Place Portfolio 

Summary 

25. As at month 12 the Portfolio is forecasting a full year outturn of £3.0m 

overspend, an improvement of £839k from the month 10 position. The key 

reasons for the forecast outturn position are: 

Business Strategy & Regulation  

· This service is £3.0m over budget from delays in delivering planned cost 

reductions to the waste contract as a result of protracted negotiations with the 

provider of £2.6m and emerging pressures from the impact of increased 

households on waste volumes and reduced sale of materials income due to 

falling market prices caused by movements in the global economy of £1.4m. 

This is offset to some extent by cost reductions across the rest of the service of 

£1.0m. 

Regen & Development Services 

· This service is £1.8m over budget largely due to delays in delivering the 

planned cost reductions in the Streets Ahead programme (net £2.6m), offset by 

sustained net cost improvement trends in Highways and Highway Network 

Management of £800k. 

Page 71



2015/16  Appendix 1 

Culture & Environment  

· An outturn position of £1.4m under budget through a continuation of sustained 

net cost improvement trends within the Bereavement Services, Parks, City 

Centre Management and Sports Facilities activities of £900k and further cost 

reductions arising from staffing and discretionary spend reviews across the rest 

of the service of £500k. 

Capital & Major Projects 

· This service is showing an outturn of £100k over budget due to income 

pressures as a result of difficult trading conditions within the markets service of 

£600k, which were largely offset by cost reductions across the rest of the 

service of £500k. 

Creative Sheffield  

· This service is reporting an outturn position of £300k under budget as a result 

of both cost reductions and additional income across the whole service area. 

Financial Results 

 
 

Commentary 

26. The following commentary concentrates on the changes from the previous 

month. 

Business Strategy & Regulation 
 

27. A £600k improvement on the month 10 position, from additional income on the 

waste management contract and further reductions in spend across all other 

service areas following a review of commitments/balances. 

 
 
 
 

Service Forecast FY FY Movement

Outturn Budget Variance from Month 

£000s £000s £000s 10

BUSINESS STRATEGY & REGULATION 33,238 30,285 2,953 ò

CAPITAL & MAJOR PROJECTS      1,649 1,518 131 ñ

CREATIVE SHEFFIELD            3,692 4,039 (347) ó

CULTURE & ENVIRONMENT         42,673 44,116 (1,443) ó

MARKETING SHEFFIELD           677 748 (71) ó

PLACE PUBLIC HEALTH           - 0 0 ó

REGENERATION & DEVELOPMENT SER 83,938 82,187 1,751 ò

GRAND TOTAL 165,868 162,893 2,975 ò

Page 72



2015/16  Appendix 1 

Regen & Development Services  
 

28. A £400k improvement on the month 10 position, primarily from additional 

income received and contract performance penalties.  

 
Capital & Major Projects 
 

29. A £200k adverse movement arising from a small reduction in property related 

income, compared to the forecast at month 10. 

 

PPC Portfolio 

Summary 

30. As at month 12 the Portfolio is overspent by £175k, an improvement of £194k 

from the month 10 position. The key reasons for the outturn position are: 

· £348k overspend in Communications, which is due to under recovery of 

income as a result of a delay in the implementation of the new advertising 

contract.   

Offset by: 

· £123k reduction in spending in Policy and Improvement, due in the main to 

an £87k reduction in spending on PPC Business Support on employee 

costs and supplies and services.   

Financial Results 

 

Commentary 

31. The following commentary concentrates on the changes from the month 10 

position. 

Public Health 

32. This service has a breakeven outturn position due to the expenditure for the full 

year being matched by an equivalent Public Health Grant drawdown and 

transfer from the Public Health Reserve. This is an improvement of £135k from 

the month 10 position. 

Service Forecast FY FY Movement

Outturn Budget Variance from Month 

£000s £000s £000s 10

ACCOUNTABLE BODY ORGANISATIONS 17 17 0 ó

POLICY, PERFORMANCE & COMMUNICATION 3,278 3,103 175 ó

PUBLIC HEALTH (78) (78) 0 ò

GRAND TOTAL 3,217 3,042 175 ò

Page 73



2015/16  Appendix 1 

 

Resources Portfolio 

Summary 

33. As at month 12 the Portfolio is reporting a full year outturn of a reduction in 

spending of £930k, an improvement of £156k from the month 10 position. The 

key reasons for the outturn position are: 

· £242k overspend in Commercial Services (Savings) due to a shortfall in 

income from cashable procurement savings; 

· £227k overspend in Transport and FM due to £436k overspend on Moorfoot 

in relation to Cleaning and Rates and £360k on Managed Sites offset by 

one-off savings on Transport and Workplace. 

Offset by: 

· £377k reduction in spending in Human Resources due to over recovery of 

income on The Moorfoot Learning Centre and Capita costs not incurred on 

Systems and Business Services which will cause a pressure in 2016/17; 

· £268k reduction in spending in Legal mainly due to recruitment delays 

following the Achieving Change in September; 

· £99k reduction in spending in Central Costs due to an over spend of £251k 

on Court Costs and BR Admin Grant and £160k due to project costs 

incurred in relation to the insourcing of the Revs and Bens Service, offset 

by £122k reduction in spending on CTS Admin grant and £321k reduction 

in spending on Former Employee Pensions; and 

· £645k reduction in spending in Housing Benefit due to the recovery of high 

value over payments as a result of  DWP data-matching fraud and error 

initiatives. 

Page 74



2015/16  Appendix 1 

Financial Results 

 

Commentary 

34. The following commentary concentrates on the changes from the previous 

month. 

Commercial Services (Savings) 

35. An outturn of £242k overspend, due to a shortfall in income from cashable 

procurement savings. This is an adverse movement of £106k from the month 

10 position. 

36. The adverse movement from the month 10 position is due to the reversal of 

project charges that exceeded those approved for the Outdoor Advertising 

business case and other procurement savings identified that did not achieve 

their target. 

Finance  

37. An outturn of £57k reduction in spending, due to mainly to over recovery of 

income and savings on Employees from unfilled vacancies, reduced contractual 

hours and salary sacrifice. This is an adverse movement of £345k from the 

month 10 position. 

38. The adverse movement from the month 10 position is due to slippage on the 

Refine project (£229k) and historic system write-offs in respect of the Litigation 

Court Account for which provision is across all the Services but which is unable 

to be directly identified to a Service because of the age of the debt (£97k). 

 

 

Service Forecast FY FY Movement

Outturn Budget Variance from Month 

£000s £000s £000s

BUSINESS CHANGE & INFORMATION SOLUTIONS 1,071 1,096 (25) ó

COMMERCIAL SERVICES           102 112 (10) ó

COMMERCIAL SERVICES (SAVINGS) (1,386) (1,628) 242 ñ

CUSTOMER SERVICES             1,410 1,363 47 ó

FINANCE                       1,775 1,832 (57) ñ

HUMAN RESOURCES               1,041 1,418 (377) ò

LEGAL SERVICES                3,161 3,429 (268) ò

RESOURCES MANAGEMENT & PLANNING   243 208 35 ó

TRANSPORT AND FACILITIES MGT  35,431 35,204 227 ñ

TOTAL 42,848 43,034 (186) ñ

CENTRAL COSTS                 15,409 15,508 (99) ò

HOUSING BENEFIT (239) 406 (645) ò

GRAND TOTAL 58,018 58,948 (930) ò

Page 75



2015/16  Appendix 1 

Human Resources 

39. An outturn of £377k reduction in spending, due to over recovery of income on 

The Moorfoot Learning Centre and Capita costs not incurred on Systems and 

Business Services which will cause a pressure in 2016/17. This is an 

improvement of £239k from the month 10 position. 

40. The improvement from the month 10 position is mainly on HR Core in relation 

to Capita system costs which will now be incurred in 2016/17 and increased 

income from Moorfoot Learning Centre. 

Legal Services 

41. An outturn of £268k reduction in spending, due to recruitment delays following 

the Achieving Change in September. This is an improvement of £107k from the 

month 10 position. 

42. The improvement from the month 10 position is due to improved income on 

Legal Governance and Social Care and also due to recruitment delays in Social 

Care. 

Transport and Facilities Management 

43. An outturn of £227k overspend, due to £436k over spend on Moorfoot in 

relation to Cleaning and Rates and £360k on Managed Sites offset by one-off 

savings on Transport and Workplace. This is an adverse movement of £298k 

from the month 10 position. 

44. The adverse movement from the month 10 position is due to increases in 

premises occupancy at Moorfoot in the last quarter. 

Central Costs 

45. An outturn of £99k reduction in spending, due to £160k of project costs incurred 

in relation to the insourcing of the Revs and Bens Service and an overspend of 

£251k on Court Costs and BR Admin Grant. These are offset by £122k 

reduction in spending on CTS Admin grant and a £321k reduction in spending 

on Former Employee Pensions. This is an improvement of £313k from the 

month 10 position. 

46. The improvement from the month 10 position is due to a reduction in spending 

on Former Employees Pensions, Court Costs and Business Rates 

Administration Grant. 

Housing Benefit  

47. An outturn of £584k reduction in spending, due to DWP data matching  fraud 

and error initiatives which have generated high value overpayments to be 

recovered. This is an improvement of £257k from the month 10 position. 

Page 76



2015/16  Appendix 1 

48. The improvement from the month 10 position is due in part to the improved 

recovery of overpayments arising from the 2 government led fraud initiatives. 

Corporate 

Summary 

49. The table below shows the items which are classified as Corporate and which 

include: 

 

· Corporate Budget Items & Corporate Savings:   

(i) corporate wide budgets that are not allocated to individual services / 

portfolios, including capital financing costs and the provision for 

redundancy / severance costs, and;  

(ii) the budgeted saving on the review of enhancements and the budgeted 

saving from improved sundry debt collection. 

· Corporate income: Revenue Support Grant, locally retained business rates 

and Council tax income, some specific grant income and contributions 

to/from reserves. 

Commentary 

50. Corporate are reporting an outturn a reduction in expenditure of £4.0m. This is 

mainly due to lower than anticipated redundancies costs of £2.6m and an 

improved position of £3.0m on the Capital Financing budget as a result of 

continuing low interest rates, improved investment income, reduced borrowing 

costs and capitalisation on the Sheffield Retail Quarter expenditure. These 

reductions in spending have been partly offset by a £1.6m transfer to risk 

reserve to cover any potential delays or non-delivery of savings proposal in 

2016/17. This risk reserve will be vital in providing short term assistance to 

services which are struggling to deliver further savings, as a result of the 

ongoing government austerity cuts. The deployment of this reserve in 2016/17 

is a measure to ensure that the 2016/17 budget remains attainable.  

 

 

FY Outturn FY Budget

FY 

Variance

£'000 £'000 £'000

Corporate Budget Items & Savings Proposals 12,748 16,061 (3,313)

Income from Council Tax, RSG, NNDR, other grants and reserves (481,811) (481,081) (730)

Total Corporate Budgets (469,063) (465,020) (4,043)

Page 77



 

Page 78



2015/16  Appendix 2 
 

 

PUBLIC HEALTH BUDGET MONITORING AS AT 

 31st March 2016  
 

Purpose of the Report 

1. To report on the 2015/16 Public Health grant spend across the Council for the 

month ending 31st March 2016 

2. The report provides details of the full year spend of Public Health grant compared to 

budget.  

3. The net reported position for each portfolio/service area would normally be zero as 

public health spend is matched by a drawdown of public health grant. For the 

purposes of this report, and in order to identify where corrective action may be 

necessary, we have shown actual expenditure compared to budget where there is 

an underspend position.  Overspends which will affect Portfolios’ revenue positions 

are described in the narrative sections contained within Appendix 1. 
 

Summary 

4. At outturn the overall position was a reduction in spending of £2.1m which is 

summarised in the table below. 

Table 1 

Portfolio Full Year 

Expenditure 

Full Year 

Expenditure 

Budget 

Full Year 

Variance 

at m12 

FY 

Variance 

Forecast 

at m10 

Movement 

from Prior 

Month 

CYPF 14,874 15,663 (789) (647) (142) 

Communities 13,603 13,997 (394) (444) 50 

Place 2,875 3,411 (536) (515) (21) 

Director of PH 1,958 2,292 (334) 31 (365) 

Total 

Expenditure 

33,310 35,363 

 

(2053) (1575) (478) 

 

 

 

Page 79



2015/16  Appendix 2 
 

 

5. Key reasons for the underspend are: 

o CYPF has reported an underspend of £789k.  This is due to the delayed start 

on the Best Start project of £150k, contract values being lower than budgeted 

to the value of £329k, reduction in spending of £111k on staffing due to 

vacancy management and staff leaving on VER/VS, unrealised accruals from 

2014/15 of £105k within the Genitourinary Medicine (GUM) budget due to the 

activity commissioned no longer eligible for funding and not payable and the 

repayment to NHSE £75k less than anticipated. 

o The outturn position within the in Communities portfolio is £393k of which 

£193k is uncommitted funds that were planned to offset in-year grant savings. 

o Place reported a £492k reduction in spending in mainly as a result of projects 

being put on hold in anticipation of a requirement to fund the in-year grant cut. 

o £390k underspend in DPH mainly as a result of achieving the in year cuts and 

not realising a 2014/15 year end liability in respect of GP Health Checks. 

Table 2 

Public Health Financing 

 

Income Reserves as at 1/04/15 -2.0 

 

Original PH Grant Award -34.2 

 

In-Year Cut 1.9 

 

Total Income -34.3 

   Expenditure 2015/16 Spend  33.3 

 

Future Years' Commitments 0.8 

 

Total Expenditure 34.1 

   

 

PH reserve available for use -0.2 

 

6. Table 1 under paragraph 4 compares the total Public Health spend against the 

Council approved 2015/16 budget. It does not account for the in-year grant cut and 

revised allocations committed against Public health reserves.  

 

7. Table 2 above shows the financing of the Public Health spend for the year, the in- 

year grant cut, future year’s commitments and the movement on the reserve.  £0.2m 

of the public health reserve is still available for use.  

 

 

 

 

Page 80



2015/16  Appendix 2 
 

 

 

Approval Requests 

8. Approval is requested to use £0.8m of Public Health reserves to fund Future Years’ 

Commitments as highlighted in table 2 above. A breakdown of the projects for 

approval is as follows: 

 

 

£000

Shortfall in grant to support 2016/17 investment 176

Investment pot for one off funding to Voluntary organisations 45

Re-phasing of Sheffield Hospital’s savings 500

Communications budget 50

Temporary investment in to Communities team 59

One-off investment in to the Smoking & Tobacco Services 10

Total 840

Page 81



 

Page 82



2015/16  Appendix 3 
 
 

 

Communities Portfolio 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

HRA Revenue Budget Monitoring 2015/16– as at March 

Purpose of this Report 

1. To provide a summary report on the HRA 2015/2016 revenue budget for 

the month ending 31 March 2016, and agree any actions necessary. 

2. The content of this report will be used as the basis of the content of the 

budget monitoring report to the Executive Management Team and to 

Members. 

Summary 

3. The HRA Business Plan is based on the principle of ensuring that 

investment and services required for council housing is met by income 

raised in the HRA. 

4. The 2015-16 budget is based on an assumed in year surplus position of 

£10.9m which is to be used to fund the ongoing HRA Capital Investment 

Programme. In accordance with the HRA’s financial strategy any further 

in- year funds generated by the account will be used to provide further 

funding for the future HRA Capital Investment programme. 

5. As at month 12 the full year outturn position is a £6.9m overall 

improvement from budget. As such, the funding contribution to the 

capital investment programme will now be revised from £10.9m to 

£17.8m (shown in the table). This is in line with the HRA Business Plan 

which sets out the Council’s plans and priorities for council housing over 

the next five years. Capital investment is to be made on improving 

council housing with a focus on works such as replacement heating 

systems, insulation and energy efficiency, new roofs, improvements to 

communal areas as well as building or buying new/replacement council 

housing. 

6. Main areas contributing to the outturn include a net increase in income of 

£160k resulting from increased grant income and a reduced level of bad 

debt provision offset by a lower than budgeted service charge income. 

Expenditure on housing repairs and maintenance was £127k higher than 

budget mainly due to vacant property turnover. Final depreciation costs 

were also £114k higher than budget. However, these are offset by a £7m 

reduction in overall running costs. Of this £1.7m relates to staffing as a 

result of turnover and vacancy savings, £3.2m of general running and 

Page 83



2015/16  Appendix 3 
 
 

 

operating expenses (£0.8m of this will be rolled forward to 2016/17 to 

cover expenditure commitments on projects such as Going Local and 

Allocations Policy) and £2.1m resulting from savings and the re-profiling 

of some projects into future years. 

 

7. Financial Results 

 
 
 
Community Heating 

        The budgeted position for Community Heating is a draw down from 

Community Heating reserves of £338k.  As at month 12 the position is a 

draw down from reserves of £37k resulting in a saving of £301k.  

This is mainly due to re-profiling the implementation of the heat metering 

scheme and revised gas costs information. 

 

Community Heating

FY Outturn 

£000's

FY Budget 

£000's

FY Variance 

£000's

Movement 

from 

Month 11

Income (3,014) (2,760) (254)  Ý    

Expenditure 3,051 3,098 (47) ß

37 338 (301)  

Page 84



2015/16  Appendix 3 
 
 

 

Housing Revenue Account Risks 

        There are a number of future risks and uncertainties that could impact on 

the 30 year HRA business plan.  As well as the introduction of Universal 

Credit, the Government has announced a number of further changes in 

the Housing and Planning bill and Welfare Reform and Work bill. These 

include a revision to social housing rent policy, which will reduce rents for 

the next four years. This will have a considerable impact on the 

resources available to the HRA. In addition, the Government’s “Pay to 

Stay” proposals and other changes in the Housing and Planning bill will 

impact on both tenants and the HRA business plan. Work is continually 

ongoing to assess the financial impact of these. Other identified risks to 

the HRA are: 

· Interest rates:  fluctuations in the future levels of interest rates have 

always been recognised as a risk to the HRA. 

· Repairs and Maintenance:  existing and emerging risks within the 

revenue repairs budget include unexpected increased demand (for 

example due to adverse weather conditions) and future changes to 

contractual arrangements. 

Page 85



 

Page 86



R
e

s
e

rv
e

s
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 4
 

B
a

la
n

c
e

 a
t 

3
1
/0

3
/1

5

M
o

v
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 

2
0
1
5
/1

6

B
a

la
n

c
e

 a
t 

3
1
/0

3
/1

6

M
o

v
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 

2
0
1
6
/1

7

B
a

la
n

c
e

 a
t 

3
1
/0

3
/1

7
E

x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 

D
e

s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n
£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

N
o

n
-e

a
r
m

a
r
k
e

d
 R

e
s
e

r
v
e

s

G
e
n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n
d
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
1
1
,1

8
6

1
,4

1
3

1
2
,5

9
9

0
1
2
,5

9
9

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
’s

 w
o
rk

in
g
 b

a
la

n
c
e
: 

u
s
e
d
 a

s
 a

 l
a
s
t 

re
s
o
rt

 f
o
r 

e
m

e
rg

e
n
c
y
 

s
p
e
n
d
. 

L
e
v
e
l 
a
t 

ju
s
t 

u
n
d
e
r 

3
%

 o
f 
n
e
t 

s
p
e
n
d
in

g
 b

e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

s
 l
o
w

 c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 

to
 m

o
s
t 

L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
. 

T
h
is

 r
e
s
e
rv

e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 t

h
e
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
 u

n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 

o
f 
£
5
6
1
k
.

1
1
,1

8
6

1
,4

1
3

1
2
,5

9
9

0
1
2
,5

9
9

E
a

r
m

a
r
k
e

d
 R

e
s
e

r
v
e

s

In
v
e
s
t 

to
 S

a
v
e
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
:

P
ro

je
c
ts

3
,1

1
4

(3
,1

1
4
)

0
0

0

C
a
p
it
a
 C

o
n
tr

a
c
t

(4
,4

0
4
)

4
,4

0
4

0
0

0

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

F
ir
s
t

(9
,9

1
4
)

9
,9

1
4

0
0

0

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

F
u
n
d

3
,9

5
9

(3
,9

5
9
)

0
0

0

T
o

ta
l 

In
v
e

s
t 

to
 S

a
v
e

 R
e

s
e

r
v
e

:
(7

,2
4
5
)

7
,2

4
5

0
0

0

In
v
e

s
t 

to
 S

a
v
e

 P
o

s
t 

2
0
1
5

0
(2

,1
1
3
)

(2
,1

1
3
)

2
,4

7
7

3
6
4

T
h
e
 r

e
s
e
rv

e
 r

e
p
la

c
e
s
 t

h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
In

v
e
s
t 

to
 S

a
v
e
 a

n
d
 w

il
l 
u
s
e
d
 t

o
 f
u
n
d
 n

e
w

 

tr
a
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 a
im

e
d
 a

t 
d
e
li
v
e
ri
n
g
 l
o
n
g
 t

e
rm

 r
e
v
e
n
u
e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
.

P
F

I 
R

e
s
e
rv

e
7
,5

9
1

9
,3

8
8

1
6
,9

7
9

(3
2
,2

1
0
)

(1
5
,2

3
2
)

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 P

F
I 
R

e
s
e
rv

e
3
,5

7
4

7
,7

5
7

1
1
,3

3
1

3
,9

0
0

1
5
,2

3
1

T
o

ta
l 

P
F

I 
R

e
s
e

r
v
e

1
1
,1

6
5

1
7
,1

4
5

2
8
,3

1
0

(2
8
,3

1
0
)

0

M
a

jo
r
 S

p
o

r
ti

n
g

 F
a

c
il

it
ie

s
1
5
,0

6
4

2
5
,0

5
4

4
0
,1

1
8

(8
,8

3
0
)

3
1
,2

8
8

T
h
is

 r
e
s
e
rv

e
 i
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 f
u
n
d
 t

h
e
 f
u
tu

re
 c

o
s
ts

 o
f 
th

e
 M

a
jo

r 
S

p
o
rt

in
g
 

F
a
c
il
it
ie

s
 (

re
 P

o
n
d
s
 F

o
rg

e
, 

D
o
n
 V

a
ll
e
y
 S

ta
d
iu

m
 a

n
d
 H

il
ls

b
o
ro

u
g
h
 L

e
is

u
re

 

C
e
n
tr

e
).

 H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 £
8
.5

m
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 f
u
n
d
s
 w

e
re

 m
a
d
e
 a

v
a
il
a
b
le

 o
n
 a

 

te
m

p
o
ra

ry
 b

a
s
is

 f
o
r 

th
e
 P

e
n
s
io

n
 D

e
fi
c
it
 e

a
rl
y
 p

a
y
m

e
n
t 

in
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
 b

u
t 

h
a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 f
u
ll
y
 r

e
p
a
id

 i
n
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
. 

 F
o
ll
o
w

in
g
 a

n
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 a

d
ju

s
tm

e
n
t,

 t
h
e
re

 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

 s
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
l 
c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 o

f 
£
2
5
m

 t
o
 t

h
is

 r
e
s
e
rv

e
 i
n
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
. 

T
h
e
s
e
 f
u
n
d
s
 w

il
l 
b
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 

p
la

n
n
e
d
 f
u
tu

re
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

.

N
e

w
 H

o
m

e
s
 B

o
n

u
s

1
,9

2
2

3
,6

0
5

5
,5

2
7

9
1
8

6
,4

4
5

T
h
is

 r
e
s
e
rv

e
 i
s
 e

a
rm

a
rk

e
d
 t

o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 

C
it
y
.

In
s
u

r
a

n
c
e

 F
u

n
d

 R
e

s
e

r
v
e

1
1
,5

1
9

(8
6
6
)

1
0
,6

5
3

0
1
0
,6

5
3

T
h
is

 r
e
s
e
rv

e
 i
s
 s

e
t 

a
s
id

e
 t

o
 c

o
v
e
r 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
in

s
u
ra

n
c
e
 c

la
im

s
 m

a
d
e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

th
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il
.

P
u

b
li

c
 H

e
a

lt
h

2
,0

0
5

(9
7
3
)

1
,0

3
2

0
1
,0

3
2

D
u
ri
n
g
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 t

h
e
 D

o
H

 a
ll
o
c
a
te

d
 P

u
b
li
c
 H

e
a
lt
h
 G

ra
n
t 

to
 e

n
a
b
le

 l
o
c
a
l 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 (

L
A

) 
to

 d
is

c
h
a
rg

e
 t

h
e
ir
 n

e
w

 p
u
b
li
c
 h

e
a
lt
h
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

il
it
ie

s
. 

G
ra

n
t 

c
o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 f
o
r 

th
is

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
s
 t

h
e
 L

A
 t

o
 t

ra
n
s
fe

r 
a
n
y
 u

n
s
p
e
n
t 

fu
n
d
s
 t

o
 

re
s
e
rv

e
s
 f
o
r 

u
s
e
 i
n
 f
u
tu

re
s
 y

e
a
rs

. 

O
th

e
r
 e

a
r
m

a
r
k
e

d
4
3
,0

6
2

2
0
,0

2
6

6
3
,0

8
8

(1
9
,9

7
0
)

4
3
,1

1
8

V
a
ri
o
u
s
 e

a
rm

a
rk

e
d
 f
u
n
d
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 E

q
u
a
l 
P

a
y
 P

ro
v
is

io
n
s
, 

R
e
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
ie

s
, 

S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 P
re

s
s
u
re

s
, 

 B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 R

a
te

 A
p
p
e
a
ls

 a
n
d
 p

o
rt

fo
li
o
 r

e
s
e
rv

e
s
 a

s
 

a
g
re

e
d
 b

y
 C

a
b
in

e
t 

in
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
rs

 f
o
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 i
s
s
u
e
s
 e

.g
. 

T
ro

u
b
le

d
 F

a
m

il
ie

s
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

. 
T
h
e
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 2

0
1
6
/1

7
 i
s
 m

a
in

ly
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 

th
e
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 t

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 t

h
e
 e

a
rl
y
 p

e
n
s
io

n
 d

e
fi
c
it
 

T
o

ta
l 

E
a

r
m

a
r
k
e

d
 R

e
s
e

r
v
e

s
7
7
,4

9
1

7
1
,2

3
6

1
4
6
,6

1
5

(5
3
,7

1
5
)

9
2
,9

0
0

T
o

ta
l 

R
e

v
e

n
u

e
 R

e
s
e

r
v
e

s
8
8
,6

7
7

7
2
,6

4
9

1
5
9
,2

1
4

(5
3
,7

1
5
)

1
0
5
,4

9
9

T
h
is

 r
e
s
e
rv

e
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 u

p
 f
ro

n
t 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

in
 t

h
e
 C

a
p
it
a
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

(m
a
in

ly
 I
C

T
 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t)

 a
n
d
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 (
e
.g

. 
p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

s
a
v
in

g
s
; 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 f
in

a
n
c
e
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 r

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il
’s

 f
in

a
n
c
e
 

s
y
s
te

m
 a

n
d
 C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

F
ir
s
t)

. 
T
h
e
s
e
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 o

n
 a

n
 

in
v
e
s
t-

to
-s

a
v
e
 b

a
s
is

 w
it
h
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 b

e
in

g
 u

s
e
d
 i
n
 t

w
o
 w

a
y
s
, 

to
 r

e
p
a
y
 t

h
e
 

re
s
e
rv

e
 b

y
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
 a

n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 t

h
e
 r

e
v
e
n
u
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t,

 £
8
.6

m
 i
n
 

2
0
1
6
/1

7
. 

T
h
e
 P

F
I 
re

s
e
rv

e
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ts

 g
ra

n
t 

w
e
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 i
n
 a

d
v
a
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
e
d
 

to
 m

a
k
e
 p

a
y
m

e
n
ts

. 
It
 i
s
 s

e
t 

a
s
id

e
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 w
e
 c

a
n
 c

o
v
e
r 

th
e
 c

o
s
t 

o
f 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 i
n
 f
u
tu

re
 y

e
a
rs

. 
 D

u
ri
n
g
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
 £

9
.9

m
 w

a
s
 u

s
e
d
 t

o
 f
u
n
d
 t

h
e
 

P
e
n
s
io

n
 D

e
fi
c
it
 e

a
rl
y
 p

a
y
m

e
n
t 

w
h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n
 f
u
ll
y
 r

e
p
a
id

 i
n
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
. 

T
h
e
 £

2
8
m

 S
u
rp

lu
s
 o

n
 t

h
is

 r
e
s
e
rv

e
 a

s
 a

t 
3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
6
 w

il
l 
b
e
 u

s
e
d
 t

o
 f
u
n
d
 a

 

P
e
n
s
io

n
s
 D

e
fi
c
it
 e

a
rl
y
 p

a
y
m

e
n
t 

p
la

n
n
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
1
6
/1

7
. 

T
h
is

 e
a
rl
y
 p

a
y
m

e
n
t 

w
il
l 
d
e
li
v
e
ry

 s
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
l 
s
a
v
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
e
rv

e
s
 w

il
l 
b
e
 f
u
ll
y
 r

e
p
a
id

 t
h
e
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 2

0
1
7
/1

8
.

Page 87



 

Page 88



Appendix 5   

CORPORATE RISK REGISTER 

This Appendix provides a brief overview of the main financial risks facing the 

Council in 2016/17.  A more detailed schedule of these risks will be monitored 

by the Executive Management Team to ensure that the risks are mitigated. 

Corporate Risks 

2016/17 Budget Savings & Emerging Pressures 

1. There will need to be robust monitoring in order to ensure that the level of 

savings required for a balanced budget in 2016/17 are achieved, 

especially given the cumulative impact of £300m of savings over the last 

five years (2011-16), and furthermore the backdrop of continuing 

reductions in Government grant from 2016/17 onwards.   

2. Whilst preparing the budget 2016/17, officers identified numerous 

pressures which, if left unchecked, could lead to significant overspends 

in 2016/17 and beyond. The following pressures have been highlighted 

because they present the highest degree of uncertainty. 

Capital financing costs 

3. The Council currently maintains a substantial but prudent under borrowed 

position to help support the revenue budget and mitigate residual 

counterparty default risk on cash investments. In operating with an under 

borrowed position the Council exposes itself to interest-rate risk. 

Recognising this, Treasury maintain a regular dialogue with the Director 

of Finance and the Executive Director of Resources to monitoring the 

risk and review mitigation opportunities. 

Business Rates 

4. Following the advent of the Government’s Business Rates Retention 

Scheme in April 2013, a substantial proportion of risk has been 

transferred to local government, particularly in relation to appeals, 

charitable relief, tax avoidance, hardship relief and negative growth.  The 

issue of appeals dating as far back as the 2005 rating list is the greatest 

risk causing concern across all authorities.  

5. As at 31st March 2016, there were over 1500 properties with a rateable 

value of approximately £191m under appeal in Sheffield.  There have 

been a large number of appeals lodged in the last two years relating to 

GP Surgeries, ATM’s and Virgin Media.  The decision by the Valuation 

Page 89



Tribunal to significantly lower the rateable value of GP’s Surgeries in 

addition to the Government announcement to move to full academisation 

of schools will have a material impact on the business rates revenues 

collectable by Sheffield City Council in 2016/17 and beyond. 

6. Due to the uncertainty around these factors a prudent provision was 

taken during 2016/17 to mitigate the loss of income as a result of 

successful appeals. Actual trends on appeals were monitored in 2015/16, 

with any revised estimates of the impact of appeals forming part of the 

2016/17 budget process. The imminent revaluation by the VOA which will 

take affect from April 2017 means that there is potential for a large 

amount of appeals in the years to follow.  

Implementation of savings proposals 

7. The risk of delivering savings in 2016/17 in specific areas such as adult 

social care and waste management is considerable, given the increasing 

demand pressures and the levels of savings that have been achieved in 

previous years. To mitigate this, officers are working on the safe and 

legal implementation of budget proposals by: 

· Ensuring that there is a thorough understanding of the impact of 

proposals on different groups and communities, including 

undertaking Equality Impact Assessments for budget proposals and 

discussed with Cabinet Members 

· Carrying out appropriate, meaningful consultation activity with 

affected communities and stakeholders, and ensuring that where 

the proposal affects a supplier or provider, that they undertake 

appropriate consultation and equalities work with service users. 

· Discussing budget proposals with affected members of staff in 

advance of them being made public, and putting in place MER 

processes where required, in consultation with HR.  

Medium Term Financial Position 

8. On 14 October 2015 Cabinet considered a report of the Executive 

Director of Resources entitled Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 

2016/17 to 2020/21.  This report provided an update of the Council’s 

MTFS to reflect the budget decision of the Council for 2015/16 and the 

potential impact on the next 5 years of the Government’s plans for deficit 

reduction. This report sets the planning scenarios for the medium term.  

9. The report on the MTFS indicated that there would be ongoing reductions 

in Revenue Support Grant (RSG) of 20% or £23.2m per annum over the 

five year period to 2020/21.  Following the autumn statement released in 

Page 90



December 2015, the actual RSG cuts have been identified as circa £79m 

by 2019/20.    

10. The Council’s financial position is significantly determined by the level of 

Business Rates and Council Tax income.  Each of these may be subject 

to considerable volatility and will require close monitoring and a focus on 

delivering economic growth to increase our income and on delivering 

outcomes jointly with other public sector bodies and partners. 

11. The Medium Term Financial Strategy for the next five years covering 

2017/18 – 2021/22 is currently being reviewed and will be presented to 

Cabinet in September 2016. 

Pension Fund 

12. Bodies whose Pension liability is backed by the Council are likely to find 

the cost of the scheme a significant burden in the current economic 

context.  If they become insolvent the resulting liability may involve 

significant cost to the Council.  

13. As at March 2013 the triennial review for pensions highlighted the total 

liability underwritten by the Council for external bodies was £17.2m. 

However more up to date information from the pension fund seems to 

suggest that these liabilities may have increased as a result of 

universally low bond yields in the fund. The full liability will be known 

following the results of the triennial review which is currently being 

undertaken.  

Economic Climate 

14. There is potential for current adverse economic conditions to result in 

increased costs (e.g. increased homelessness cases) or reduced 

revenues. 

15. The Council seeks to maintain adequate financial reserves to mitigate the 

impact of unforeseen circumstances. 

External Funding 

16. The Council utilises many different grant regimes, for example central 

government and EU.  Delivering projects that are grant funded involves 

an element of risk of grant claw back where agreed terms and conditions 

are not stringently adhered to and evidenced by portfolios. In order to 

minimise risk strong project management skills and sound financial 

controls are required by Project Managers along with adherence to the 

Leader’s Scheme of Delegation to approve external funding bids. 

Page 91



17. As SCC funding reduces, portfolios are increasingly seeking out new 

sources of external funding, both capital and revenue. EU funding 

contracts have more complex conditions, require greater evidence to 

substantiate expenditure claims and are less flexible on timescales and 

output delivery targets.  This increases the inherent risk in projects which 

are EU funded.  Furthermore as the Council reduces its staff resources a 

combination of fewer staff and less experienced staff increases the risk 

of non-compliance with the funding contract conditions and exposes the 

authority to potential financial claw back. 

18. Moreover, the pressure on the General Fund means that Service 

Managers are forced to seek more external funding such that the general 

level of risk associated with grants is increasing because of the 

additional workload this creates amongst reduced and potentially 

inexperienced staff. 

Treasury Management 

19. The Council has been proactively managing counter-party risk since the 

credit crunch of 2008. Counterparty risk arises where we have cash 

exposure to bank and financial institutions who may default on their 

obligations to repay to us sums invested. Counterparty risk has 

somewhat diminished over the last financial year as banks have been 

obliged to improve their capital funding positions to mitigate against 

future financial shocks. The Council is continuing to mitigate counterparty 

risk through a prudent investment strategy, placing the majority of surplus 

cash in AAA highly liquid and diversified funds. 

20. As part of the 2016/17 budget process, we are developing the Treasury 

Management and Investment Strategies, both of which were based on 

discussions with members and senior officers about our risk appetite. 

This will include a review of our counter-party risk to ensure it is reflective 

of the relative risks present in the economy without being unduly 

conservative for the improving UK economic position. 

21. The Council is also actively managing its longer term need for cash. 

Cash flow requirements show that the Council will require new borrowing 

in the coming years to finance capital investment. With interest-rates 

expected to rise from their current historic lows the Council is remaining 

vigilant to interest-rate risk, and will draw down loans in a timely manner 

to militate against borrowing costs rising above our target rates. 

22. The Council is continuing its efforts to ensure full compliance with the 

increasingly stringent requirements of Payment Card Industry Data 

Page 92



Security Standard (PCI DSS). PCI DSS is a proprietary information 

security standard for organizations that handle branded credit cards from 

the major card schemes including Visa, MasterCard and American 

Express.  

23. As part of the 15/16 and 16/17 savings challenge, the Council is 

exploring the options of making early payments to some of its major 

suppliers in return for a saving on the contract cost. To date agreements 

have been reached with 3 suppliers and others are being considered. 

There is a risk to the Council that having received payment that these 

companies may fail to deliver the services. This is mitigated by the 

existing contract protections, financial evaluations of the companies and 

parent company guarantees.   

Welfare Reforms 

24. In April 2013, the government began to introduce changes to the Welfare 

system, which have had and will continue to have a profound effect on 

Sheffield residents including council taxpayers and council house 

tenants. The cumulative impact of these changes is significant.  They 

include: 

· The Abolition of Council Tax Benefit:  replaced with a local 

scheme of local Council Tax Support from April 2013. The Council 

approved the replacement scheme, based on the reduced funding 

available from Government, and set up a hardship fund in January 

2013, but there are risks to council tax collection levels and 

pressures on the hardship fund which are being closely monitored. 

· Housing Benefit Changes:  The Government has introduced 

various changes to the Housing Benefit System since 2013. These 

changes aim to reduce the level of benefit paid and hence potentially 

impact on the recipient’s ability to pay rent and council tax. 

Consequently there may be an adverse impact in the level of arrears 

particularly as a result of the introduction of Universal Credit.  

· Introduction of Universal Credit:  The roll out of UC for claimants in 

Sheffield started in January 2016 and initially only applies to new 

single jobseekers.  Roll out of any other type of claimant will not take 

place until DWP move to their “Digital Platform” for which there is no 

known date for Sheffield. The migration of existing working age 

Housing Benefit claimants will follow but this is not expected until 

2020/21.  There are no known plans to discontinue Housing Benefit 

Page 93



for pensioners although future funding arrangements to cover 

administration and awards are uncertain. 

·  Potentially the biggest impact of the introduction of UC is on the 

HRA and collection of rent. Support towards housing costs is 

currently paid through housing benefit direct to the HRA; in future this 

will be paid through UC direct to individuals.  It is estimated that this 

could double or even treble the cost of collection and increase rent 

arrears by £12m by the end of 2020/21.  However, impacts are 

uncertain at present as there is limited data available therefore 

estimates will be reined as we learn from the roll out.  There will also 

be an impact on the current contract with Capita and internal client 

teams.   

Children, Young People and Families Risks 

Education Funding 

25. As part of the Spending Review and Autumn Statement 2015, the 

Government has announced savings of £600 million to be made from 

Education Services Grant (ESG), including phasing out the additional 

funding schools receive through the ESG. The government has launched 

a consultation on changes to policy and funding proposals from 2017, 

this will reduce the Council’s ESG by £3.3m, with only funding being 

received for retained duties only which is currently £1.1m, but changes to 

policy could impact on this funding. 

26. Schools are entitled to receive a proportion of the Council’s Dedicated 

Schools Grant (DSG) which schools forum have decided can be de-

delegated back to CYPF to fund central services.  Academies can on 

conversion choose whether to buy into those services thus creating a 

potential funding gap. Up to £500k could be at risk to centrally funded 

services should Academies choose not to buy back those services 

funded from de-delegated DSG from the local authority. 

27. If an academy is a sponsored conversion then the Council will have to 

bear the cost of any closing deficit balance that remains in the Council’s 

accounts.  In 2016/17 this cost to the Council is estimated at around 

£300k and remains a risk for any future conversions, especially with the 

expansion of the academy conversion programme. 

28. Also as part of the Spending Review and Autumn Statement 2015, the 

government announced that it will introduce a national funding formula for 

schools, high needs and early years. There will be a transitional phase to 

Page 94



help smooth the implementation of the new formula in 2017/18 and 

2018/19, with a hard national funding formula introduced from 2019/20, 

with schools being paid directly from Central Government. The 

government has launched a detailed consultation; further details and the 

financial impact for Sheffield are expected later in 2016. 

Communities Risks 

29. In 2015/16 a recurrent gap of £9.3m in the council’s funding was bridged 

using £5m of CCG funding and council reserves.  For 2016/17, the CCG 

contribution so far identified is £3.5m although this may increase.  As with 

last year, the remainder will need to be funded from temporary sources 

until such time as sustainable savings proposals are developed from 

within the Better Care Fund in order to balance the budget for future 

years.  Work to identify these remains ongoing. 

30. There has been increasing pressure in recent months on Mental Health 

purchasing budgets as a result of some changes to care packages 

managed by the Care Trust.  Whilst these changes are the right thing to 

do from a system wide perspective, they have a disproportionate impact 

on SCC.  Work is currently underway to assess the viability of managing 

these budgets under a pooled arrangement within the Better Care Fund. 

Place 

2016/17 Revenue Budget savings 

31. The Place budget comprises three significant contracts - Streets Ahead 

programme, waste management contracts and the South Yorkshire 

Passenger Transport Levy – which together absorb 80% of the General 

Fund support. The Portfolio cannot meet projected reductions in local 

authority funding by cutting only the remaining 20% of the budget without 

a significant reduction in services. Thus in the 2015-16 Business 

Planning round, the Portfolio’s strategy was based on reducing the cost 

of these contracts to preserve the other services. 

32. The South Yorkshire Transport Levy has been successfully reduced but 

not the Streets Ahead or waste management contracts. The Portfolio has 

now embarked on a review of all the other services in order to bring a 

business-like approach to service delivery.  Realising the efficiencies and 

opportunities within this review is crucial to maintaining the current Place 

savings.  The review is at an early stage and requires swift 

implementation if the necessary revenue budget savings are to be 

Page 95



realised in 2017/18. Failure to so do will very probably create an 

overspend for the Council.   

33. In light of the above risks, a review of waste services has taken place 

with a staged strategy agreed. As with any service change, there is a risk 

to the continuity of service delivery and in the longer term there is a 

potential financial risk if the expected investment does not result in better 

value services.   There is also a risk to the sort term achievement of the 

2016/17 budget savings if the project timetable slips.  In order to mitigate 

the risks a robust governance structure has been put in place to review 

progress and issues and make decisions to ensure that the optimum 

solution is achieved. 

Electric Works 

34. The Council owns this building and uses it to provide high quality office 

accommodation to start-up businesses in order to grow the local 

economy.  Once established, the businesses will move elsewhere 

creating a high turnover of tenants.  As the landlord, the Council is 

responsible for the running costs of the business centre apportioned to 

the void floor space.  The approved business plan set-aside contingency 

monies to cover potential deficits in its early years of operation which has 

now been fully utilised.  Some provision has been made within the 

existing annual budget but should the void floor space exceed the 

budgeted provision, this will require compensating savings from the Place 

portfolio. 

Housing Revenue Account Risks 

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 

35. There are a number of future risks and uncertainties that could impact on 

the 30 year HRA business plan. Major changes for social housing have 

been set out in the Welfare Reform and Work Bill and the Housing and 

Planning Bill. The full details and resource implications of the policy 

changes on the HRA are still emerging. In particular changes to the 

extension of Right to Buy to Housing Association tenants funded by the 

sale of “high value” council homes as they fall vacant, Pay to Stay 

proposals – Higher Rents for High Earners, the introduction of fixed term 

tenancies and further Welfare Reform changes. The impacts on the HRA 

are continually being assessed. 

 

 

Page 96



Other identified risks to the HRA are: 

· Interest rates:  fluctuations in the future levels of interest rates have 

always been recognised as a risk to the HRA. These are continually 

re-assessed as part of the overall debt HRA strategy. 

· Repairs and Maintenance:  existing and emerging risks within the 

revenue repairs budget include unexpected increased demand (for 

example due to adverse weather conditions). The ongoing 

programme of proactive repair and improvement on roofing and 

heating systems in particular should help to mitigate this particular 

risk. This may be mitigated to some extent in the longer term by the 

insourcing of the Repairs and Maintenance service scheduled for 

April 2017. 

Capital Programme Risks 

Capital Receipts and Capital Programme  

36. Failure to meet significant year on year capital receipts targets due to 

reduced land values reflecting the depressed market and the impact of 

the Affordable Housing policy.  This could result in over-programming / 

delay / cancellation of capital schemes.   

Housing Regeneration 

37. There is a risk to delivering the full scope of major schemes such as 

Parkhill because of the instability in the housing market.  This could result 

in schemes ‘stalling’, leading to increased costs of holding the sites 

involved. 

Olympic Legacy Park 

38. The Council supports the development of the Olympic Legacy Park to 

regenerate the Lower Don valley. Some parts of the infrastructure need 

private party or external funding to realise the vision. The Council has an 

obligation to provide a number of facilities to the educational 

establishment facilities on site against a very tight timescale.  If the other 

site developments do not proceed in time, the Council may have to step 

in with funding which will place additional strain on the funding of the 

capital programme. 

Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) North 

39. The project is significantly over budget and a year behind schedule due 

to the discovery of asbestos on land which was previously thought to 

have been decontaminated, and, an unchartered sewer which has had to 

Page 97



be relocated.  The latest estimate of the unfunded spend is £6.3 m. A 

number of options are being pursued, including applying for additional 

grant funding, litigation against those at fault and allocation of anticipated 

future planning related development fees.  

Sheffield Retail Quarter 

40. The Council has committed to incur around £60m to acquire land, secure 

planning consent, and appoint a development manager to deliver the new 

retail quarter in the city centre. The scheme is being funded through 

prudential borrowing which will be repaid from the increased Business 

Rates that the completed scheme will produce (known as Tax 

Incremental financing (TIF). The financing costs are being capitalised 

while the scheme is in development. There is a risk that if the scheme 

ceases to be active that the financing costs of circa £3m pa will have to 

be provided for from existing budgets. There is also a longer term risk 

that if the scheme does go ahead that the business rates generated are 

not sufficient to cover the financing costs. In order to mitigate these risks 

the Council is working closely with its advisors and potential tenants to 

ensure that a viable scheme is being developed. It is also ensuring that 

the level of TIF is set at a prudent level.    

41. In addition to the £60m already committed, the Council may in future 

have to invest substantial sums (potentially several hundred million 

pounds) to create the public realm and develop a proposition which an 

external investment developer would take forward. This may also involve 

the construction of buildings on a partly speculative basis with only part of 

the building pre let. 

Schools Expansion programme 

In February 2016 the Cabinet approved a report setting out the need to 

provide additional places in primary, secondary and Sixth Form 

establishments. The immediate demand for places in the next three 

years will require the Council to commit funds ahead of receipt from 

central government. In subsequent years it expects to receive sufficient 

funding to repay the cash flow by 2020/21. In March 2016 the 

Government announced its intention to convert all schools to academies 

by 2020. The detailed plans are not yet clear, but if this policy reduced 

the financial support available to local authorities’ capital programmes, 

the Council will very probably be faced with an affordability gap in the 

Schools’ capital programme. 

Page 98



Appendix 6 

Annual Treasury Management Review 2015/16 

Executive Summary 

This report reviews the performance of the treasury management function 

which manages the authority’s debt and investment portfolios. 

 

The treasury management function’s activity is agreed by Council each year 

through the Treasury Management Strategy which details how we’ll manage 

cash requirements, investments, and the need for debt to fund the capital 

programme. 

 

Assessment of the performance is based upon indicators which are largely 

governed by the ‘Prudential Code’ set by the sector’s accounting body – 

CIPFA – and approved by government. 

 

Key Points 

Overall Limits 

· The Council operated within the Prudential Indicator Limits for 2015/16 

set by the authority. 

o These limits include the amount of debt the Council can hold 

o This limit is set by Council each year and cannot be breached 

The Council’s Debt Position 

· After adjusting for PFI liabilities, the overall underlying debt of the 

authority (referred to as the Capital Financing Requirement or CFR) was 

£918m  

o This is up £63m compared to last year’s figure of £855m - but was 

below expectations set out in the TMS as the capital spend and in 

particular the proportion funded from borrowing, was lower than 

expected. 

o Debt has increased because we have borrowed to fund the capital 

programme, notably the Sheffield Retail Quarter programme and 

the capital contributions towards the Streets Ahead project  

· Of this debt figure, £346m related to the HRA (unchanged on last year) 

which was also slightly below expectations set out in the TMS. 

o HRA debt relates to legacy housing investment, such as the Decent 

Homes programme. 

 

 

Page 99



 
 

The Council’s Loan Portfolio 

· As at 31 March 2016, the loans portfolio, excluding PFI liabilities, totalled 

£740m indicating that we are under borrowed by £178m – up slightly on 

2014/15. 

o Under-borrowed means that rather than go to banks or other 

external bodies for loans, we have at various points used our own 

cash balances that weren’t required at that time 

o This is efficient – as we avoid interest on loans – but does mean at 

some stage we will need to replace the cash we have ‘borrowed’ 

from ourselves in the short term (£178m) 

o It’s important that we don’t run up too large an under-borrowed 

position, as we would store up risk in doing so 

· During 2015/16, £66m worth of borrowing was taken to help fund the 

capital programme and manage the under borrowed position 

o Borrowing now makes economic sense as were able to take 

advantage of historically low borrowing rates and to ensure the under 

borrowed level remains at manageable levels in line with the treasury 

management strategy.  

o However, £16m of this related to short term borrowing taken for cash 

flow purposes during the final quarter of the year and was repaid in 

April. 

o Despite the historically low borrowing levels we chose not to borrow 

more at this time because we felt that both market conditions (low 

interest rates) and our existing cash levels supported the current 

strategy. 

· The average rate of interest paid on the Council’s external debt has 

decreased slightly to 4.4% for 2015/16 compared to 4.6% for 2014/15 – 

partly as a result of loans with high interest rates maturing and the new 

loans being taken at lower levels. 

Repaying Our Debt 

· For capital expenditure financed by borrowing before 1 April 2007, full 

Council approved a change to the method by which we provide for the 

debt. The Council opted to move away from an optional method set by 

government to a straight line (equal instalment) method for a period of 

up to 50 years.  

o The impact of this decision is to slow down the amount of cash we 

set aside to repay debt in the short-term, but accelerate it in the 

longer term 

Page 100



 
 

o We chose to do this as the previous approach meant that the 

amount of cash we set aside for debt each year was unaligned to life 

of the assets they funded 

o This meant that, often, assets were long since exhausted by the 

time we had finished paying for them. The new approach means we 

pay for assets in a timeframe better linked to their life-expectancy, 

and their supporting revenue grants and budgets. 

Investment Portfolio 

· As at 31 March 2016, investments totalled £87m, down from £101m last 

year. Among other things, the cash was used to secure early payment 

discounts with a small number of strategic suppliers – helping to secure 

savings to offset pressures on revenue budgets in the medium term. 

o Overall, a return of 0.56% was achieved, compared to a benchmark 

of UK Bank Base rate of 0.50%,  

o Investments have been made into high quality counterparties such 

as AAA rated Money Market Funds and UK Banks in line with the 

Council’s investment priorities: which are security first, liquidity 

second and then return. This ensures we do not chase yield at the 

expense of the security of our investment.  

o The capital financing budget generated £1.5m of one off savings as 

a result of deferring some of the intended borrowing and earning 

interest on better than expected investment balances which 

averaged £163.2m over the year. 

 
Introduction 
 

This Council is required by regulations issued under the Local Government 

Act 2003 to produce an annual treasury management review of activities 

and the actual prudential and treasury indicators for 2015/16. This report 

meets the requirements of both the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury 

Management (the Code) and the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital 

Finance in Local Authorities (the Prudential Code).  

 

During 2015/16 the full Council received the Annual Treasury Strategy 

whilst Cabinet were presented with the Outturn Report.  A Mid-Year 

Report was also taken to the Cabinet Member for Finance during the year.  

 

The regulatory environment places responsibility on members for the 

review and scrutiny of treasury management policy and activities.  This 

report is therefore important in that respect, as it provides details of the 

outturn position for treasury activities and highlights compliance with the 

Council’s policies previously approved by members.   

Page 101



 
 

 

No Member training on treasury management issues was provided during 

the year. However, training took place in January 2015 to coincide with 

the revision of the Treasury Management Strategy 2015/16. 

The Strategy for 2015/16 

The expectation for interest rates within the treasury management 

strategy for 2015/16 anticipated a low but rising Bank Rate, (starting in 

quarter 1 of 2016), and gradual rises in medium and longer term fixed 

borrowing rates during 2016/17.  Variable, or short-term rates, were 

expected to be the cheaper form of borrowing over the period.   

 

The Council sources the majority of its loans from the Public Works Loans 

Board, which is an executive agency of the Treasury. The loans available 

to the Council from PWLB are priced off the rates Central government 

pays to access cash in the capital markets from gilts. 

 

During the year the cost of gilts – and thus the cost of loans from PWLB – 

rose in the early quarters, but then became increasingly volatile as 

markets reacted to global events. By the summer, borrowing costs had 

fallen back to historically low levels. 

 

Continued uncertainty in the aftermath of the 2008 financial crisis 

promoted a cautious approach, whereby investments would continue to be 

influenced by low counterparty risk considerations, resulting in relatively 

low returns compared to borrowing rates. This reflects our strategy of 

placing the security of investments before the rate on offer, meaning we 

will only invest with the safest of counterparties.  

 

In this context, the treasury strategy was influenced by a desire to avoid 

borrowing too much cash during the year. Taking on loans means we need 

to find safe places to invest the cash received until it is required. As 

borrowing rates (although historically low) are still generally higher than 

the rates we can achieve from holding cash on deposit, there is a cost as 

well as a risk in taking on more cash than we need.  

 

However, as set out in the 2015/16 treasury management strategy, we 

planned to maintain the level of under borrowing at a prudent level, and 

therefore planned to take a little more borrowing than would be required 

by in-year capital expenditure.  

 

During the year, we took £66m of borrowing, of which £16m was for 

short-term cash flow purposes, and the remaining £50m was used to fund 

capital investment. This has meant that the level of under borrowing has 

increased slightly during the year. If we take account of the short term 

Page 102



 
 

nature of the £16m cash flow borrowing, then core under borrowing has 

actually increased by £18m to £194m – of which £54m relates to the HRA. 

 

Overall Treasury Position as at 31 March 2015 

 

At the beginning and the end of 2015/16 the Council‘s treasury (excluding 

debt from PFI and finance leases) position was as follows: 
 

 

 

 

 

Authority 

31 March 

2015 

Principal 

Rate/ 

Return 

 31 March 

2016 

Principal 

Rate/ 

Return 

Total debt £679m 4.6%  £740m 4.4% 

CFR £855m   £918m  

Over / (under) 

borrowing 

(£176m)   (£178m)  

Total investments £101m 0.62%  £87m 0.56% 

Net debt £578m   £653m  

 

General Fund 

31 March 

2015 

Principal 

Rate/ 

Return 

 31 March 

2016 

Principal 

Rate/ 

Return 

Total debt £385m 4.6% 
 

£448m 4.2% 

CFR £509m  
 

£572m  

Over / (under) 

borrowing 

(£124m)  
 

(£124m)  

Total investments £101m 0.62% 
 

£87m 0.56% 

Net debt £283m  
 

£361m  

 

HRA 

31 March 

2015 

Principal 

Rate/ 

Return 

 31 March 

2016 

Principal 

Rate/ 

Return 

Total debt £294m 4.6% 
 

£292m 4.6% 

CFR £346m  
 

£346m  

Over / (under) 

borrowing 

(£52m)  
 

(£54m)  

Total investments £0m 0% 
 

£0m 0% 

Net debt £294m  
 

£292m  

Page 103



 
 

The Economy and Interest Rates   

Market expectations for the first increase in Bank Rate moved considerably 

during 2015/16, starting at quarter 3 2015 but soon moving back to quarter 

1 2016.   However, by the end of the year, market expectations had moved 

back radically to quarter 2 2018 due to many fears including concerns that 

China’s economic growth could be heading towards a hard landing; the 

potential destabilisation of some emerging market countries particularly 

exposed to the Chinese economic slowdown; and the continuation of the 

collapse in oil prices during 2015 together with continuing Eurozone growth 

uncertainties.  

 

These concerns have caused sharp market volatility in equity prices during 

the year with corresponding impacts on bond prices and bond yields due to 

safe haven flows.  Bank Rate, therefore, remained unchanged at 0.5% for the 

seventh successive year.  Economic growth (GDP) in the UK surged strongly 

during both 2013/14 and 2014/15 to make the UK the top performing 

advanced economy in 2014.  However, 2015 has been disappointing with 

growth falling steadily from an annual rate of 2.9% in quarter 1 2015 to 2.1% 

in quarter 4. 

 

The Funding for Lending Scheme, announced in July 2012, resulted in a flood 

of cheap credit being made available to banks which then resulted in money 

market investment rates falling materially.  These rates continued at very low 

levels during 2015/16.   

 

The volatility in equity markets during the year was reflected in sharp 

volatility in bond yields.  However, the overall dominant trend in bond yields 

since mid-2015 has been for yields to fall to historically low levels as forecasts 

for inflation have repeatedly been revised downwards and expectations of 

increases in central rates have been deferred.  In addition, a notable trend in 

the year was that several central banks introduced negative interest rates as 

a measure to stimulate the creation of credit and hence economic growth.   

 

The ECB announced in January 2015 that it would undertake a full blown 

quantitative easing programme of purchases of Eurozone government and 

other bonds starting in March at €60bn per month.  This put downward 

pressure on Eurozone bond yields.  There was a further increase in this 

programme of QE in December 2015. The anti-austerity government in 

Greece, elected in January 2015 eventually agreed to implement an 

acceptable programme of cuts to meet EU demands after causing major fears 

of a breakup of the Eurozone. Nevertheless, there are continuing concerns 

that a Greek exit has only been delayed. 

 

As for America, the economy has continued to grow healthily on the back of 

resilient consumer demand.  The first increase in the central rate occurred in 

Page 104



 
 

December 2015 since when there has been a return to caution as to the 

speed of further increases due to concerns around the risks to world growth. 

 

On the international scene, concerns have increased about the slowing of the 

Chinese economy and also its potential vulnerability to both the bursting of a 

property bubble and major exposure of its banking system to bad debts. The 

Japanese economy has also suffered disappointing growth in this financial 

year despite a huge programme of quantitative easing, while two of the 

major emerging market economies, Russia and Brazil, are in recession.  The 

situations in Ukraine, and in the Middle East with ISIS, have also contributed 

to volatility.   

 

The UK elected a majority Conservative Government in May 2015, removing 

one potential uncertainty but introducing another due to the promise of a 

referendum on the UK remaining part of the EU. The government maintained 

its tight fiscal policy stance but the more recent downturn in expectations for 

economic growth has made it more difficult to return the public sector net 

borrowing to a balanced annual position within the period of this parliament.   

 
The Borrowing Requirement and Debt  

 
The Council’s underlying need to borrow to finance capital expenditure is 

termed the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR). 

 

The CFR goes up when we use borrowing to fund capital projects, but falls 

as we put money aside each year to repay that debt. The money we put 

aside to repay the debt each year is known as our ‘minimum revenue 

provision’ (MRP), and mimics depreciation charges that are used in the 

private sector. 

 

For capital expenditure financed by borrowing before 1 April 2007, full 

Council approved a change to the method by which we provide for the 

debt.  The impact of this decision is to slow down the amount of cash we 

set aside to repay debt in the short-term, but accelerate it in the longer 

term. 

 

The previous MRP approach meant that the amount of cash we set aside 

for debt each year was unaligned to life of the assets they funded. Whilst 

the new MRP approach means we pay for assets in a timeframe better 

linked to their life-expectancy, and help to support revenue grants and 

budgets.  

 

The table below shows the outturn for 2014/15 and 2015/16 and the 

2015/16 budget position including PFI liabilities.  

 

Page 105



 
 

 31 March 

2015 

Actual 

2015/ 

2016 

Budget 

31 March 

2016 

Actual 

General Fund CFR (£m)  

  - excluding PFI Liabilities 

 

£509m 

 

£582m 

 

£572m 

General Fund PFI Liabilities £363m £395m £395m 

Overall General Fund  

CFR (£m)  

£872m £977m £967m 

CFR  HRA (£m) £346m £351m £346m 

Total CFR (£m) £1,218m £1,328m £1,313m 

 

Borrowing Rates in 2015/16 

This section reviews the movement in borrowing rates over the year; showing 

the decline in rates over the period but also the volatility experience as 

markets have responded to a variety of economic factors (see Economy and 

Interest Rates section). 

 

PWLB certainty maturity borrowing rates - the graph and table for PWLB 

rates below show, for a selection of maturity periods, the average borrowing 

rates, the high and low points in rates, spreads and individual rates at the 

start and the end of the financial year 

 

 
 

Page 106



 
 

 

 

 

 

 
Borrowing Outturn for 2015/16 

 
Borrowing  

The Council took £66m worth of additional borrowing during the year to 

support the Council’s capital investment programme. The table below shows 

the breakdown of capital investment being funded through prudential 

borrowing in 2015/16. 

 

 

 

 

£'m 

Sheffield Retail Quarter 36.23 

Streets Ahead 30.20 

Leisure Improvements 3.51 

Accommodation Strategy  2.52 

Other Programmes 0.40 

 

      72.86  
 

 

The variance between the £72.86m of capital expenditure funded through 

borrowing and the actual loans taken of £66m reflects that we decided to use 

£6.86m of existing cash we weren’t yet using rather than take additional 

loans. Doing this saves us on loan interest costs but means the under 

borrowed position (the cash we owe ourselves) has gone up. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 107



 
 

 Details of the borrowing taken are shown in the table below 
 

Start  

Date 

Maturity 

Date 

Counterparty Rate 

% 

Principal  

O/S 

£’000s 

13/07/15 13/07/20 Derbyshire County Council 2.05% 4,000 

13/07/15 12/07/19 Derbyshire County Council 1.85% 4,000 

13/07/15 13/07/18 New Forest District Council 1.35% 2,000 

07/08/15 07/08/19 Sheffield City Region 

Combined Authority 

1.90% 5,000 

07/08/15 07/08/20 Sheffield City Region 

Combined Authority 

2.10% 5,000 

07/08/15 07/08/21 Sheffield City Region 

Combined Authority 

2.30% 7,000 

07/08/15 07/08/22 Sheffield City Region 

Combined Authority 

2.45% 8,000 

18/08/15 18/08/23 PWLB 2.58% 5,000 

18/08/15 16/08/24 PWLB 2.68% 5,000 

18/08/15 18/08/25 PWLB 2.77% 5,000 

27/01/16 27/04/16 Surrey County Council 0.50% 10,000 

27/01/16 27/04/16 North Hertfordshire  

District Council 

0.50% 1,000 

29/01/16 29/04/16 Basingstoke & Deane 

Borough Council 

0.50% 5,000 

  Total 1.85% 66,000 

 

As stated above in the Strategy for 2015/16 section of the report, £50m of 

borrowing has been taken to fund the capital programme and maintain the 

level of under borrowing at a prudent level whilst £16m taken out in 2016 

was short term borrowing for temporary cash flow purposes. 

 

The overall borrow rate on these loans of 1.85% was below the budgeted 

level and has therefore resulting in revenue savings. 

 

The Council chose not to borrow as much as we suggested we would in the 

Treasury Management Strategy for the year because we believe that market 

conditions (interest rates and cost of borrowing) will remain low in the short 

term, and we did not require as much cash as we estimated. 

 

This mid-year decision was taken in consultation with the Director of Finance 

and meant that the capital financing budget underspent for the year. This 

underspend was used to help support the Corporate budget. 

Page 108



 
 

 

Rescheduling  

No rescheduling was done during the year as the average 1% differential 

between PWLB new borrowing rates and premature repayment rates made 

rescheduling unviable. 

 

Investment Rates in 2015/16 

Bank Rate remained at its historic low of 0.5% throughout the year; it has 

now remained unchanged for seven years.  Market expectations as to the 

timing of the start of monetary tightening started the year at quarter 1 2016 

but then moved back to around quarter 2 2018 by the end of the year.   

Deposit rates remained depressed during the whole of the year, primarily due 

to the continuing weak expectations as to when Bank Rate would start rising 

and to a lesser degree the effects of the Funding for Lending Scheme which 

has now been extended to January 2018.  
 

 
 

LIBID is the London Interbank Bid Rate which reflects the average interest rate which major 

London banks borrow Eurocurrency deposits from other banks and is a key indicator of interest 

rates on short term deposits. 

Page 109



 
 

Investment Outturn for 2015/16 

Investment Policy – the Council’s investment policy, which is governed by 

government guidance, is set out in the annual investment strategy approved 

by full Council in March each year. This policy outlines the approach for 

choosing investment counterparties, and is based on credit ratings provided 

by the three main credit rating agencies supplemented by additional market 

data (such as rating outlooks, credit default swaps, etc.).   

 

The investment activity during the year conformed to the approved strategy, 

and the Council had no liquidity difficulties.  

 

Investments held by the Council - the Council maintained an average 

balance of £163m of internally managed funds compared to the Council only 

having funds for day to day cash flow purposes.  The internally managed 

funds earned an average rate of return of 0.55% against a budgeted return 

of 0.50%. 

 

The Council would not normally plan to have such high cash balances but 

they have been bolstered by the additional borrowing taken to lock into 

historically low borrowing rates and the position continues to be affected by 

re-profiling of the capital programme. 

 

The Council’s decision not to borrow as much money as planned for through 

the treasury strategy reflects that these balances were higher than 

anticipated. 

 

The pie charts below shows that we split our investments over a range of 

investment options, including AAA rated Money Market Funds and Fixed Term 

or Call accounts deposits with banks. 

 

 

Page 110



 
 

 
 

Throughout the year we only invested in money market funds with assets of 

over £1bn and monitored who these funds invested with themselves.  Money 

market funds are an attractive counterparty to mitigate counterparty risk 

because they only invest in the most secure assets whilst they allow us to 

remove our investment day-by-day should we need to. 
 

Page 111



 
 

Annex: Prudential and Treasury Indicators 

During 2015/16, the Council complied with its legislative and regulatory 

requirements including the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury 

Management (the Code) and the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital 

Finance in Local Authorities (the Prudential Code).  The key actual 

prudential and treasury indicators detailing the impact of capital 

expenditure activities during the year, with comparators, are as follows: 

 

Actual prudential and 

treasury indicators 

2014/15 

Actual 

£000 

2015/16 

Original 

£000 

2015/16 

Actual 

£000 

Capital expenditure 

· General Fund 

· HRA 

· Total 

 

158,460 

26,369 

184,829 

 

140,488 

92,165 

232,653 

 

154,662 

72,718 

227,380 

Capital Financing Requirement: 

· General Fund 

· HRA 

· Total 

 

872,086 

346,308 

1,218,394 

 

976,523 

351,023 

1,327,546 

 

967,176 

346,281 

1,313,457 

Gross debt 1,042,125 1,171,594 1,153,336 

Net External debt (gross debt 

less investments) 

940,995 1,171,594 1,066,654 

Investments 

· Longer than 1 year 

· Under 1 year 

· Total 

 

Nil 

101,130 

101,130 

 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

 

Nil 

86,682 

86,862 

Commentary 

 

The Council’s net external debt has increased by around £125.7m during 

the year, whilst our overall need for borrowing which is represented by 

the Capital Financing Requirement has increased by £95.3m.  

 

The CFR increases when we use borrowing to fund capital projects, whilst 

external debt goes up when we take on new loans or other credit 

arrangements such as PFI liabilities. 

 

Net debt has increased as a result of a decision taken by the Council to 

ensure the level of under borrowing (where the level of borrowing is lower 

than the underlying need to borrow as set out in the CFR) is maintained at 

prudent levels. 

 

Page 112



 
 

In order to lock into historically low borrowing rates, the Council has taken 

£66m of new borrowing (excluding PFI arrangements) – of which £16m 

related to short term borrowing for temporary cash flow purposes.  

 

However, following the above strategy combined with an under spend on 

the capital programme meant that the Council continued to hold large 

sums of cash on deposit throughout the year. These deposits were placed 

with an array of AAA rated, instant access money market funds and fixed-

term and call account deposits with banks. This investment policy meant 

that our deposits were very safe but deposit returns were low (marginally 

above the Bank Base Rate of 0.50% at 0.56%). 

 

Gross borrowing and the CFR - in order to ensure that borrowing levels 

are prudent over the medium term and only for a capital purpose, the 

Council should ensure that its gross external borrowing does not, except 

in the short term, exceed the total of the capital financing requirement in 

the preceding year (2014/15) plus the estimates of any additional capital 

financing requirement for the current (2015/16) and next two financial 

years.  This essentially means that the Council is not borrowing to support 

revenue expenditure.  This indicator allows the Council some flexibility to 

borrow in advance of its immediate capital needs.   

 

The authorised limit - the authorised limit is the “affordable borrowing 

limit” required by s3 of the Local Government Act 2003.  Once this has 

been set, the Council does not have the power to borrow above this level.  

The table below demonstrates that during 2015/16 the Council has 

maintained gross borrowing within its authorised limit.  

 

The operational boundary – the operational boundary is the expected 

borrowing position of the Council during the year.  Periods where the 

actual position is either below or over the boundary is acceptable subject 

to the authorised limit not being breached.  

 

Actual financing costs as a proportion of net revenue stream - this 

indicator identifies the trend in the cost of capital (borrowing and other 

long term obligation costs net of investment income) against the net 

revenue stream. 

 

 2015/16 

Authorised limit £1,520m 

Maximum gross borrowing position  £1,154m 

Operational boundary £1,270m 

Average gross borrowing position  £1,110m 

 

Page 113



 
 

Ratio of financing costs to net 

revenue stream 

31 March 

2015 

Actual 

2015/16 

Original 

limits 

31 March 

2016 

Actual 

    General Fund 15% 18% 16% 

    HRA  10% 9% 10% 

 

Incremental impact of capital 

investment decisions 

31 March 

2015 

Actual 

2015/16 

Original 

limits 

31 March 

2016 

Actual 

 Increase in council tax (band D) 

per annum  * 

£12.51 £38.33 £35.77 

Increase in average housing rent 

per week (council dwellings only) 

£0.00 £0.06 £0.00 

 

* The increase in Council Tax (band D) per annum for 2015/16 is lower than the 

2015/16 limit because the borrowing was lower than forecast. 

 

The indicators shown above are an unsophisticated interpretation of our 

capital financing position that under regulation we are required to show  

It is important to recognise that the Council aims to borrow to fund capital 

programme activity where that activity will in turn generate savings through 

more efficient working or income generation other than borrowing for major 

schemes e.g. new schools. 

As such, though the amount of money we spend on things like interest costs 

may rise from one year to the next, these costs support borrowing that will 

enable larger savings to be made. 

A good example of this is where borrowing is used to support the Streets 

Ahead project. Borrowing for this project incurs debt costs, but allows us to 

move away from expensive and inefficient responsive repairs to a cheaper 

more effective planned maintenance programme. 

Page 114



 
 

 

The maturity structure of the debt portfolio was as follows: 

 31 March 

2015 

Actual 

2015/16 

Original 

Limits 

31 March 

2016 

Actual 

Under 12 months  27% 35% 27% 

12 months & within 24 months 3% 15% 3% 

24 months & within 5 years 2% 30% 4% 

5 years and within 10 years 2% 40% 6% 

10 years and above  66% 100% 60% 

 

Included in the ‘Under 12 month’ figure are bank loans which have a “call 

option” that allows the bank to either re-set the interest rate or allow us to 

 

TABLE 1 

31 

March 

2015 

Principal 

Rate/ 

Return 

Average 

Life 

(Yrs) 

31 

March 

2016 

Principal 

Rate/ 

Return 

Average 

Life 

(Yrs) 

Fixed rate funding:  

PWLB £341m 4.67% 21 £351m 4.53% 22 

Market £140m 4.03% 53 £140m 4.03% 52 

Local 

Authorities 

£20m 2.43% 2 £71m 2.30% 3 

Variable rate funding:   

PWLB £0m 0% - £0m 0% - 

Market £178m 5.07% 43 £178m 5.07% 42 

Credit Liabilities: 

PFI 

Liabilities 

£363m 10.41%  £395m 9.51%  

Total debt £1,042m 6.6% 30 £1,135m 6.1% 30 

CFR £1,218m   £1,313m   

Over/ 

(under) 

borrowing 

(£176m)   (£178m)   

Total 

investments 

£101m 0.6% <1 £87m 0.6% <1 

Net debt £941m   £1,048m   

Page 115



 
 

repay the loan every six months. As these loans could be repayable in six 

months’ time, we show them as being due under a year. 

 

The maturity structure of the investment portfolio was as follows: 

 

Investments 

 

2014/15 

Actual 

£000 

2015/16 

Original 

£000 

2015/16 

Actual 

£000 

  Longer than 1 year 

  Under 1 year 

0 

101,130 

0 

0 

0 

86,862 

  Total 101,130 0 86,862 

 

The exposure to fixed and variable rates was as follows: 

 31 March 

2015 

Actual 

2015/16 

Original 

Limits 

31 March 

2016 

Actual 

Fixed rate debt £864m  £957m 

Fixed rate investments -£45m  -£15m 

Net fixed rate exposure £819m £1,092m £942m 

Variable rate debt £178m  £178m 

Variable rate investments -£56m  -£72m 

Net variable rate exposure £122m £178m £106m 

 

Page 116



2015/16  Appendix 7 

 

CAPITAL PROGRAMME MONITORING AS AT  

31st MARCH 2016 
 

Summary 

 

1. The Outturn for 2015-16 is £40.8m (15%) below the approved Capital 

Programme. Project managers delivered a capital programme of 

£227.4m against an approved budget of £268.2m. This is £4.1m lower 

than the Outturn forecast last month and reflects lower delivery on all 

programmes except Housing which is £1.7m above the last forecast. 

2. The bulk of the £40.8m Outturn variance against the Approved 

programme is in the Place (£25.4m – 26% below budget) and Housing 

programmes (£9.0m – 11% below budget).  Other significant variances 

occurred on the Resources programme (£0.7m – 18%), Highways 

(£1.7m – 10%) and Schools (£3.2m – 9%). These variances are 

discussed in greater detail below at paragraph 9.  

3. In the month of March expenditure was £22.4m against the Month 11 

forecast of £26.5m, a net shortfall of £4.1m or 15% of the forecast 

amount. No programme was within +/- 20% of the forecast – shortfalls 

in some forecasts were balanced out by spending above forecast in 

other programmes. 

Financials 2015/16 

 

 

Portfolio Outturn Budget to 
Date 

Full Year 
Variance 

Change on 
last 
Forecast 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 

CYPF 30,371  33,543  (3,172) (1,276) 

Place 71,981  97,426  (25,445) (2,900) 

Housing 72,718  81,711  (8,993) 1,704  

Highways 15,599  17,348  (1,749) (635) 

Communities 334  362  (29) 27  

Resources 5,003  6,073  (1,070) (658) 

Corporate 31,374  31,753  (379) (379) 

          

Grand Total 227,380  268,217  (40,837) (4,118) 

Page 117



2015/16  Appendix 7 

 

4. The shortfall on budget will be reviewed and Members will consider 

whether the budget should be rolled forward. Total net slippage 

approved in the year already approved at Month 9 amounted to £31.7m. 

The Outturn shortfall against budget was £40.8m of which £0.4m has 

been identified as a genuine cost saving. Thus the level of slippage in 

2015/16 was £72m. This compares to a similar figure last year 

(£70.6m).  However, the final year end budget was much smaller – 

£165m compared to £268m this year. Thus there has been some 

improvement in capital delivery. 

5. The chart below shows expenditure over the year which also shows a 

much more even spread of actual expenditure compared to the year-

end spike seen in previous years.  This indicates that accruals are being 

taken throughout the year instead of being input only at year end.  

 

 

 

6. The chart below compares the Approved Budget, Outturn Forecast and 

actual monthly spend over the year. The increase from the Approved 

Budget at Council of £232m to the current level is due to the slippage 

rolled forward from 14/15. 

Page 118



2015/16  Appendix 7 

 

 

7. Budget and forecast tracked one another throughout the year until the 

last two months.  When read in conjunction with the graph at paragraph 

5, this indicates that project profiling is still the main cause of the 

shortfall against the approved programme. Throughout 2015/16 officers 

have developed reporting systems which will assist Project Sponsors 

and Programme Boards to receive better information on the progress of 

projects which should build upon the improvements achieved this year.  

 

Capital Programme  

 

Capital Programme

2015-16 2016-17 Future Total

£m £m £m £m

Month 11 Approved Budget 266.4 210.7 361.8 838.9

Additions 0.2 1.4 0.0 1.7

Variations 1.5 -0.1 2.4 3.8

Slippage & Acceleration 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Month 12 Approved Budget 268.2 212.1 364.1 844.4

Page 119



2015/16  Appendix 7 

 

8. The revised programme shows a net increase of just under £6m. £3m 

has been added to the Schools programme to create more schools 

places and a further £1.7m to develop the Sheffield Retail Quarter.  

Commentary   

9. The Top 20 projects in the Capital Programme accounts for 72% of the 

current 2015/16 budget.  £25.5m (63%) of that variance is accounted for 

by the Top 20 projects. Thus, proportionately, slippage has been higher 

on the remaining 176 projects in the programme. 

10.   Key variances across the programme were: 

· The Sheffield Retail Quarter project is was £16.9m below the 

approved plan as a result of delays in property acquisitions, a six 

month delay in the appointment of a development manager and £1m 

slippage on the demolition works due to a challenge to the 

procurement process 

· £4.2m of slippage on the building of the new Leisure Centres and 

football pitches. The forecast was ambitious in order to meet the 

grant funder’s desire to meet its year end spending targets.  

However this was frustrated by wet and windy weather conditions in 

February and March.  

· Within the Expansion of Council Housing Programme, £2.0m below 

programme on the acquisition of properties pending a value-for-

money review of the programme.  

· £0.7m slippage on the Roofing programme due to adverse weather 

delaying the programme. 

· £1.9m of slippage on the Arbourthorne 5Ms refurbishment due to 

delays following the discovery of asbestos and delays on completing 

the contracts to acquire some properties. 

· £1.4m below plan on the delivery of Bus route improvements. 

· £1.2m below budget on the Brookhill area public realm 

improvements due to a transfer of responsibility for some works to 

the University of Sheffield 

· £1.0m forecast slippage on the new Tinsley Primary school.  This 

will be recovered next year and the school is expected to open on 

Page 120



2015/16  Appendix 7 

 

time. Hallam School if also £0.2m behind forecast due to delays 

caused by a revised specification.  

· £1.7m slippage on the Communal Areas low rise flats due to late 

start of the surveying work. 

Risks 

11. Two projects currently have Amber Financial RAG ratings. 

12. The BRT North project is over £6m over budget due to the need to 

move a previously unchartered sewer, asbestos contaminated land and 

unexploded WW2 ordnance. South Yorkshire Passenger Transport 

Executive, who are the lead party on the project, have secured in 

principle funding from the Sheffield City Region which will remove some 

£4m of the overspend.  The remainder will be found from future 

Community Infrastructure Levy payments. 

13. As described above, the Grey-to-Green project, which will convert 

redundant highway into shrub beds to improve the environment and 

attract investment, is running late and approximately £0.4m of ERDF 

funding will be lost. The project Sponsor is currently seeking alternative 

funding.  

Approvals 

14. A number of schemes have been submitted for approval in line with the 

Council’s agreed capital approval process.  

15. Below is a summary of the number and total value of schemes in each 

approval category: 

· 10 additions to the capital programme with a value of £8.1m. 

·  8 variations to the capital programme amounting to a net increase of 

£0.75m. 

16. Further details of the schemes listed above can be found in Appendix 

7.1.  

 

Page 121



 

Page 122



C
a

p
it

a
l 

S
c

h
e

m
e
s

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
S

u
m

m
a

ry
 A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 7
.1

 
 

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

 
 

S
c

h
e

m
e
 D

e
s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

A
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
T

y
p

e
 

V
a

lu
e
 

£
0

0
0
 

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
R

o
u

te
 

 
 

 
 

T
H

R
IV

IN
G

 N
E

IG
H

B
O

U
R

H
O

O
D

S
 A

N
D

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
IE

S
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

G
R

E
A

T
 P

L
A

C
E

 T
O

 L
IV

E
 :

- 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

 
 

 
 

S
tr

e
e

ts
 A

h
e

a
d

 O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s

 
T

h
e

 S
tr

e
e

ts
 A

h
e
a

d
 p

ro
je

c
t 

is
 n

o
w

 t
h

re
e
 y

e
a

rs
 i
n

to
 t
h

e
 i
n

it
ia

l 
fi
v
e

 y
e

a
r 

“C
o

re
 

In
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
P

e
ri
o

d
”.

 P
u
b

lic
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

 w
it
h

 t
h
e

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 H

ig
h
w

a
y
 

In
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 h

a
s
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

re
 i
s
 a

 v
e

ry
 c

le
a

r 
p

u
b

lic
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
ti
o

n
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 C

it
y
 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

w
ill

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 a
u

g
m

e
n

t 
th

e
 b

a
s
ic

 m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e
 t

a
s
k
s
 w

it
h

 s
m

a
ll 

s
c
a

le
 a

c
c
e

s
s
ib

ili
ty

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

. 
 

 T
h
e

 C
a

p
it
a

l 
a

llo
c
a
ti
o

n
 m

a
d
e

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 L
o

c
a

l 
T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 P
la

n
 s

e
tt

le
m

e
n

t 
in

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

th
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 
is

 £
4
0

0
,0

0
0

 p
e

r 
y
e

a
r.

 T
h

is
 a

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
 i
s
 s

p
re

a
d

 e
q
u

a
lly

 a
c
ro

s
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 

2
2

 a
n

d
 2

5
 t
re

a
tm

e
n

t 
z
o

n
e

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 c

it
y
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 a

ll 
d

ir
e

c
t 
w

o
rk

s
 c

o
s
ts

, 
a

ll 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 
fe

e
s
, 

a
n

d
 a

 c
o
m

m
u

te
d

 s
u
m

 a
llo

w
a

n
c
e

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 f

o
r 

fu
tu

re
 m

a
in

te
n
a

n
c
e
. 

T
h
e

 w
o

rk
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 l
o

c
a
l 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

ts
 t
o

 t
h

e
 s

tr
e

e
t 

la
y
o

u
t 

w
h

ic
h

 a
re

 m
o

s
t 
c
o

s
t 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

ly
 d

o
n

e
 w

h
ils

t 
th

e
 S

tr
e

e
ts

 A
h
e

a
d
 t

e
a
m

 a
re

 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

re
a

 a
n

d
 u

n
d
e

rt
a

k
in

g
 t

h
e

 
re

b
u

ild
 w

o
rk

s
. 

 

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 

6
2

4
 

W
a
iv

e
r 

S
c
h

e
d
u

le
 7

 o
f 

th
e

 H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 

P
F

I 
C

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

C
it

y
w

id
e

 2
0

m
p

h
 Z

o
n

e
 

C
o

n
ti
n

u
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 r

o
lli

n
g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
2

0
m

p
h

 s
p
e

e
d
 l
im

it
s
 i
n
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

re
a

s
 t
o

 
ti
e

 i
n

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 c

o
re

 i
n

v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 
p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 w

o
rk

 i
n

 t
h

e
 l
o

c
a

l 
a

re
a

. 
 T

h
e

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

2
0

 m
p

h
 z

o
n

e
s
 i
s
 r

e
g
a

rd
e

d
 a

s
 a

 k
e

y
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 c
it
y
’s

 r
o

a
d

 s
a
fe

ty
 s

tr
a

te
g
y
.  

 F
u

n
d

e
d

 b
y
 L

T
P

 a
n
n

u
a

l 
a

llo
c
a

ti
o
n

 f
o

r 
1

6
/1

7
 

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 

2
5

0
 

W
a
iv

e
r 

S
c
h

e
d
u

le
 7

 o
f 

th
e

 H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 

P
F

I 
C

o
n

tr
a

c
t 
 

Page 123



C
a

p
it

a
l 

S
c

h
e

m
e
s

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
S

u
m

m
a

ry
 A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 7
.1

 
 

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

 
 

P
e

n
is

to
n

e
 R

d
 L

iv
e

s
e
y
 L

o
w

th
e

r 
A

 v
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 C

A
F

 w
a

s
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 a

t 
D

e
c
e
m

b
e

r 
C

P
G

 a
n
d

 g
iv

e
n

 B
o

a
rd

 a
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
in

 
J
a

n
u
a

ry
 b

u
t 

th
e

 p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 w

a
s
n

't 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

A
F

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 d
id

n
't 

g
e

t 
C

a
b

in
e

t 
a

p
p

ro
v
a

l.
 

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
S

tr
a

te
g
y
 

2
3

0
 

W
a
iv

e
r 

S
c
h

e
d
u

le
 7

 o
f 

th
e

 H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 

P
F

I 
C

o
n

tr
a

c
t 
 

 S
Y

P
T

E
 f
o

r 
th

e
 

s
u

p
p

ly
 o

f 
B

u
s
 

S
h

e
lt
e

rs
   

C
it

y
 C

e
n

tr
e

 C
y
c

le
 R

o
u

te
s

  
S

h
e

a
f 

V
a

ll
e

y
 C

e
n

tr
a

l  
a

n
d

 U
n

iv
e

rs
it

y
 C

e
n

tr
a

l 
C

y
c

le
 R

o
u

te
 

In
it
ia

l 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

a
s
e

 a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 C
it
y
 C

e
n

tr
e

 C
y
c
le

 R
o

u
te

s
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 
 

C
it
y
 C

e
n

tr
e

 C
y
c
le

 R
o

u
te

s
 c

o
v
e

rs
 2

 s
c
h
e

m
e

s
 U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 C

e
n

tr
a

l 
a

n
d

 S
h

e
a
f 

V
a

lle
y
 

C
e

n
tr

a
l)
, 

£
1
0

0
k
 o

f 
S

T
E

P
 f

u
n
d

in
g
 w

ill
 b

e
 u

s
e

d
 o

n
 b

o
th

 s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

fe
a

s
ib

ili
ty

 s
tu

d
ie

s
 

to
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

 t
h

e
 c

o
s
t 

to
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e

 s
c
h
e

m
e

. 
. 
  

 T
o
ta

l 
c
o

s
t 
o
f 

th
is

 p
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 C

it
y
 C

e
n

tr
e

 C
y
c
le

 R
o

u
te

 s
c
h

e
m

e
 i
s
 £

5
5

0
K

 f
u

n
d

e
d

 b
y
 

S
T

E
P

 a
n

d
 S

C
R

IF
 

F
e

a
s
ib

ili
ty

 
 

2
0

0
 

In
te

rn
a

l 
S

C
C

 
T

e
a

m
 

L
a

n
g

s
e

tt
/F

o
rb

e
s

 R
o

a
d

 (
A

c
c

id
e

n
t 

S
a

v
in

g
s

) 
T

o
ta

l 
1
6

/1
7

 b
u

d
g
e

t 
£

2
3

k
 f

u
n

d
e
d

 f
ro

m
 L

T
P

 t
o

 c
a

rr
y
 o

u
t 

s
c
h

e
m

e
 f
e

a
s
ib

ili
ty

 w
o

rk
. 

T
h

is
 

n
e

w
 B

U
 c

o
d

e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 s
e

t 
u

p
 f
o

r 
1
6

/1
7

 H
ill

s
b

o
ro

u
g
h

 a
c
c
id

e
n
t 

s
a

v
in

g
s
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 u
n

d
e

r 
9

2
7

6
9

. 
A

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 a

t 
G

P
2

L
 B

o
a

rd
 2

6
.0

2
.1

6
 

 T
o
ta

l 
a

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

is
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 A
c
c
id

e
n

t 
S

a
v
in

g
s
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 i
s
 £

2
2

3
k
 a

n
d
 f

u
n

d
e
d

 b
y
 

L
T

P
. 

F
e

a
s
ib

ili
ty

 
2

3
 

In
te

rn
a

l 
S

C
C

 
T

e
a

m
 

C
h

a
th

a
m

 S
tr

e
e

t 
C

y
c

le
 S

c
h

e
m

e
 

A
n

 I
n

it
ia

l 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

a
s
e

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 t

o
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

 a
 f

e
a

s
ib

ili
ty

 s
tu

d
y
 t

o
 

d
e

te
rm

in
e
 t

h
e
 l
ik

e
ly

 c
o

s
ts

 o
f 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g
 t

h
is

 c
y
c
le

 r
o

u
te

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 U
p

p
e

r 
D

o
n

 
V

a
lle

y
 C

y
c
le

 R
o

u
te

s
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 
T

h
e

 r
o

u
te

 i
s
 f

ro
m

 P
it
s
m

o
o

r 
R

o
a

d
 t
o

 M
o

w
b

ra
y
 

F
e

a
s
ib

ili
ty

 
 

1
6
 

In
te

rn
a

l 
S

C
C

 
T

e
a

m
 

Page 124



C
a

p
it

a
l 

S
c

h
e

m
e
s

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
S

u
m

m
a

ry
 A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 7
.1

 
 

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

 
 

S
tr

e
e

t 
v
ia

 C
h

a
th

a
m

 S
tr

e
e

t.
 

 T
h
e

 a
llo

c
a

ti
o

n
 t

o
 t
h

e
 U

p
p

e
r 

D
o
n

 V
a

lle
y
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s
 i
s
 £

1
0
0

k
 a

ll 
fu

n
d

e
d

 b
y
 S

T
E

P
 

A
c

c
id

e
n

t 
S

a
v
in

g
s

 S
c

h
e

m
e

s
 

A
c
c
id

e
n

t 
S

a
v
in

g
s
 S

c
h

e
m

e
s
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 -

 T
h
e
 £

5
k
 L

T
P

 1
6

/1
7

 a
llo

c
a

ti
o

n
 i
s
 t
o

 b
e

 u
s
e

d
 

if
 n

e
c
e

s
s
a

ry
 o

f 
e

a
rl
y
 i
n

v
e

s
ti
g
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
‘K

ill
e

d
 a

n
d

 S
e

ri
o
u

s
ly

’ 
in

ju
re

d
 r

o
a
d

 c
o

lli
s
io

n
 s

it
e

s
 

th
ro

u
g
h

 t
h

e
 y

e
a

r.
  
T

h
e

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 B

o
a

rd
 h

a
s
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 t
h

is
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 f
e

a
s
ib

ili
ty

 
w

o
rk

 t
o

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 o
p

ti
o
n

s
 a

n
d
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

 t
h
e

 c
o

s
ts

. 

F
e

a
s
ib

ili
ty

 
 

5
 

In
te

rn
a

l 
S

C
C

 
T

e
a

m
 

 
 

 
 

H
o

u
s

in
g

 
 

 
 

P
ip

w
o

rt
h

 R
e

c
 S

u
D

S
 S

c
h

e
m

e
 

T
h

is
 F

e
a

s
ib

ili
ty

 s
tu

d
y
 i
s
 d

e
s
ig

n
e

d
 t
o

 p
ro

d
u

c
e

 a
 p

ro
je

c
t 
to

 d
e

liv
e

r 
a

 S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 
D

ra
in

a
g
e

 S
y
s
te

m
 (

S
u

D
S

) 
to

 h
e

lp
 a

c
c
e

le
ra

te
 n

e
w

  
h

o
u

s
in

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
in

 t
h
e

 M
a

n
o

r 
n

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

. 
 T

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e

 s
it
e

d
 i
n
 t

h
e

 P
ip

w
o

rt
h

 R
e

c
re

a
ti
o

n
 G

ro
u
n

d
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 s
e

rv
e

 
3

0
1

 n
e

w
 h

o
m

e
s
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 p
o
te

n
ti
a

l 
to

 e
x
p

a
n

d
 c

a
p

a
c
it
y
 s

e
rv

e
 a

 f
u

rt
h
e

r 
1

7
2

. 
 

T
h
e

 S
h

e
ff

ie
ld

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 C

o
m

p
a

n
y
 w

ill
 b

u
ild

 1
8
1

 o
f 

th
e

s
e

 h
o

m
e

s
 a

t 
th

e
 M

a
n

o
r 

1
0

 a
n

d
 

1
1

 s
it
e

s
, 

a
n

d
 G

le
e

s
o
n

 w
ill

 b
u

ild
 a

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

1
2

0
 a

t 
th

e
 M

a
n
o

r 
8

 s
it
e

. 
 

 V
ia

b
le

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 r

e
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
n
 t

h
e

 M
a

n
o

r 
e

s
ta

te
 h

a
s
 s

tr
u

g
g
le

d
. 

B
y
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 t

h
is

 
in

fr
a

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n
c
il 

w
ill

 b
e

 a
s
s
is

ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
o
f 
fu

tu
re

 
s
c
h

e
m

e
s
. 
T

h
e

 u
s
e

 o
f 

s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 d
ra

in
a

g
e

 i
s
 a

 p
la

n
n

in
g
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

m
e
n

t 
to

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 f
lo

o
d

 
ri
s
k
 t

o
 b

o
th

 o
n

s
it
e

 a
n
d

 d
o

w
n

s
tr

e
a

m
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
. 

It
 a

ls
o

 c
a
p

tu
re

s
 a

n
d

 t
re

a
ts

 
p

o
llu

ta
n

ts
 f

ro
m

 s
u

rf
a

c
e
s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 r

o
a
d

s
 b

e
fo

re
 d

is
c
h

a
rg

e
 t

o
 w

a
te

rc
o

u
rs

e
s
. 

In
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 c
o

u
ld

 a
im

 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
th

e
s
e

 r
e

q
u
ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 v
ia

 a
n

 o
n

-s
it
e
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n

 b
u
t 

th
is

 
is

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 p
ro

v
e

 m
o

re
 c

o
s
tl
y
 t

o
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
e

r 
a

n
d
 n

o
t 

le
a
d

 t
o
 o

p
ti
m

u
m

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e
 

fo
r 

th
e
 c

it
y
’s

 f
lo

o
d

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

 
 A

 n
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
 s

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 d
ra

in
a

g
e

 f
e
a

tu
re

, 
a

s
 p

ro
p
o

s
e

d
, 

w
o

u
ld

 a
c
t 

a
s
 a

 f
a

c
ili

ty
 

fo
r 

a
ll 

d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

ts
 d

e
liv

e
ri
n

g
 b

e
tt

e
r 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 a
n
d

 c
o

s
t 

s
a

v
in

g
s
. 

T
h

is
 i
s
 b

e
s
t 

F
e

a
s
ib

ili
ty

 
2

7
 

N
/A

 

Page 125



C
a

p
it

a
l 

S
c

h
e

m
e
s

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
S

u
m

m
a

ry
 A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 7
.1

 
 

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

 
 

d
e

liv
e

re
d

 a
n
d

 c
o

o
rd

in
a
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

a
s
 l
a

n
d
o

w
n

e
r 

a
n

d
 f
u

tu
re

 m
a

n
a

g
e

r 
o
f 

th
e
 

fa
c
ili

ty
. 

T
h

e
 s

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 d
ra

in
a

g
e

 w
o

rk
s
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 i
n

 a
 p

h
a

s
e
d

 
p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 a

s
 t
h

e
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 a
re

 b
u

ilt
 o

u
t.

  
 

 T
h
e

 e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 c

o
s
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 w
h

o
le

 p
ro

je
c
t 
a

re
 b

e
lo

w
. 

T
h
e

 f
e

a
s
ib

ili
ty

 w
o

rk
w

ill
 b

e
 

fu
n

d
e

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e

 N
e

w
 H

o
m

e
s
 B

o
n
u

s
. 

H
il

ls
b

o
ro

u
g

h
 T

o
il

e
ts

 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

n
o
 l
o

n
g
e

r 
o

p
e

ra
te

s
 p

u
b

lic
 t
o

ile
ts

 i
n

 t
h
e

 c
it
y
. 

T
h
e

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

p
u

b
lic

 t
o

ile
ts

 c
e
a

s
e

d
 w

it
h

 e
ff

e
c
t 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
5

 J
a

n
u

a
ry

 2
0

1
6
, 

a
n

d
 H

o
lm

e
 L

a
n

e
 

A
P

C
, 

H
ill

s
b

o
ro

u
g
h

 n
o
w

 i
s
 n

o
w

 c
lo

s
e

d
. 

 T
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

h
a

s
 a

n
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 t

o
 a

s
s
is

t 
in

 t
h
e

 c
re

a
ti
o
n

 o
f 

n
e

w
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e

s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 
H

ill
s
b

o
ro

u
g
h

 E
x
c
h

a
n

g
e

 A
rc

a
d
e

 t
h

a
t 

w
ill

 p
ro

v
id

e
 m

a
le

 a
n
d

 f
e
m

a
le

 t
o

ile
ts

 a
n
d

 a
 

s
e

p
a

ra
te

 t
o

ile
t 
fo

r 
d

is
a
b

le
d

 p
e

rs
o

n
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 a

n
d

 b
a
b

y
 c

h
a

n
g
in

g
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e

s
..

  
T

h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 

is
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 L

a
n
d

lo
rd

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 f
re

e
 p

u
b

lic
 t
o

ile
t 
fa

c
ili

ty
 t

h
a

t 
w

ill
 b

e
 m

a
n

a
g
e
d

 
a

n
d

 m
a

in
ta

in
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 L
a

n
d

lo
rd

. 
 T

h
e

 t
o
ta

l 
c
o

s
t 

o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

je
c
t 

b
u

ild
 i
s
 n

o
w

 e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 a

t 
£
1

0
1

,0
0

0
. 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
  

o
n

e
-

o
ff

 c
o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
 v

ia
 a

 g
ra

n
t 

to
 t
h

e
 c

a
p

it
a

l 
c
o

s
ts

 i
s
 £

6
0

,0
0

0
, 

a
llo

c
a

te
d

 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 

a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
fo

r 
th

e
 S

u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
C

e
n

tr
e

s
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 

.T
h

e
 L

a
n
d

lo
rd

 w
ill

 m
e

e
t 

th
e

 o
n

-g
o

in
g
 r

e
v
e

n
u

e
 f
u

n
d

in
g
 f

o
r 

fu
tu

re
 m

a
n
a
g
e

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

 c
o

s
ts

. 
 In

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 p

ro
te

c
t 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

e
 o

n
g
o

in
g
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

o
f 

th
e

 
fa

c
ili

ty
 t

h
e

re
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

 L
e

g
a

l 
C

h
a

rg
e

 o
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

e
rt

y
. 

 
A

d
d

it
io

n
 

 
6

0
 

 
A

 W
a
iv

e
r 

o
f 

S
ta

n
d

in
g
 O

rd
e
rs

 
fo

r 
C

o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 h
a
s
 

b
e
e

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 

a
n
d

 a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 t

o
 

e
n
a

b
le

 t
h

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

a
 o

n
e

 o
ff

 c
a

p
it
a

l 
c
o

n
tr

ib
u
ti
o

n
 b

y
 

w
a

y
 o

f 
G

ra
n
t 
to

 
e

n
a

b
le

 t
h

e
 b

u
ild

 o
f 

th
e
 f
a

c
ili

ty
 a

n
d

 i
n
 

e
x
c
h

a
n

g
e

 C
o
lli

e
r 

In
te

rn
a
ti
o

n
a

l 
w

ill
 

a
g
re

e
 t
o

 m
a

n
a
g

e
 

a
n
d

 m
a

in
ta

in
 t

h
e
 

fa
c
ili

ty
. 

 

 

  
 

 
 

P
a

rk
s
 

 
 

 

F
A

 P
it

c
h

 W
e

s
tf

ie
ld

  
T

h
is

 v
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 i
s
 t
o

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 t
h

e
 c

o
s
t 
o
f 

c
o

m
p

le
ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 f
u

ll 
p

ro
je

c
t 
a
ft

e
r 

th
e

 f
e

a
s
ib

ili
ty

 
A

d
d

it
io

n
  

7
,5

5
7
 

  

C
o

m
p

e
ti
ti
v
e

 
te

n
d

e
r 

fo
r 

p
a
v
ili

o
n
 

Page 126



C
a

p
it

a
l 

S
c

h
e

m
e
s

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
S

u
m

m
a

ry
 A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 7
.1

 
 

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

 
 

s
ta

g
e

 w
h

ic
h

 w
a

s
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 e

a
rl
ie

r 
in

 t
h
e

 y
e

a
r.

 T
h
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
a

im
s
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 

fo
o

tb
a

ll 
a

n
d

 r
u

g
b

y
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e

s
 a

t 
th

e
 f

o
rm

e
r 

W
e
s
tf

ie
ld

 s
c
h
o

o
l 
b

y
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e
n

ts
 t
o

 t
h

e
 n

a
tu

ra
l 
tu

rf
 p

it
c
h

e
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

tw
o

 n
e

w
 f

lo
o

d
lit

 
A

rt
if
ic

ia
l 
G

ra
s
s
 P

it
c
h
e

s
 (

A
G

P
) 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 b
y
 c

h
a

n
g
in

g
, 

c
lu

b
 h

o
u

s
e

 a
n

d
 g

y
m

 f
a

c
ili

ti
e

s
. 

T
h

is
 i
s
 a

 c
o
n

ti
n

u
a

ti
o
n

 o
f 

S
C

C
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 F

A
 t

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
 r

a
d

ic
a

l,
 b

u
t 

re
a

lis
ti
c
 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o

 f
a

c
ili

ty
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 o

f 
p

la
y
 f

o
r 

fo
o

tb
a

ll 
a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 c
it
y
 i
n

 
o

rd
e

r 
to

 o
v
e

rc
o

m
e
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
e

s
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 q
u

a
lit

y
. 

T
h

e
 p

ro
p
o

s
e

d
 c

o
s
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 

W
e
s
tf

ie
ld

 p
ro

je
c
t 

is
 £

7
.5

m
. 
 F

u
n
d

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
: 

 
  

·
 

S
p

o
rt

 E
n

g
la

n
d

 £
3

.8
m

 

·
 

F
A

 G
ra

n
t 
 A

w
a

rd
 £

6
0

0
k
  

·
 

S
C

C
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 P

o
o

l 
£

1
.3

m
  

·
 

S
C

C
 P

ru
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
B

o
rr

o
w

in
g
 £

1
.8

m
 

·
 

 S
p

o
rt

 E
n

g
la

n
d
 F

e
a

s
ib

ili
ty

 G
ra

n
t 

£
5

7
k
  

 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

w
ill

 w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 F

A
 t
o

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 t
ru

s
t.

 T
h
e

 S
h

e
ff

ie
ld

 F
o

o
tb

a
ll 

T
ru

s
t 

w
ill

 p
ro

v
id

e
 s

tr
a

te
g
ic

 g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 f

o
o

tb
a

ll 
h

u
b

s
 a

n
d

 p
la

y
 a

 k
e
y
 r

o
le

 i
n

 s
h

a
p

in
g
 

th
e

 f
u

tu
re

 f
o
o

tb
a

ll 
fa

c
ili

ti
e

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 C

it
y
. 

  
 T

h
e

 F
A

 h
a

s
 p

ro
c
u

re
d

, 
o
n

 b
e

h
a

lf
 o

f 
th

e
 

F
o

o
tb

a
ll 

T
ru

s
t,

 a
n

d
 i
n

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h

 S
C

C
 a

n
 o

p
e

ra
to

r 
to

 c
a

rr
y
 o

u
t 

th
e

 d
a

y
 t

o
 d

a
y
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

th
e

 f
a

c
ili

ti
e

s
. 

M
o

re
 d

e
ta

il 
o
f 

th
is

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
t 

is
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 c

a
s
e

. 
If

 t
h

is
 p

ilo
t 

p
ro

je
c
t 

is
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

l,
 t

h
e

 F
A

 i
n
te

n
d

s
 t
o

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 s

im
ila

r 

fo
o

tb
a

ll 
tr

u
s
ts

 i
n

 u
p

 t
o
 3

0
 o

f 
E

n
g
la

n
d
’s

 l
a

rg
e

s
t 

c
it
ie

s
. 
  
  
  

a
n
d

 a
s
s
o

c
ia

te
d
 

w
o

rk
s
 e

.g
. 
c
a

r 
p

a
rk

. 
 

M
in

i 
c
o

m
p

e
ti
ti
o

n
 

fr
o
m

 F
A

 
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 f
o

r 
3

G
 

(v
ia

 R
L
F

 a
s
 

F
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r)
 a

n
d
 

g
ra

s
s
 p

it
c
h

e
s
 (

v
ia

 
T

G
M

S
 a

s
 

F
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r)
 

   

 
 

 
 

S
U

C
C

E
S

S
F

U
L

 Y
O

U
N

G
 P

E
O

P
L

E
 :

 -
 

 
 

 

B
a

s
ic

 N
e

e
d

 B
lo

c
k

 A
ll

o
c

a
ti

o
n

 –
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
P

la
c

e
s

 P
ro

v
is

io
n

 P
ro

je
c

ts
: 

T
h

is
 b

lo
c
k
 a

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
 i
s
 f

u
n
d

e
d
 f

ro
m

 a
n

n
u
a

l 
g
ra

n
ts

 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 
fo

r 
E

d
u

c
a
ti
o

n
 (

D
fE

) 
in

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 l
e

g
a

l 
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 t
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 h
a

s
 t

o
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 e

n
o
u

g
h

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
p

la
c
e

s
 t
o

 m
e
e

t 
th

e
 d

e
m

a
n
d

 p
la

c
e

d
 u

p
o

n
 i
t.

 

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 

-4
1
2

.5
 

N
/A

 

Page 127



C
a

p
it

a
l 

S
c

h
e

m
e
s

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
S

u
m

m
a

ry
 A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 7
.1

 
 

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

 
 

 P
ro

v
id

in
g
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

s
c
h
o

o
l 
p

la
c
e

s
 i
s
 a

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 d

u
ty

 o
f 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il.

 T
h

e
 c

it
y
 i
s
 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
in

g
 a

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
g
ro

w
th

 t
o

 m
e

e
t 

th
is

 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
 d

e
m

a
n

d
 a

n
d
 a

ro
u
n

d
 

4
,5

0
0

 n
e

w
 p

la
c
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 a
d

d
e
d

 t
o

 t
h
e

 p
ri
m

a
ry

 s
e

c
to

r 
in

 r
e

c
e

n
t 

y
e

a
rs

. 
 T

h
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 4

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 r
e

q
u

e
s
t 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
fu

n
d

in
g
 t

o
 c

o
v
e

r 
c
a

p
a

c
it
y
 e

x
p

a
n

s
io

n
 

w
o

rk
s
 a

s
 n

o
te

d
 i
n

 e
a

c
h
 c

a
s
e

. 

1
F

o
rm

 E
n

tr
y
 E

x
p

a
n

s
io

n
 –

 E
c
c

le
s

a
ll
 I

n
fa

n
ts

  
T

h
e

 o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

 o
f 

th
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 

is
 t
o

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 a

 t
e
m

p
o

ra
ry

 1
F

E
 e

x
p

a
n

s
io

n
 o

f 
E

c
c
le

s
a

ll
 

In
fa

n
t 

S
c
h

o
o

l 
in

 2
0

1
6
, 

to
 t

a
k
e

 i
t 

to
 a

 3
F

E
 s

c
h

o
o

l.
 T

h
is

 r
e

q
u

e
s
t 
fo

r 
a
n

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
£
2

6
0

k
 

fo
r 

fi
n

a
l 
d

e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d

 c
o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 w

o
rk

 t
o

 t
a

k
e
 t

h
e

 p
ro

je
c
t 
to

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 s

ta
g
e

, 
fo

llo
w

in
g
 

a
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 a

p
p

ro
v
a

l 
o
f 

£
1

0
3

k
 f

o
r 

fe
a

s
ib

ili
ty

 a
n
d

 d
e

s
ig

n
 w

o
rk

s
. 

 T
h

e
 v

a
ri
a

ti
o

n
 a

ls
o

 
in

c
lu

d
e

s
 a

 r
e

q
u

e
s
t 
fo

r 
s
lip

p
a

g
e

 o
f 

£
7

k
 t
h

a
t 

w
a

s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 o
ri
g
in

a
l 
fe

a
s
ib

ili
ty

 b
u

d
g
e

t.
  
 

 T
h
e

re
 i
s
 a

 n
e
e

d
 t
o

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

 a
 p

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
e

x
e

rc
is

e
 f

o
r 

a
 t

w
o

 c
la

s
s
ro

o
m

 m
o
d

u
la

r 
b

u
ild

in
g
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 t
e
m

p
o

ra
ry

 1
F

o
rm

 E
n
tr

y
 (

F
E

) 
e

x
p

a
n

s
io

n
 a

t 
E

c
c
le

s
a

ll 
In

fa
n

ts
 

S
c
h

o
o

l 
in

 t
im

e
 f
o

r 
th

e
 2

0
1

6
 /
 2

0
1

7
 a

c
a
d

e
m

ic
 y

e
a

r.
 

 T
h
e

 e
x
tr

e
m

e
ly

 t
ig

h
t 

ti
m

e
s
c
a

le
s
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 f
o

r 
th

e
 i
n

s
ta

lla
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 t
e
m

p
o

ra
ry

 
c
la

s
s
ro

o
m

s
 u

n
it
 d

o
 n

o
t 
a

llo
w

 f
o

r 
a
 f

u
ll 

c
o
m

p
e

ti
ti
v
e

 t
e

n
d

e
r 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
. 
 I

t 
is

 f
e

lt
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 

u
s
e

 o
f 

K
ie

r 
v
ia

 t
h

e
 S

C
A

P
E

 f
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 w

o
u

ld
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t

h
e

 a
b

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
th

e
 w

o
rk

s
 t

o
 b

e
 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 p

ri
o

r 
to

 t
h
e

 s
ta

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 

a
c
a

d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a

r.
  

K
ie

r 
w

o
u

ld
 a

c
t 

a
s
 t
h

e
 m

a
in

 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
to

r 
to

 p
ro

v
id

e
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
ti
o
n

 o
n

 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

s
 a

n
d
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e

 M
o

b
ile

 U
n

it
. 

K
ie

r 
w

o
u

ld
 a

ls
o

 u
n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

 a
n

y
 e

n
a

b
lin

g
 w

o
rk

s
. 

 A
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
M

e
m

b
e

r 
D

e
c
is

io
n

 (
s
ig

n
e

d
 2

6
th

 A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1
6

) 
w

a
s
 o

b
ta

in
e

d
 t
o

 a
p
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
 

p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

a
 t
e

m
p
o

ra
ry

 c
la

s
s
ro

o
m

 u
n

it
 a

t 
E

c
c
le

s
a

ll 
In

fa
n
ts

 S
c
h
o
o

l 
v
ia

 t
h

e
 

S
C

A
P

E
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 K
ie

r 
a

s
 t

h
e

 m
a

in
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
to

r .
  

 T
h
e

 p
ro

je
c
t 

is
 t
o

 b
e
 f

u
n
d

e
d

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 C
Y

P
F

 B
a
s
ic

 N
e

e
d

 B
lo

c
k
 A

llo
c
a
ti
o

n
. 

 

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 

&
 

S
lip

p
a

g
e
 

2
6

0
 

 -7
 

K
ie

r 
th

ro
u

g
h

 
S

C
A

P
E

 
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 

Page 128



C
a

p
it

a
l 

S
c

h
e

m
e
s

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
S

u
m

m
a

ry
 A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 7
.1

 
 

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

 
 

T
o

tl
e

y
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 B
u

lg
e

 Y
e

a
r 

 
T

h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 

w
ill

 p
ro

v
id

e
 f

o
r 

th
e

 e
x
p

a
n

s
io

n
 o

f 
T

o
tl
e

y
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h

o
o

l 
d

u
e

 t
o

 a
 “

 b
u

lg
e

” 
y
e

a
r 

d
e

m
a

n
d

 f
o

r 
s
c
h
o

o
l 
p

la
c
e

s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 a

re
a

. 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

p
p

ro
v
a

l 
is

 s
o

u
g
h

t 
to

 a
llo

w
 t

h
e

 e
x
p

a
n

s
io

n
 t
o

 b
e

 u
n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 t
o

 a
c
c
o
m

m
o

d
a

te
 a

n
 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
3
0

 p
u

p
ils

 a
t 
T

o
tl
e

y
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 f
ro

m
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1
6

, 
b

y
 w

a
y
 o

f 
in

te
rn

a
l 

a
lt
e

ra
ti
o
n

s
 a

n
d

 r
e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n

t 
to

 t
h

e
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
s
it
e

 t
o
 c

re
a

te
 o

n
e

 a
d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
c
la

s
s
 b

a
s
e

.  
T

h
e

 m
o

s
t 

c
o

s
t 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 m
e

th
o

d
 o

f 
p

ro
c
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
is

 r
e

la
ti
v
e

ly
 s

m
a

ll 
le

v
e

l 
o

f 
c
a

p
it
a

l 
w

o
rk

s
 i
s
 v

ia
 a

 d
ir
e

c
t 

a
p
p

o
in

tm
e
n

t 
u

s
in

g
 a

 f
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
to

r.
 

 T
h
e

 p
ro

je
c
t 

is
 t
o

 b
e
 f

u
n
d

e
d

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 D
fE

 B
a

s
ic

 N
e

e
d

 B
lo

c
k
 A

llo
c
a

ti
o
n

 a
s
 c

a
p

it
a

l 
e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 a
t 
a

n
 A

c
a

d
e
m

y
 s

ta
tu

s
 s

c
h

o
o

l,
 t
o

 d
is

c
h

a
rg

e
 S

C
C

’s
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 
to

 p
ro

v
id

e
 c

a
p

a
c
it
y
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 

th
e

 d
e
m

a
n
d

 f
o

r 
e
x
tr

a
 p

u
p

il 
p

la
c
e

s
.  

A
d

d
it
io

n
 

6
0
 

K
ie

r 
v
ia

 S
C

A
P

E
 

F
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
: 

(c
o

m
b

in
e

d
 P

S
 

fo
r 

T
o

tl
e

y
 &

 
S

p
ri
n

g
fi
e

ld
) 

S
p

ri
n

g
fi

e
ld

 P
ri

m
a

ry
 B

u
lg

e
 Y

e
a

r 
 

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
ill

 p
ro

v
id

e
 f

o
r 

th
e

 e
x
p

a
n

s
io

n
 o

f 
S

p
ri
n

g
fi
e

ld
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h

o
o

l 
d

u
e

 t
o

 b
u

lg
e

 
y
e

a
r 

d
e

m
a

n
d

 p
re

s
s
u

re
s
 f

o
r 

s
c
h

o
o

l 
p

la
c
e

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

re
a

. 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

p
p

ro
v
a

l 
is

 s
o

u
g
h

t 
to

 a
llo

w
 t

h
e

 e
x
p

a
n

s
io

n
 t
o

 b
e

 u
n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 t
o

 a
c
c
o
m

m
o

d
a

te
 a

n
 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
3
0

 p
u

p
ils

 a
t 
S

p
ri
n

g
fi
e

ld
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 f
ro

m
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2
0

1
6
, 

b
y
 w

a
y
 o

f 
in

te
rn

a
l 

a
lt
e

ra
ti
o
n

s
 a

n
d

 r
e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n

t 
to

 t
h

e
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
s
it
e

 t
o
 c

re
a

te
 o

n
e

 a
d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
c
la

s
s
 b

a
s
e

.  
T

h
e

 m
o

s
t 

c
o

s
t 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 m
e

th
o

d
 o

f 
p

ro
c
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
is

 r
e

la
ti
v
e

ly
 s

m
a

ll 
le

v
e

l 
o

f 
c
a

p
it
a

l 
w

o
rk

s
 i
s
 v

ia
 a

 d
ir
e

c
t 

a
p
p

o
in

tm
e
n

t 
u

s
in

g
 a

 f
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
to

r.
 

  T
h
e

 p
ro

je
c
t 

is
 t
o

 b
e
 f

u
n
d

e
d

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 D
fE

 B
a

s
ic

 N
e

e
d

 B
lo

c
k
 A

llo
c
a

ti
o
n

. 

A
d

d
it
io

n
 

6
0
 

K
ie

r 
v
ia

 S
C

A
P

E
 

F
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
: 

(c
o

m
b

in
e

d
 P

S
 

fo
r 

T
o

tl
e

y
 &

 
S

p
ri
n

g
fi
e

ld
)  

F
ir

s
 H

il
l 

B
u

lg
e

 Y
e

a
r 

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
ill

 d
e

liv
e

r 
a

 t
e
m

p
o

ra
ry

 e
x
p

a
n

s
io

n
 a

t 
F

ir
s
 H

ill
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h

o
o

l 
in

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 

e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

e
 c

o
u
n

c
il 

m
e
e

ts
 i
ts

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 o

b
lig

a
ti
o

n
 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

s
c
h

o
o

l 
p

la
c
e

s
. 

 

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 

3
2

.5
 

C
o

m
p
e

ti
ti
v
e

 
Q

u
o

te
s
 

 

Page 129



C
a

p
it

a
l 

S
c

h
e

m
e
s

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
S

u
m

m
a

ry
 A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 7
.1

 
 

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

 
 

F
o

llo
w

in
g
 i
n

it
ia

l 
fe

a
s
ib

ili
ty

 w
o

rk
, 

a
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
is

 n
o
w

 s
o

u
g
h

t 
fo

r 
a

 £
3

2
.5

k
 v

a
ri
a

ti
o

n
 t

o
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
te

a
c
h

in
g
 s

p
a

c
e

 (
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

n
 I

C
T

 s
o

lu
ti
o

n
),

 t
o

 b
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 i
n

 
ti
m

e
 f
o

r 
th

e
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1
6

 i
n

ta
k
e

. 
 T

h
e

 p
ro

je
c
t 

is
 t
o

 b
e
 f

u
n
d

e
d

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 D
fE

 B
a

s
ic

 N
e

e
d

 B
lo

c
k
 A

llo
c
a

ti
o
n

. 

 
 

 
 

P
R

O
C

U
R

E
M

E
N

T
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

IE
S

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

G
ra

v
e

s
 L

e
is

u
re

 C
e

n
tr

e
 G

y
m

n
a

s
ti

c
 E

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
T

h
e

 s
c
o
p

e
 o

f 
w

o
rk

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 t
h

e
 p

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

v
a

ri
o

u
s
 i
te

m
s
 o

f 
G

y
m

n
a

s
ti
c
 

E
q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
th

e
 r

e
d
e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 G
ra

v
e

s
 L

e
is

u
re

 C
e

n
tr

e
. 

T
h
e

re
 i
s
 a

 s
p

e
c
ia

lis
t 
m

a
rk

e
t 

o
f 

s
u

p
p

lie
rs

 f
o

r 
th

is
 w

o
rk

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

y
 w

ill
 b

e
 e

n
g
a

g
e

d
 v

ia
 a

 
s
in

g
le

 s
ta

g
e

 c
o
m

p
e
ti
ti
v
e

 t
e
n

d
e

r 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
 u

ti
lis

in
g
 a

 S
u

it
a

b
ili

ty
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t.

 A
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
c
h

e
c
k
 w

ill
 b

e
 u

n
d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 o

n
 t
h

e
 w

in
n

in
g
 t

e
n
d
e

re
r.

 
T

h
e

 r
e

a
s
o

n
 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
re

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 s

te
m

s
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 s

p
e

c
ia

lis
t 

n
a

tu
re

 o
f 

th
e

 G
y
m

n
a

s
ti
c
 E

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
th

a
t 
n

e
e

d
s
 t
o

 b
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

. 
 I
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 o

b
ta

in
 t

h
e

 b
e

s
t 

v
a

lu
e

 f
o

r 
m

o
n

e
y
 i
t 

is
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t
h

a
t 
a

n
 o

p
e
n

 t
e
n

d
e

r 
w

ill
 g

iv
e

 a
s
 m

a
n

y
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
to

rs
 a

s
 

p
o

s
s
ib

le
 t
o

 t
e

n
d
e

r 
o
n

 t
h

is
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
. 
T

h
e

 C
a

p
it
a

l 
P

ro
je

c
t 

B
u

d
g
e

t 
w

a
s
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 a

s
 

p
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 m

a
in

 G
ra

v
e

s
 L

e
is

u
re

 C
e

n
tr

e
 P

ro
je

c
t.

 T
h

e
 e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
C

o
s
ts

 i
s
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 t
o

 
b

e
 £

1
3

0
,0

0
0

. 

 
S

tr
a

te
g
y
 

 
1

3
0
 

 
C

o
m

p
e

ti
ti
v
e

 
T

e
n

d
e

r 

N
e
w

 C
o

u
n

c
il

 H
o

u
s

in
g

 P
h

a
s

e
 2

 

T
h
e

 N
e

w
 B

u
ild

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 P

ro
je

c
t 
P

h
a

s
e

 2
 a

im
s
 t
o

 b
u

ild
 3

8
 n

e
w

 g
e

n
e

ra
l 
n

e
e

d
s
 

c
o

u
n

c
il 

h
o

m
e

s
 f
o

r 
a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 r

e
n

t 
c
o

m
p

ri
s
in

g
 a

 m
ix

tu
re

 o
f 

2
 t
o

 4
 b

e
d
ro

o
m

e
d

 

p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
. 
T

h
is

 f
o

llo
w

s
 o

n
 f

ro
m

 P
h

a
s
e

 1
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 d

e
liv

e
ri
n

g
 5

1
 h

o
m

e
s
. 

T
h
e

 p
ro

je
c
t 

is
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

a
 w

id
e

r 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 s

to
c
k
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t
h

a
t 

a
im

s
 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
1

,0
0
0

 c
o
u

n
c
il 

h
o

m
e

s
, 
m

o
s
tl
y
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 a
c
q
u

is
it
io

n
 a

n
d

 r
e
fu

rb
i s

h
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 

p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
. 

 
S

tr
a

te
g
y
 

 
5

,5
9
4
 

 
C

o
m

p
e

ti
ti
v
e

 
te

n
d
e

r 

Page 130



C
a

p
it

a
l 

S
c

h
e

m
e
s

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
S

u
m

m
a

ry
 A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 7
.1

 
 

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

 
 

F
o

llo
w

in
g
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
a

p
p

ra
is

a
l 
o
f 

th
e

 v
a

ri
o

u
s
 m

e
th

o
d

s
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 i
t 

h
a

s
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 e

v
id

e
n

t 
th

a
t,

 i
n

 t
h

is
 i
n

s
ta

n
c
e
, 

a
 p

re
-f

a
b

ri
c
a

te
d

 t
im

b
e

r 
fr

a
m

e
d
 

c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

 w
ill

 d
e

liv
e

r 
th

e
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 l
im

it
e

d
 t

im
e

s
c
a

le
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 

a
n

d
 w

it
h

in
 b

u
d

g
e

t.
 

T
h
e

 o
ri
g
in

a
l 
P

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
S

tr
a

te
g
y
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 b

y
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

 t
h
e

 u
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 

s
a

m
e
 m

e
th

o
d

 o
f 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n

t 
a

s
 P

h
a

s
e

 1
, 

u
s
in

g
 a

 J
C

T
 D

e
s
ig

n
 &

 B
u

ild
 C

o
n

tr
a

c
t 
v
ia

 
th

e
 H

o
m

e
s
  

a
n

d
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 A

g
e

n
c
y
  

D
P

P
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

. 
W

a
k
e
fi
e

ld
 &

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 L

td
 w

e
re

 a
p

p
o

in
te

d
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t

h
e

 p
re

fe
rr

e
d

 s
o

lu
ti
o
n

 t
o
 a

 s
h
o

rt
e

r 
p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d

 a
t 

a
n

 a
c
c
e

p
ta

b
le

 c
o

s
t.
 U

n
fo

rt
u

n
a

te
ly

 t
h

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

a
n
d

 W
D

H
 h

a
v
e

  
fa

ile
d

 t
o

 r
e

a
c
h

 a
 m

u
tu

a
lly

 a
c
c
e

p
ta

b
le

 c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
. 

 A
ft

e
r 

e
x
p

lo
ri
n

g
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 

p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
o

p
ti
o
n

s
, 
it
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 a
g
re

e
d

 t
o
 r

e
v
e

rt
 t

o
 t

h
e

 
D

e
s
ig

n
 &

 B
u

ild
 p

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n
t 

o
p

ti
o

n
 u

s
e
d

 i
n

 P
h
a

s
e

 1
 b

u
t 

to
 e

x
p

lo
re

 t
h
e

 w
id

e
r 

m
a

rk
e

t 
to

 h
o

p
e
fu

lly
 o

b
ta

in
 a

 c
o

m
p
e

ti
ti
v
e

 t
e

n
d

e
r 

le
v
e

l 
fr

o
m

 e
x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e
d

 C
o

n
tr

a
c
to

rs
. 
T

h
e

 
te

n
d
e

r 
w

ill
 t

h
e

re
fo

re
 g

o
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h

e
 f
u

ll 
O

J
E

U
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
. 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 131



Page 132

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Declarations of Interest
	5 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	18 May (First Meeting)

	8 Retirement of Staff
	9 Commissioning Plan for Adult and Parent Carers
	10 Agency Staffing Provision
	11 Revenue Budget and Capital Programme Monitoring 2015/16 Month 12 (as at 31/3/16)
	Budget Monitoring (2)


